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INPLEMENTATION OF THE MULTILATERAL TRADE
NEGOTIATIONS

WEDNESLAY, FEBRUARY 21, 1979
U.S. SENATE,

SUBCOMMITTEE ON INTERNATIONAL TRADE
oF THE CoMMITTEE ON FINANCE,
Washington, D.C.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 10 a.m. in room %221
Dirksen Senate Office Building, Hon. Abraham Ribicoff (chairman of
the subcommittee) presiding.
Present: Senators Ribicoff, Long, Baucus, Danforth, ana Heinz.
[The press release announcing these hearings follows:]

[Press ¢elease)

U.S. SENATE, COMMITTEE ON FINANCE, SUBCOMMITTEE ON INTERNATIONAL TRADE

FINANCE SBUBCOMMITTEE ON INTERNATIONAL TRADE TO HOLD EEARINGS ON
IMPLEMENTATION OF THE MULTILATEBAL THRADE NEGOTIATIONS

The Honorable Abraham Ribicoff (D., Conn.), Chairman of the Subcoinmittee
on International Trade of the Committee on ¥inance, and the Honorable William
V. Roth, Jr. (R., Del.), Ranking Minority Member of the Subcommittee, today
announced that the Subcommittee will hold public hearings on certain issues
relating to implementation of the Multilateral Trade Negotiations. The hearings
will begin at 10:00 AM. on Wednesday, February 21, and Thursday, February 22,
1979, in Room 2221 Dirksen Senate Office Bullding.

Procedures U’ .der the Trade Act of 1974

Article I, section 8, clause 3 of the Constitution confers on Congress the power
to regulate ¢ ymmerce with foreign nations. At the same time, the President is the
representative of the United States in international negotiations, including trade
negotiations. The Trade Act of 1974 establisies procedures enabling the two
branches to coordinate thelr activities with respect to international trade nego-
tiations and enabling Congress to reach, relatively rapidly, a final decision to
accept or reject the resulis of trade negotiations.

Under section 102 of the Trade Act of 1974 (19 U.8.C, 2112), a trade agreement
providing for the harmonization, reduction, or elimination of a barrier to (or
other distortion of) international tradc enters into force with respect to the
United States if (and only if) an implementing bill for that agreement is enacted
into law. An implementing bill is submitted to the Congress by the President and
contains provisions necessary or appropriata to implement the trade agreement.

Under scction 151 of the Act (19 U.8.C. 2191), procedures for Congressional
consideration of implementing legislation are established. These procedures are
intended to result in a final Congressiona! decision on an implementiug bill
within 90 working days after the bill is introduced. Important feature, of the
procedures are automatic discharge of committees after a specified period and
limitation of debate to 20 bours, Implementing legislation recommended by the
President may not be amended in committee or on the floor of either House.

Because of the special natare of the Trade Act legislative procedures, section
102 of the Act requires close consultaiion between Congress and the President on
trade negotiations. Consultation during the negotiations has been carried on by

1)
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official Congressional advisors to the United States delegation to the Multilateral
Trade Negotiations, including members of the Finance Committee. These ad-
visors have b2en supplied information on the progress of the unegotiations and
have been consulted on numerous negotiating issues.

On January 4, 1979, the President notitied Congress of his intention to enter
into trade agreements (44 Fed. Reg. p. 1933 . (1979) ). Under section 102 of the
Trade Act, the submission of this notice means the President may eunter into
trade agrecments at any time after April 4, 1979. As the negotiations come to an
end, consultation with respect to implementing legislation must now begin.

Details of many of the trade agreements are still being negotiated. However,
because descriptions of the agreewments are now available to the public (44 Fed.
Reg. pp. 1935 ff. (1979)) Senator Ribicoff and isenator Roth believe it will be
useful for the members of the Finance Committee to hear testimony from inter-
ested parties on changes in existing laws which may be affected by the trade
agreements before consultations with the Administration on implementing legis-
lution begin. This testimony msay be addressed both to changes in existing law
which may be necessary to implzment trade agreements and to other changes in
existing law which may be appropriate. The Subcommittee is most interested in
receiving comments on aspects of the implementing legislation within the Com-
mittee's jurisdiction, including the subjects described in sections a to E below.

A. Countervailing duties

Code provisions.—According to the President’s January 4 notice, the Code on
Subsidies and Countervailing Duties contains ;

“]1. Flat prohibition of export subsidies on non-primary products as well as
primary mineral products.

“2, A definition of export subsidy which abolishes the existing dual pricing
requirement and provides an updated illustrative list.

“3, With respect to domestic subsidies, recognition that while they are often
used to piomote important objectives of national policy, they can also have
harmful trade effects; relief (inciuding countermeasures) available where such
subsidies (a) injure domestic producers; (b) nullify or impair benefits of GATT
concessions (inclucing tariff bindings); or (c) cause serious prejudice to the
interests of other signatories.

“4, Recoguition that where domestic subsidies are granted on non-com:ercial
terms, trade distortions are especially likely to arise ; commitment by signatories
to ‘take into account’ conditions of world trade and pruduction (e.g., prices,
capacity, etc.) in fashioning their subsidy practices.

“5. Improved discipline on use of export subsidies for agriculture. Prohibition
on such subsidies when used in a manner which (a) displaces the exports of
others or (b) involves material price undercutting in a particular market,

‘9, Provision for special and differvntial treatment under which LDCs could
not use export subsidies where such subsidies adversely affect the trade or
production interests of other conntries; provision for negotiated phase-outs of
export subsidies by LDCs.

“7. Tight dispute settlement process (panel findings regarding rights and
obligations within 120 days of complaint) to enforce discipline of code. This
should provide growing body of case law.

“8, Greater transparency in subsidy practices (including provision for notitica-
tion to the GA'LT of practices of other countries.)

“9, For countervailing duty actions, an injury and causation test designed to
afford relief where subsidized imports (whether an export or domestic subsidy is
involved) impact on U.8. producers either through volume or through effect on
prices,

“10. Greater transparency in the administration of countervailing duty laws/
regulations.”

More specifically, the Code now being negotiated may include:

(1) A requirement that subsidized imports cause injury or the threat thereof
to domestic producers of like products before countervailing duties may be
unilaterally imposed.

(2) A procedure permitting a new remedy with respect to subsidized goods, the
imposition of countermeasures authorized by the committee of signatories to the
Code, after an internatioual dispute settlement procedure limited to approximately
150 days. Countermeasuras would be avallable against any subsidy causing injury
to a domestic Industry, nullification or impairment of benefits accruing to a
country under the General Agreement on Tariffs and Trade, or serious prejudice
to the interests of any country which adheyes to the Code.
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(3) A requirement that, for purposes of applying countervailing duties, the
questions of the existence of a subsidy and injury be consldered simultaneously
before the initiation of an investipation and after a preliminary positive finding
that a subsidy exists.

(4) A requirement that, for purposes of countervailing dutles, “provisional
measures”’ such as payment of estimated countervailing duties or bonds may be
required after a preliminary positive finding that a subsidy exists is made,

(5) A requirement that countervailing duties may Le imposed retroactively
(A) for the period during which estimated duty payments or bonds have been
imposed if there is an irjury finding, (B) for the period beginning 90 days before
estimated duty payments or bonds are imposed in “critical circummstance:”, or
(C) not at all if there is a finding of a threat of injury.

(6) A provision permitting a countervailing duty investigation to be termi-
nated if (A) the exporting country agrees to eliminate or reduce the subsidy so
that it no longer causes injury, or (B) exporters voluntarily undertake to in-
crease their prices or to reduce or stop their exports.

I'ssucs.—In addition to suggestions for improving existing law, the Subcommit-
tee is particularly interested in receiving testimony with respect to the following
issues:

(1) Administering agency.—Which agency or agencies should administer the
counterveiling duty law?

(2) Definition of ““injury”.—The definition of injury in the Code may be quite
broad. Factors which may be considered include whether subsidized imports (A)
depress prices to a significant degree, (B) prevent price increases, which other-
wise would have occurred, to a significant degree, (C) affect return on invest-
ment, and (D) reduce ability to raise capital. What should be the injury test in
the countervailing duty law? Should factors be added to the existing injury test
for duty-free imports? Should the injury test, and other Code benetits, apply
to imports from countries which do not sign the Code?

(3) Definition of *‘like product’”.—The Code uscs the term “like product” for
purposes of determining injurious effects of imports. Should the definition of
“like product” in the countervailing duty law include notions of substitutability
or ccmpetitive impact?

(4) Duties smaller than the amoat of sudsidy.—The Code may permit counter-
vailing dnties less than the amount of subsidy if the lesser duty would “remove
the injury.” Should the countervailing duty law permit duties smaller than the
amouut of subsidy und, if so, when?

(8) Termination of investigation—The Code may permit termination of a
countervailing duty investigation if certain agreements or undertakings with
respect to prices, quantities, or subsidy amounts are made. Should administrators
of the countervailing duty law be permitted to terminate investigations and, if so,
urder what conditions?

(6) Judicial rcview.—To what extent should administration of the counter-
valling duty law be subject to judicial review? If there is judicia) review, should
it be de novo. based on substantial evidence, or some other standard? If there is
Jndicial review, should it be subject to time limits or other procedures designed
to insure rapid decisions?

(7) Dispute settlement apparatus.—An important issue which is present in the
Code on Subsidies and Countervailing Duties and also appears in a aumber of
other codes being negotiated is the manner in which the United States should
approach and use the dispute settlement apparatus established in such codes. In
a number of the codes, the results of the dispute settlement process will be an
evolving set of rules governing international trade in thut area among signa-
tories to the code and offering a basis for rules which even non-signatories may
adopt. Absent effective use of the dispute settlement apparatus by the United
States, adherence to some of the codes by the United States could lead to
minimal, uncertain, or perhaps harmful results.

What agency should represent the United Stat « i the dispute settlement
process? What procedure should be esablished to permit private parties to raise
questions about practices which they wish pursued in the dispute settlement
forum? How should decisions on the matters to be pursued internationally be
made? What role. {f any, should private parties play in the representations of the
United Stales in the dispute settlement forum? How should international deel-
sions calling into question U.8. practices be responded to domestirally (e.g., Presi-
dential discretion to conform U.S. practices, conforming legislation submitted to
Congress, etc) ? ‘



B. Antidumping duties

Code provisions.—In his January 4 notice, the President siated that “the
injury/casualty/regional market criteria and the transparency provisions (l.e,
public notice requirements, etc.)” negotiated in the Code on Subeidies and
Countervailing Duties may be introduced into the Antidumping Code negotiated
during the Kennedy Round.

Issues.—In addition to suggestions for improving existing law, the Subcom-
mittee particvlarly interested in receiving testimony with respect to the follow-
ing issues:

(1) Administering agency~-Which agency or agencies should administer the
antidumping law?

(2) Relation to countervailing duty concepta.—3hould the countervailing duty
and antidumping laws be the same or simi.ar with respect to injury, causation, or
the regivnal industry concept?

C. Safeguards

Code provisions.—According to the President’s January 4 notice, the Code on
Safrﬁuards supplements and improves Article XTX of the General Agreement on
Tari¥s and Trade to establish an “international safeguard procedure which
takes into account all forms of import restraints countries use in response to
injurious competition or threat of such competition. ... It provides fcr as broad a
coverage of measures as possible—including export restraints which are com-
monly used for safeguard purposes, It contains improved criteria to be met in
taking safeguard action and a set of conditions {0 which individual safeguard
measures must conforin. If countries adhere to these criteria and conditions, the
need for retaliation against safeguard actions should be reduced.

“The code also contains provisions to encourage more openness and due process
in other countries’ domestic safeguard procedures. Improved international dinci-
pline in the use of sufeguard measures would be provided by procedural reform
and the establishment of a committee of signatories which would be given sur-
velllance and dispure settlement functions.

“Whereas present GATT provisions permit safeguard actiors only on a non-
discrimainatory basis, the new code would permit seme scope for selective action
against imports from particular countries when these are the cause of serious
injury. Selective action would however, be subject to certain conditions.”

More apecifically, the Code now being negotiated may include:

(1) A definition of ‘“domestic industry” including domestic producers whose
collective output of products like or directly competitive with the imported
products corstitutes 8 major proportion of the total domestic production of those
products. Tie term “domestic industry” is also defined to include producers in
unified national markets.

(2) Requirements: (a) a safeguard measure covers only the product or
products causing the injury (b) the measure be applied for a limited period of
time (c) once a measure is removed it should not be reapplied before the lapse
of a period of time (d) that a measure should, to the extent feasible, be
progressively liberalized during the period of its application and (e) that che
menil(sxl;re should not reduce fmports below the level of a previous representative
period.

(3) The Code may pernit non-MFN application of safeguard measures. Article
XIX of the General Agreement on Tariffs and Trade now requires a country
taking safeguard action to restrict imports of the product concerned from all
sources—that is, to take action on a most-favored-nation (MFN) basis.

(4) A requirement that developed countries make an effort to avold safeguard
actions on products of special interest to developing countries and, if action is
taken, to limit, if feasible, its extent and duration. When safeguard actions are
taken, signatories might permit imports from developing countries which are
small suppliers or new market-entrants to continue to have market access with
moderate growth on favorable terms. Developed signatories, however, would
reserve the right to withdraw this favorable treatment from individual developing
countries when such countries, or relevant sectors within those courtries, achieve
higher levels of development or become competitive.

(5) A requirement that all of the existing safeguard actions taken pursuant
to the General Agreement on Tariffs and Trade Article XIX be terminated within
u specified period after the Code enters into force unless such actions were
extended pursuant to the new code.

Issues.—The Subcommittee is interested in receiving testimony on the following

issues regarding implementing legislation and improvements in existing law as
it relates to the safeguards code :
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(1) Developing countries.—How should U.S. law be drafted to provide for
special and differential treatment for developing countries?

(2) Voluntary restraint agreements.—If inter-industry arrangements or volun-
tary export restraint agreements are made subjuct to the coverage of the code,
what, if any, conditions should be required in domestic legislation before the
agreements are sanctioned by our Government?

(8) Distinguishing between signatoriecs and nonsignatorics.—If legislation is
to be drafted that distinguishes between safeguard action taken against code
signatories and non-signatories, what should be the varying provisions?

(4) Sections 201 to 203.—What improvements should be made in sections 201
through 208 of the Trade Act of 1974 (relating to import relief) ?

(5) Unilateral action.—If unilateral selective safegvard action is permitted
under the code, what criteria and procedures should be established for such
action?

(8) Definition of “domestic irdustry”.—In light of possible code revisions of
the definition of “domesiic industry,” how should domestic law reflect these
changes?

D. Customs valuation

Code provisions.—The President’s January 4 notice states that “a new set
of international rules for cvstoms valuation has been developed in the multi-
lateral trade negotiations. An attempt has been made to ensure that these new
rules are fair and simple, that they conform to commercial reality, and that
they will allow traders to predict with a reasonable degree of accurucy the
duty that will be assessed on their products. It is Interesting to note that there
are strong similarities between the proposed new international rules and section
402 of the Tariff Act of 1930, which governs the valuation of many U.S. imports.”

The proposed code containg a requirement that valuation systeins be based on
objective criteria. The primary standard for determining the value of imports
for customs purposes would be bhased on the transaction value of the imported
goods. Four alternative standards may be resorted to in a prescribed order
whenever a value cannot be determined under the new higher ranking valuation
standard. More specifically:

(1) The primary method of valuation shall be based on the “transaction
value” of the imported goods, which is the price actuallv pald or pavable for
the goods, with additions for certain costs, charges, and expenses incurred with
respect to the imported goods that are not included in the price actually paid
or payable. These additions cover such items as selling commissions, brokerage
fees, contalner costs, packaging costs, royalty and license fees, and assists. The
only assists for which addition can be made to the price are assists such asm
materials, dyes, and tools, and engineering, development, artwork, design work,
and plans nnd sketches undertaken elsewhere than in the country of importation.

(2) The primary method cannot be used if the seller places restrictions on
the buyer as to the use or disposition of the goods, the sale or price cf the
goods 18 con'ingent on some factor for which a value cannot be determined,
the seller in partial payment for his goods receives some percentage of the pro-
ceeds from the resale of the goods by the importer and the transaction value
cannot be adjusted to reflect this amount, or the buyer and seiler are related
and their relationship influences the price of imported goods.

(8) If the primary method cannot be used, alternative methods of valuation
would Le used in the following order of preference: (1) the transaction value
of identical goods for export to the same country of importation at or about
the same time us the sale of the imported goods. (2) The transaction value of
similar goods for export to the same country of importation at or about the
same time as the sale of the imported goods. If a valid customs value cannot
be established under either the primary standard or the first or second alter-
native mmethods, then the importer may choose either the third or fourth alter-
native method: ¢8) 1Deductive value computed by subtracting from the resale
price of the imported goods all the elements of value that have been added to
the goods after tiey have been imported. (4) Computed value, which consists
of material or manufecturing costs, profits and general expenses. This method
l:a :ix;neslar to the constructed value method in current U.S. Customs valuation
statutes.

(4) If the customs value of imported goods cannot be determined nnder any
of the previously described standards, the value would be determined using
reasonable means consistent with the principle and general provisions of the
Code and Article VII of the General Agreement on Tariffs and Trade,
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(5) The Code permits application of its provisions on elther an FOB or a CIF
basis. Technical provisions in the Code cover currency conversion, rapid clear-
ance of goods, domestic appeal rights, and publication of law and regulations
affecting customs valuation,

Igsues.—The Subcommittee is interested in receiving recommendations on how
this Code, as outlined above, should be implemented in domestic legislation.

B. ILicensing

Code provisions.—The President’'s January 4 notice states that a Code of
Conduct for Import Licensing Procedures now belng negotiated ‘‘deals with
the administration of import licensing procedures, rather than with the exist-
ence or extent of quantitative import restrictions. Its purpose is to simplity
and harmonize to the greatest extent possible the procedures which importers
must follow in obtaining an import iicense, so that these procedures do not
themselves constitute an unnecessary obstacle to international trade.”

‘The Code now being negotiated includes:

(1) A definition of “import licensing” covering administrative procedures
(e.g., procedures referred to as “licensing” as well as other similar measures)
requiring the submission of an application or other documentation (other than
that required for customs purposes) to a relevant administrative body as a
condition that must be fulfilled before importation into the customs territory of
the importing country.

(2) A requirement that the period for processing a nonautomatic import
license, including licenses required for the administration of quotas and other
import restrictions, should be as short as possible and that the duration of a
license not be 8o short as to preclude importation from taking place. In grant-
ing licenses, governments may taks into account whether previously issued
licenses have been utilized.

(3) A requirement that if licenses are required to administer quotas which
are not specifically allocated to supplying countries, iicense holders must be
free to choose the source of imports.

(4) A requirement that, if an importing country requires import licenses to
administer an export restraint arrangement between an exporting and an im-
porting country, then such licences shall be granted freely, i.e, automatically,
within the restraint levels {n question.
mglcisuea.—-'rhe Subcommittee is interested in receiving testimony on the follow-

ssues

(1) Boope of oode.—~What existing domestic statutes or administcrative pro-
cedures would fall within the scope of this Code?

(2) Implementation mecthod.—Should the provisions of this code be imple-
mented by Executive Order or through legislation ?

(3) International dispute settlcment.—What procedures should be estab-
lizshed to permit private parties to raise questions about foreign licensing prac-
tices which they wish to be pursued in the international dispute settlement
tor(l;n; ? How should decisions on the matters to be pursued internationally be
made

Requests to tesiify.—Chairman Ribicoff stated that witnesses deeiring to
testify during these hearings must make their requests to testify to Michael
Stern, Staff Lirector, Committes on Finance, Room 2227 Dirksen Senate Office
Building, Washingon, D.C. 20510, not later than Thursday, February 15. Wit-
nesses will be nctified as soon as possible after this date as to whether and
when they are scheduled to appear. If for some reason the witness 18 unable to
appear at the time scheduled, he may file a written statement for the record
in lieu of the personal appearance.

COonsolidated testimony.—Chalrman Ribicoff also stated that the Subcommit-
tee strongly urges all witnesses who have a common position or the same
general interest to consolidate their lestimony and designate a single spokes-
man to present their common viewpoint orally to the Subcommittee, This pro-
cedure will enable the Subcommittee to recvive a wider expression of views
then it might otherwise obtain. Chairman Ribicoff urged very strongly that all
witnesses exert a maximum effort to consolidate and coordinate their statements.

Legisiative Reorganigation Act.—In this respect, he observed that the Legis-
iative Reorganisation Act of 1048 requires all witnesses appearing before the
Committees of Congress to “file In advance written statements of their pro-
posed testimony, and to limit their oral presentations to brief summaries of
their argument.,” Chairman Ribicoff stated that in light of this statute. the
number of witnesses who desire to appear before the Subcommittee and the
limited time available for the hearings, all witnesses who are scheduled to tes-
tify must comply with the following rules:
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(1) All witnesses must include with iheir written statements a summary of
the principal pointa included in the statement.

(2) The written statements must be typed on letter-size paper (not legal size)
and at least 100 copies must be delivered to Room 2227 Dirksen Senate Office
Bulilding not later than 5:00 P.M., Tuesday, February 20, 1979.

(3) A limited amount of time will be allowed for the oral summary. Witnesses
who are scheduled to testify will be informed as to the time limitations,

(4) Witnesses are not to read their written statements to the Subcommittee,
but are to confine iheir oral presentations to a summary of the points included
in the statement,.

Witncsscs who fail to comply with ihese rulee will forfeit their privilege to
teatify.

Written statements.—Witnesses who are not scheduled to make an oral pres-
entation, and others who desire to present their views to the Subcommittee, are
urged to prepare a written statement for submission and inclnsion in the printed
record of the hearings. These written statements should be submitted to Michael
Stern, Staff Director, Senate Committee on Finance, Room 2227 Dirksen Senate
Office Building, not later than Wednesday, March 5, 1979.

Senator RiBicorr. The committee will be in order. This is the first
of two scheduled hearings on implementation of the trade agreements
heing negotiated in the multilateral trade negotiations, Thie hearing
does show that not only can we operate in the sunshine, but also in
ice and snow, and I would not have given you a melted icicle about a
half an hour ago that I would be here, but I am, and so are you.

On January 4, 1979, the President notified Congress of his intention
to enter into trade agreements. Under section 102 of the Trade Act of
1974, the submission of thic notice means a President may enter into
trade agreements at any time after A pril 4, 1979. As negotiations come
to an end, consultations with Congress regarding implementing legis-
Iation must now begin. There was no requirement that we have this
hearing under the law, but my feeling is that the trade agreements.
are of such major importance that a full airing of issues is required.
Even though we do not have the MTN report, we have a general under-
standing of what the outline of those agreements may encompass, and
we wouﬁl like to hear as many groups as possible as to their thinking
about the MTN, and especially how the MTN package can be most
effectively implemented in our domestic framework of laws and
regulation.

So our first scheduled witness is Mr. Roger G. Tewis of the National
Farmers Union. Welcome, Mr. Lewis. May we have your testimony ¢

Senator Hernz. Mr. Chairman?

Senator Risicorr. Excuse me. I want to thank Senator Heinz for
having agreed to open up these hearings and chair them when it looked
like I would not make it. T did not even hear you come in.

Senator Ieivz. Mr. Chairman, just the way the Post Office used to
be famous for getting through regardless of Tain, sleet, or snow, you
deserve to be equally famous.

Mr. Chairman, T would just like to join you in your opening com-
ments at these hearings. The MTN negotiations that are concluding
have great significance to our country. They are of such significance
because the quality of those agreements and the quality of the imple-
menting legislation that we will be considering will really determine
whether or not the American enterprise system is going to be able to
lmve rules for game that will allow us to stay in the game for the long

erm.

I speak for myself. The administration has succeeded in negotiatin
an agreement that provides for sufficient countervailing authority so
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that the economy of this country is not subject to the vagaries, intrica-
cies, and interference of government subsidies or other foreign govern-
ment activities, that disrupt the free market mechanism which should
operzate in trade. )

However, Mr. Chairman, I fear not just for the agreement the ad-
ministration sends down to us, not just for the implementing legisla-
tion, but for the continued survival of the American enterprise system,
which is based on buyers and sellers in a free market, determining the
best allocation of scarce resources. I would fear greatly that our pros-
pects for survival would be severely diminished and that we would find
that after a period of time of being subject to what is conventionally
calied unfair foreizn competition, we would find far too many in the
American business community coming before tha Congress, as indeed,
some have already, for what 1s essentially welfare.

Now, nobody wants any more welfare than already exists. If there
is one thing that you read in the public opinion polls, it is that the
American people are sick and tired of a welfare state mentality. They
are sick and tired of it, because they see that it has given rise to more
government, not better government; more expensive government, but
not more cost-effective government.

If there is a message that I think people first heard with the passage
of Proposition 13, heard perhaps more insistently on Capitol Hul last
November when there were some changes made, it is that a welfare
state mentality is not what the people want this country to be about.

And particularly, if you recollect the furor cver the Lockheed loans
and other attempts i)y the business community to come down to Capitol
lls{'ilcll’ it should be clear that corporate welfare is worse than any other

ind.

Yet, we should not kid ourselves. If what we get in these codes does
not set down rules for the game which we can play without intcrfer-
ence on & free trade basis, then corporate American will come to this
Congress for welfare, and that will be the end of vur economic system.

That is not something that this Senator wishes to see.

Mr. Chaiiman, I s«ppreciate your giving me this opportunity to
make these brief remarks, as I do think that what we are engaged in
here is of far more significance than Yerhaps might be apparent.

We will be listening quite properly to a number of people with
specialized, or even special, interests. 1 think that we should. But the
public interest and the interest of this country is really at stake in
these hLearings, not just the particular special interests of any one in-
dustry or group.

I thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Risicorr. Thark you, Senator Heinz,

Mr. Lewis?

STATEMENT OF ROBERT G. LEWIS, CHIEF ECONOMIST AND NA-
TIONAL SECRETARY, NATIONAL FARMERS UNION

Mr. Lewis, Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

I do congratulate you, Mr. Chairman, and Senator Heinz for your
hardiness in getting to this hearing, as much as I appreciate my good
luck at bel'ng%::are on time.

The Farmers Union, throughout its history, has been a champion
of the Reciprocal Trade Acts, and the multilateral negotiating rounds
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that have followed them, and we feel that the trade advancement
policies that have been pursued over the past 40 years have made
great contributions to the era of rising prosperity that our allies and
economic partners have enjoyéd over the years since World War II.

The present trade legislation does, however, give us some misgiv-
ings, Tﬁere are three primary causes -or our concern. i

?irst, we do not know just exactly what the agreements will provide.
They are not yet completed. Secret negotiations are still underway
and, in many cases, we do not know just what the final provisions
and outcomes will be of matters stiil under consideration.

We do not want to be rushed to judgment, Mr. Chairman, and we
thirk that the Congress likewise should forebear making hasty con-
clusions about the merits of the negotiations until the results are in.

Another problem is that we are concerned that perhaps some seg-
ments of American agriculture may be asked to pay a price that ex-
ceeds the benefits they will get, for those benefits that will be ac-
corded to other sectors of our economy. S

Specifically, the claims are being made that about $3 billion in
agricultural trade will be affected by provisions of the agreement. For
one thing, $3 billion is only a small segment of the total $27 billion
a year aﬁricultuml trade exports of this country. Even more im-
portant than that, the term “affected” does not mean that that quan-
tity of additional exports will be created by the changes in the trade
rules that are being negotiated. It means only that the procedures by
which trade is conducted would be altered in some way, possibly with-
out an, perceptible change in the volume of actual agricultural ex-
ports from the American farmers, and possibly with no perceptible
change in the price that will be paid at American farmers.

For example, one of our most valuable concessions relates to our
exports of soybeans to Japan. Japan has charged no duty on U.S, soy-
beans imported into that country for the past 4 years. We under-
stand that the American negotiators have secured an agreement
tentatively that the Japanese will continue that no-duty importation
admittance of soybeans into their market.

This one concession accounts for about one-fomth of the total $3
billion of affected trade that is referred to, yet it merely continues
the status yuo and we will have no perceptii)]e. change in the volume
of our exports of soybeans to Japan, nor in the price that American
farmers will be paid for them.

Another big set of concessions, with “affected” trade valued at
$400 million, is fruits and vegetables. Here, the big winner is citrus.
There are oan about 30,000 farmers in the United States who are
concerned with producing citrus fruits.

“Affected” trade in livestock and products is valued at about $900
million, another very large comgonent. The only potential actual
Increase in exports so far identified, of which I have been able to
learn, is a ]f)l:O]%ted increase of 34,000 tons %er year in sales of high
quality beef in Japan and Western Europe. That, of course, is a pro-

- jected increase after a period of years as a result of the trade con-
cessions that have been won.

That quantity of beef amounts to only about one-third of the volume
of beef that will enter the United States as a result of the increase in
the U.S. beef import quotas ordered by President Carter last year.
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These examples, in our judgment, measure up in short terms of
actual change in trade flows in comparison to the change in trade
flows that would result from our concessions on dairy commodities.
Dairy farming appears to be the primary sector that is paying the
price for this agreement.

When the trade negotiations are completed later this year, the
existing waiver of the American countervailing duty law will expire.
That is, the waiver did expire December 31, but it is expected that
Congress will renew the waiver to last up until mid-October when
tho negotiations are expected to be completed.

When that waiver expires, then the countervailing duty law .aust
be enforced upon articles imported into this country as a result of a
bounty or a subsidy paid by the exporting country. Almost all im-
ports into the United States of cheese, except those xrom New Zealand
and Australia, and a few high-quality specialty cheeses, cost more in
the country where they are produced and can be err »rted to the
United States only by the aid of a subsidy from the ex}.o: hagrcountr .

This subsidy is running about 40 to 60 cents a pound. The U.g.
Government has reported that imports of cheese from New Zealand
and Australia, end the types of specialty cheese th: . i ight bo ex-
ported without a subsidy, would total about 53-mill. - pounds per
year. That or a little bit more is all the cheese that we could expeci
our dairy farmers to be required to face in competition in cur do-
mestic markets if the countervailing duty law were enforced.

But the agreements being negotiated provide for making the
countervailing duty practically a dead letter, and enforcement of the
law would be suspended unless, and until, “injury” to American
farmers could be proved to the satisfaction of our (Government.

Moreover, the import quota for cheese would be set at a new higher
level, higher by about 500 Kercent, than the volume of cheese that could
be expected to enter if the countervailing duty law were being en-
forced. So a 500-percent increase in cheese imports is the price that it
proposed that our dairy farmers should pay for this agreement.

This price would cost American dairy f};u'mers annual imports or
about 190 million pounds of competing cheese each year, above what
they could expect if the countervailing duty law were enforced. The
new quota for cheese imports would be about 32 million pounds larger
than the present quota, plus the nonquota imports that are now enter-
ing as a result of the waiver of the countervailing duty law.

Although the actual effect on increasing exports has not been esti-
mated. and probably never can be measured accurately, we acknowl-
edge that the concessions being negotiated for soybeans, citrus fruits,
high-quality beef, tobacco and certain other agricultural commodities
do have significant value to the producers of those commodities and to
farmers generallY.

Apvroval of the trade agreements will also have great value to the
Eenerai ublie, because a turndown might be viewed as a shattering
:low to the psychology of the everall world economy.

But we think that 1t must be remnembered that dairy farmers do not
have available to them the adjustinent assistance that workers in other
industries do have, and that some concession needs to be made to com-

pensate dairy farmers for the price they will have to pay if the agree-
ments are approved.
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We suggest that an increase in the minimum support price for dairy
products to 90 percent of parity, would be a fair and reasonabte com-
pensation to our dairy industry for forcing them to accept enormous
volumes of subsidized import competition.

Another disappointment is the failure of the agreements to do any-
thing about the grain market. This is explained in my prepared
statement.

'Thank you, Mr. Chairmen. My time has expired.

Senator Risicorr. Mr. Lewis, we do ~ppreciate your testimony and
we do understand the problems that you have mentioned in your testi-
mony, and we have those same problems as members of this commit-
tee, use these agreements have not been signed, have not been
actually submitted, but we did want to give you and oth s an oppor-
tunity to e heard generally.

Once these agreements are submitted, you and your organization
would have the opportunity to parform, and we would appreciate your
submitting to the committee then, an analysis of the impact that these
agreements would have, speciﬁcaily on various phases of agriculture,

So when the agreements are here, you will be in a position to express
your concerns fully.

Mr. Lewis. Yes, sir. We will do that.

Senator Risicorr. We would hope that you, and other witnesses,
would feel free to give the committee the benefit of specifics that you
will then have when these sgreements are actually signed.

Mr. Lewis. Yes, sir, Mr. Chairman,

Senator Ripicorr. Senator Heinz§

Senator Heinz, Yes, Mr. Chairman.

I have one question, Mr. Lewis. In your testimony, you mentioned
cheese quotas. Do you believe those should be submitted as a part of
the MTN package, or should they be revised in accordance with the
normal section 22 procedures §

Mr. Lrewis. Section 22 does not adequately address itself to the prob-
lem of subsidized imports. It applies only to imports in general and
I do not know of any other commodity in our market wiere there is
such a clear and flagrant case of subsidized competition, as compared
to what our dairy farmers encounter. The countervailing duty law
requires that a countervailing duty equal to the amount of the subsidy
be applied and, if that were done, that would sharply reduce the
volume of cheese that could enter our market.

We think that the countervailin% duty law does need to be enforced.
The courts have held that it is the law of the land, and the law should
be executed, although it never has been done in the case of dairy
products.

If the agreements eliminate the effectiveness of the countervailing
duty law, I think it will create an extraordinary and ex eptional situa-
tion in that we will have entered into an agreement to subject our
dairy farmers to subsidized comﬁetition, which would be contrary to
our law and to our practice, the law stood before the agreements were
negotiated.

Senator Hexnz, If I can interpolate your answer therefore, would I
be correct in understanding that you believe that the chief quotas that
you refer to should be a of the MTN ¢

Mr. Lewis. I think that the cheese quotas obviously will have to be

a part of the MTN, but what is done about the countervailing duty law
42-078—1979——2
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also must be taken into account, specifically in respect to compensating
dairy farmers for the loss of that source of protection.

I do not kriow of any interest in the United States that faces a com-
parable situation where the Government has negotiated qwag the
protection of existing law against subsidized imports. And if that is
going to be accepted—and I understand that the agreements must be
voted up or down in their entirity without amendment—then I think
that something needs to be done to compensate dairy farmers for the
reduction in their income that will result from that increase in sub-
sidized import competition. )

That should be done through the price-support program. It could
be done very well by increasing the minimum level of price supports
for our domestic dairy farmers, .

Mr. Heinz. I understand. Thank you, Mr. Lewis,

Senator Rmicorr. Thank you very much.

[ The prepared statement of Mr. Lewis follows:]

STATEMENT OF ROBERT G. Lxwis, CHIEF FCONOMIST AND NATIONAL SECRETARY OF
THE NATIONAL FARMERS UNION

Presenting a statement of our views on the trade agreements now being nego-
tiated poses a troubling prohlem for me, and for the Farmers Union,

The Farmers Union throughout its history has champfoned the Reciprocal
Trade Acts and the other internsational economic policies and programs which,
interacting together, lifted the world out of the collapse of the 1930’s, sustained
our country and our allies through World War II, and then propelled victors
and vanquished alike into the lonzest and richest era of rising and spreading
economic prosperity the world hay ever known. Trade agreements were not the
prime movers in this achievemeut, but they took some of the sand out of the
eﬁonomlc and commercial gears and fariljtated the great economic growth of
the era.

I think the most important thing about these past trade agreements was
that they constituted a commitment of spirit and will on the psrt of the ‘“iaar-
ket economy” countriex, and demonstrated their ~onfidence in the evo’ving
system of global cooperation and advancing welfare that they shared.

Today there are three aspecis of the current trade negotiations that arve
troubling.

PROVISIONS NOT YET PUBLICIZED

First, we do not yet know what the agreements will provide.

Secret negotiations are still underway, and from all that we can learn, many
crucial decisions are still up in the air. The content of the agreements has not
yet been made public. We think that the Administration is premature in rush-
ing concerned parties, through its advisory committee system and otherwise, into
endorsing agreementr that are not yet completed so as to further its campaign
for approval by Congress.

We will not be rushed to judgment, and we urge tkat the Congress do like-
wise. The Trade Act permits ample time for scrutiny by the public and delibera-
tion by the Congress. If necessary, Congress can act to extend the time. The
tradle agreements will make far-reaching changes in exisiing laws and proce-
dures that are of fundamental importance to many farmers and other citizens,
and there should be full disclosure and full debate before decisions are made.

Secondly, some of what we do knew about the pending agreements s disquiet-
ing, to say the least.

Despite bold claims down through the past several years that this negotiating
round would be “agriculture’s turn”, much less appears to have been achieved
in comparison to what is heing pald to expand the volume and value of farm
product exports from the United States.

“BENEFITS"” MAVE THEIR PRICE

Let's examine some of the claims, and measure them against the price:
Spokesmen for the Administration make much of the ides that the agree-
ments will “affect” about $3 billion a year in agricultural trade.
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For one thing, that is a small fraction of the roughly $27 billion-a-year vol-
ume of present U.8. agricultural exports.

Evenpmore import:nt. “affected” does not mean at all that additional exports
would be created. It means only that the procedures by which trade is conducted
would be altered in some way, possibly without any perceptible effect upon the
volume being traded or the price that will be paid to the American farmer who
produced the commodity.

JAPAN WON'T TAX BOYBEANS

For example, one of the most valuable ‘‘concessions” being negotiated relates
to our exports of soybeans to Japan. Japan has charged no duty on U.8. soy-
beans imported Into that country for the past four years. The American nego-
tiators appear to huve won a “concession’” from the Japanese that the no-duty
admittance of soybeans will be continued permanently. This one ‘“concession”
counts for $770 million (or.e-fourth) in the 3,000 million total, because it *‘affects”
that yearly volume of U.S. soybeans sold to Japan.

Another big set of “concessions”, with “affected” trade valued at $400 mfl-
lion, is fruits and vegetables. Citrus—produced by only 80,000 farmers in four
states—Iis the biggest “winner’” among these commodities.

“Affected” trade in livestock and products is valued at $300 million, but the
only actual potential lncrease in exports so far identified is a projected 34,000
ton per year increase in sales of high quality beef in Japan and Europe. That is
barely one-third as much as the increase in beef imports into the United Stateas
ordered by President Carter last year.

MILK PRODUCIRS PAY “‘PRICE”

These examples measure up short in terms of actual change in trade flow in
comparison to the outstanding “price” that it i3 contemplated wouid be paid
for the agreements-—by dairy farmers. .

When the trade negotiations are completed later this year, the waiver of the
American countervailing duty law is scheduled to expire. The federal courts
held shcrtly before the waiver was adopted as an amendment to the Trade Act
of 1074 that this law means wtai it cays and mt-* »e enforced. Enforcement
of that law will require the V!nitvd States to impose a ‘‘countervailing duty”
iupon any imported articles if the country of export has paid a subsidy to get

t exported.

Almost all imports of cheese ‘nto the United States except those from New
Zealand and Australia are sv'sidized. Farmers in other exporting countrics
get more for their milk and rheese made there costs more than ifn the United
States. It is impossible .or 2xporters in those countries to sell much cheese
in America, other than sr.ll quantities of high-quality “gpecialty” cheeses,
unless the country govern™ .- pays subsidies of 40 to 80 cents per pound. En-
forcement of the counterva:iing duty lnw would stop ail such imports.

The United States government has roported that imports of cheese from New
Zealand aud Australia and of the types of “specialty” cheese that could be
fmported without subsidies totals abou" 53 million pounds per year. That or a
little more is all the imported cheese American dairy farmers would need to
face if the countervailing duty law were enforced,

But the agreements being negotiated provide for making the countervailing
duty law practically a dead letter. Enforcement of the law would be suspended
unless and until “proof of injury” to American farmers could be made to the
government's satisfaction.

Moreover, the import quota for cheese would be set at a new higher level
about 500 percent greater than the probable level of imports of cheese it the
countervaliling duty law were in effect,

The net “price” this would cost to American dairy farmers would be annual
fmports of around 190 million pounds of competing cheese each year above
what they could expect if the agreements were rejected and the waiver of the
countervailing duty law expired. The new “quota” for cheese imports would be

32 miilic . »sunds larger than the present quota plus non-quota imports while
the walv - of cointervafling duties is in effect.

I8 AGREEMENT WORT'Rl CORT?

Although the actual effect on increasing exports has not yet been estimated
and probably can never be measured accurately, the “concessions” being negoti-
ated for soybeans, citrus fruits, high quality beef, tobacco, and other agricultural
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commodities have significant value to their producers and to farmers generally,
Approval of the trade agreements has even greater value to the general publie,
for a turn-down would be a shattering blow to the world's economic and polit-
cal psychology. The questiou = whether the benefits outweigh the costs, and
whether dairy farmers are being tapped to pay more than their share.

Almost any Importation of dairy products directly displaces an equivalent
volume of milic and its products into the price support purchase program, and
is thus directly related to the level of producer prices that the government will
be willing to maintain. We contend that any subsidized importation of cheese
would constitute an “injury,” and should thus be barred.

But we have no confidence that an “injury test” would be administered faith-
fully and rigorously. We consider that any such concession in the trade agree-
ments would be all but tantamount to negation of the countervailing duty
statute, and that dalry farmers should be compensated accordingly.

The direct and practical means for compensating dairy farmers for the cost
to them of admitting sabsidized dairy products into our market should be to
guarantee that domestic milk prices wili not be permitted to be depressed un-
fairly, This can be done under the price support program, by raising the mini-
mum level of support frum & percent of parity to 90 percent.

If the Agreements are ap. coved, enforcement of the countervailing duty law,
the function of which relates directly to the purposes and operations of the dairy
price support program, should be administered in the U.8, Department of Agri-
culture by the same agency charzed with responsibility for administering the
price support program.

FARMERS GET NO “ADJUSTMENT” AID

In considering the compensatory benefits to be provided for dairy farmers if
the agreements now under coasideration should be approved, account should be
taken of the fact that farmers whose incomes are reduced by import competition
are not eligible for any of the trade adjustment allowances, payments, training
and relocation aid, low interest loans, and the like that are offered to businessmen
and workers who are injured by import competition.

Firms domaged by import competition may receive loans at low interest rates
of up to $3 million, Workers who lose their jobs can recelve allowances of up to
70 percent of their normal pay for as long as a year and a half, plus allowances
and services for training, seeking a new job, and relocating to a new community.

GRAIN “GIVE-AWAY” CONTINUES

Another disquieting aspect of the agreements as we understand them is that
there appears to be no provisions fcr ending the sale in export of American grain
at artificially-low prices below the farmer’s cost of production,

We are selling our wheat for the cheapest price in the world.

More than three-fourths of the wheat that is produced and consumed in all
the world brings higher prices to its producers than the “world market” price
that we get pald for our exports. Some get prices four or five times as high,

Consumers in all the countries that buy American wheat pay these higher
prices for all that their own farmers produce. Then if they need more, their
governments buy some from u3 &nd mark-up the price to the higher level their
own farmers get when they re-sell it to their own consumers,

This senseless policy is forced upon all of the grain exporting countries by
the United States by virtue of our predominant size In the grain export market.
More than half of all the grain that moves into world trade comes from the
United States. Canada, next biggest, ships one-fourth as much. Australia and
Argentina combined ship only one-fourth as much.

The big winners, albeit inadvertent, are our leading economic rivals in Europe
and Japan, and the Soviet bloc countries which buy our grain on the cheapest
resl terms in history while we spend hundreds of billions on military defenses
agalnst them. Japan makes a profit for its national treasury of $5 per bushel
on all the American wheat it buys when it re-sells to its own flovr millers, The
Europeaus skim off nearly $4 per bushel.

“WORLD MARKET' PRIOCE ARTIFICIAL

Even the one-fifth of the world’s wheat crop that is produr~d in the United
States, Canada, and Australia cannot be produced at the “woria market” price,
and the goveraments take special steps to pay their farmers something extra,
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elther out of their national Treasuries, or by charging their domestic consumers
higher prices.

Just a few weeks ago, Canada raised the minimum price of wheat for domestie
consumption to $3.40 a bushel. Australia charges flour mills $3.67 per bushel for
wheat to be consumed at home—§$1.80 a bushel more than the advance payment
that is made to Australian farmers for wheat to be exported.

In the United States, it is commonly believed that wheat producers recelve
deficiency payments to raise their total receipts from "sheat to $3.40 per bushel.
The truth is that farmers are required to keep 20 percent of their wheat land
out of work in order to get the payments, so that the payments are really
“anemployment compensation” for their set-aside acreage. Even so, the system
provides somewhat more in total take-home pay than the “world market” weould
yield by itself.

That leaves Argentina-——the only place on earth where farmers probably live
and die on ncthing more than the “world market” price for their wheat.

That is just & shade over one percent of the world’s wheat! And if it can be
said that the Argentina farmers and their poverty-blighted rural workers receive
their full “cost” out of what they get, they are the only producers on earth whose
eost of production is covered at the “world market” price at which the United
Staies government unwisely forces our own farmers and those in other exporting
countries to sell their grain.

Apparently there {8 no significant chaage to be made in the anamolous “world
market” for grain. There will be no significant dent made in the barriers thst
prevent American grain from competing in every country. Nor will there be
any agreement for raising and mailntaining grain prices in world trade to fair
levels adeguately compensating farmers for their production costs,

This is the biggest disappointment, and the biggest failure, of the trade
negotiations.

Senator Risicorr. The next witness is Mr. Stuart Watson.

I notice there are & number of witnesses representing the distilling
industry. Are therc any other witnesses here that are on the same side
of the position t-ing taken by Mr. Watson

Mr. WaTson. Yes; there are,

‘Senator Risrcorr. My only thought is that we could save time if
you could come up to the witness table at the same time and testify
together; you can each testify yourself and then you can answer the
questions, This way, we save some time of the committee.

Your name, sir?

Mr. Berrowrtz. Marshall Berkowitz.

Senator Risicorr. You are from the American Distilling Co.

STATEMERT OF STUART D. WATSON, CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD,
HEUBELIR, INC., FARMINGTON, CONN., ACCOMPANIED BY FRANRK
DAILY, PRESIDENT, KENTUCKY DISTILLERS ASSOCIATION

Mr. Warson. Mr. Chairman, Senator Heinz, I am Stuart Watson,
chairman of Heubelin, Inc., of Farmington, Conn. Seated beside me
is Frank Daily, president of the Kentucky Distillers Association.

We are members of the Distilled Spirits Council of the United
States and represent the majority opinion of the members of that
organization and of the U.S. distillinfg industry in opposing the pro-
posed change in the historic system of taxing distilles spirits.

Without enumerating the 25 or more domestic distillers which take
this same position, I would point out that we provide employment and
contribute to economic development in States from coast to coast.

Senator Rimsicorr. How many members are there in the Distilled
Spirits Institute?

Mr. WaTtson. Total membership—I will have to get the exact figure
for you, Senator.
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Senator Rmrcorr. I was just wondering. You say 25. You represent
what segment{

Mr. WaTsoN. Probably about 85 percent.

Senator Risrcorr. About 85 percent$ ] )

Mr. WarsoN. That is my figure, approximately. We can verify
that for you.

Senator Risrcorr. You can supply that for the record.

Mr. WaTsoN. Yes.

There are 31 voting members.

An opposite view on this proposal is held by the Seagram Distillers
Co. amf E}-(;iram Walker, Inc., goth Canadian companies, and by the
Scotch Whisky Association. . . .

I am sorry to say that in the international trade neq)tlatl'ons just
concluded, not one single foreign trade barrier to our U.S. industry
was broken down and not one single competitive advantage was
gained for our industry abroad—yet the proposed change in figuring
excise taxes will subject us to severe new foreign competition on our
home ground.

Senator RiBicorr. I am just curious, und Senator Heinz, you may
interrupt, too, to make any points as we go along. How much distilled
spirits do we export from the United gtates? . .

Mr. Watson. Our total exports are very smell. I think there isa
negative of $700 million a year.

Senator Rieicorr. We export ¢

Mr. Berxowrrz. Qur negative balance of trade is $700 million.

Mr. WaTsoN. A majority are imported.

Senator Risicorr. If I am in Iondon or Paris and ask for Smirnoff
vodka, that is not vodka exported from the United States, but what
you produce in Europe ?

Mr. WaTsox. Produce in Europe, produce in most countries of the
world ; yes, sir.

Senator Rmr.orr. So most of the liquor that is manufactured or
bottled in the United States i1s for American consumption {

Mr. WaTson. Yes,sir.

Senator Risrcorr. The imports into this country of distilled spirits
are very high, and exports are very low {

Mr. WarsoN. Yes, sir. The imports have increased over 300 percent
over the last 20 years. Of course, the excise taxes on imports have
betlaln reduced significantly over the years from $3 to 50 cents a
gallon——

Senator Rmrcorr. I gather, thou%l, that many of you people who
are distributors or bottlers in the United States are also large im-
porters, and you distribute under your own labels. You, yourselves,
import a large amount of liquor, do younot

fr. WaTson. We are an imrorter as well as & producer; yes.

Senator Risrcorr. I would ke you to develop for me, which I do
not understand, the relative impact.

Mr. WaTson. It varies greatly by country.

Senator Rmrcorr. What you sre driving at is that you bring the
Scotek in in bulk ¢

Mr. WaTsoN. Yes, sir.
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Senator Rmicorr. Then you bottle it under whatever the trade name,
which is an international trade name

Mr. WaTson. It might be a name that we own.

Senator Risicorr. A name that you own.

Mr. WarsoN. Yes, sir.

Senator Risicorr. 'Then you pay a tax on this bulk liquor, on the
barrels or drums or however you bring it in#

Mr. Watson. Yes, sir, $10.50 a gallon at 100 proof.

Senator Rimsicorr. And something is taking place in the tax setup
that would place you at a disadvantage?

Mr. Watson. Yes, sir.

lb‘en?ator RiBrcorr. Would you explain as best you can how this takes
place

Mr. Warson. We have had the proof gallon and the wine gallon
issued I guess for about 110 years, or however long this taxing system
has been in place in our country. It is not a discriminatory idea, in
our point of view, because anyone can bring a product in this country
on that basis.

Some elect to bottle their product abroad and import it as a bottled
product. If the product is less than 100 groof, they would pay the
100 proof tax on it, so the difference is what is involved here in the
two methods of taxing.

Senator Risicorr. In other words, if they bring in vodka under 80
proof, they are paying a tax based on 100 proof ¢

Mr. Warson. Yes.

Senator Risicorr. It is being changed in the MTN, they would only
pay a tax on 80 proof instead of 100 proof?

Mr. WatsoN. Yes.

They can elect to bring the product in, in bulk, and pay the same tax
that we do. It is their election to bettle in England or wherever else in
the world, and import it into the United States that makes us different.

Senator Rieicorr. I am curious. Why do they do that, because it is
certainly easier for them to ship in bulk than pay the expensive cartage
and freight

Mr. V&ATSON. It seems to be primarily a marke opportunity. If
you look at it, 1 think, in total, because in the United States the word
‘imported” has such positive meaning and a premium price can be
secured if the product, as they see it, is bottled and imported as a
bottled product.

Senator RiBicorr. In other words, if liquor comes over in a bottle,
you can put on the lable “imported.” Is that correct{

Mr. Warsox. Yes.

Senstor Rmsicorr. If it is bottled by you, you cannot say imported §

Mr. Warson. You can say, “Imported, not imported in the bottle.”

S:}x)mt,gr Risicorr. How many people actually look at that label to
see that

Mr. Warson. It is a difference established by present strategy for
many years. It is a little bit like the analogy that historically we had
two kinds of beer in this country, local beer produced in Connecticut
and we have what we call a shipping beer produced, maybe in St.
Louis or Milwaukee. And it was a story that the shipping beer sold
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as & premium and was perceived as a premium product over the local
beer. Over a period of years, most of the local breweries have gone out
of business and today the predominant is the shipping beer, or what
is perceived by the consumer as being & premium beer.

It is that analogy, I think. It is the same analogy that we are speak-
ing to here. That is, in effect, the way that the Scotch situation seems
to have developed through the years. Although bottled-in-U.S. Scotch
is a product that is in general distribution, the larger percent and the
growing percent of the Scotch sold in the United States is bottled in
the bottle in Scotland and shipped to the United States.

Senator Rinicorr. What would the difference be to you? You bring
in X brand of Scotch from Scotland in bulk and you bottle it in one
of your American plants.

Mr. WaTtson. I think the rule of thumb seems to be about a bottle,
as a rule of thumb, as a minimum.

Senator Krercorr. In other words, this method would cost an extra
$1, would lower the price?

Mr. Wartson. Generally speaking. Let’s taks Canadian, which is the
most common category. I think the spread between the bottled-in-
Canada Canadian whisky shipped to the United States and a bottle in
tl}:e U$nited States is rule-of-thumb to the consumer about $1 or more
than $1.

Senator Rirrcorr. It is your feeling, from the consumer’s stand-
point, forgetting your industry, that the consumer would be better off
1f that were shipped in bulk. It is the same whisky.

Mr. WaTsoN. In my opinion.

Senator Risrcorr. The same taste

Mr. Watson. The same taste.

Senator Risicorr. It comes over in barrels. You bottle it, instead of
bottling it in Scotland and sending it over here ¢

Mr. WatsoN. We have four different plants in the United States,
one in Connecticut, one in Michigan, one in Kentucky, and one in
California where we bottle Canadian,

Senator Rmrcorr. If I went into a package store and brought your
X brard of Scotch bottled in the United States, would I pay $1 less
for it than if I bought that same brand of X Scotch that was bottled
in Scotland and sent over here ¢

Mr. WaTtsown. Theoretically, you would.

Senator Risrcorr. Not theoretically, actually?

Mr. WarsoN. The issue is, are the products the same? These are
blended products. The tax rate here would be higher, you see. You
would pay really on the basis of the tax. About the taste of the product,
this is a matter of taste. But the tax difference would result in a
dollar a bottle, approximately.

Senator RiBicorr. More !

Mr. WaTson. More.

Senator Risicorr. You may proceed.

Mr. Watsoxn. Did I help clarify it some

Senator Rincorr. I am trying to figure what difference it makes to
the consumer.

Mr. Wa1N., We will document all that to you.

Senator Risrcorr. I am concerned what impact this will have on the
consunier.
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Mcr. WaTsox. Yes, sir. We will document all that for you in the fact
sheets, as well as the brief statement that I am making here. .
[The following was subsequently supplied for the record:]

II1, Tax WINE GALrON MrxrROD OF TAXATION I8 Nor DISCRIMINATORY

IF IT WERE ELIMINATED AMERICAN CONBUMER PRICES WOULD NOT BE REDUCED

The wine gallon/proof gallon method of taxing distilled spirits does not dis-
criminate against imports. A producer of Scotch whiskey, for example, has &
choice:

1. He may bottle in Scotland and ship finished products to the U.8. at under
100 proof and pay tex on the higher wine-galloo pasis, or

2. He may export the same product to the U.8. in bulk at over 100 proof, re-
duce its proof and bottle it here. He then is taxed on the proof-gallon basis as
is any domestic producer.

The ouly reason for choosing to bottle in Scotland or in other foreign coun-
tries is to give the product a premium image—so that the public will think the
product i8 better and be willing to pay more for it—when in fact it is virtually
identical to the same product bottled here. For that reason companies aggres-
sively advertise the fact that products are bottled in foreign countries.

Most major foreign bottlers have bottling facilities in the United States—
facilities with idle capacity; they could move their foreign bottling operations
here readily if they so desired.

Bottling abroad is purely a marketing decision and has notking to do with
taxes. Companies who bottle abroad are willing to pay taxes at the higher,
wine-gallon rate, pay far higher freight charges for moving bottled goods than
tliey would for moving bulk (because they are shipping glass and extra water
»3 well as Scotch) and pay more to bottle abroad than here (bottling here in
more efficient). WHY? Because they can mark up the price to the American
ﬁonsumer 80 much that they still can make more mouney than if th.y bottled

ere.

Elimination of the wine gallon method of taxation would not lower prices for
the American consumer. The “premium image” of forelgn bottled products al-
lows them to command the high prices they do. They stili will command these
prices even if taxes on them are reduced. Thus the estimated $110,000,000 loss
to the U.8. Treasury will not go to savings for the American consumer, but
will go directly into the profits of imporiers and foreign suppliers,

That this is 80 is demonstrated by the following :

1. Since 1938 the U.8. duty on Scotch has been reduced from $5.00 per gallon
to $0.51 per gallon, but the price of Scotch never has been redaced to reflect
these savings and in fact has been raised. The same is true of Canadian. (Duty
of $5.00 in 1933 ; $0.62 today.)

2. A major importer of goods produced at plants owned by it outside the U.S.,
while claiming in a written statement that a reduction in the tax on bottled
jmports would not hurt the bulk market or domestic producers, intimated that
prices on bottled imports would not come down. The company pointed out that
reducing the price of bottled imports might hurt their staiuc position with
affluent consumers and thus could be a depressing factor o sales,

8. The trend in recent years has been to increase the price of foreign bottled
prodr.ots to enhance and establish their “premium image.” Since 1967 the price
of foreign bottled Scotch has increased 209 percent wille the price of U.S.
bottled Scotch has increased only 10.7 percent.

During the same period the price of foreign bottled Canadien whisky in-
creased 18.9 percent while U.8. bottled Canadian has increased only 9.2 percent.

The U.8. Government should not eliminate the wine gallon method of taxa-
tion. Doing so would reduce the incentive to ship bulk whisky ‘o0 the U.8. and
thus encourage the artificlally high prices the American consumer pays for
“premium image” products bottled abroad.

Mr. Watson. As I have said, T am sorry thet the international trade
negotiations just concluded do not seem to indicate any quid pro quo
for our dustry. I believe this is exactly the opposite of the statec
objective of the 1974 Trade Act, and I quote: “To foster the economic
growth of and full employment in the United States.”
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The proposal presently being considered for excise tax modification
is presented on pages 194748 of the Federal Register last January 8.
It would eliminate the wine-gallon method of tax and duty assess-
ments on imported distilled spirits ana substitute the proof-gallon
method. This would provide a windfall in excess of $110 million a year
to a handful of foreign coinpanies, increasing their competitive advan-
tage in this country, reducing taxes paid to the U.S. Treasury, worsen
the U.S. balance of trade and prove extremely harmful to domestic
manufacturers of distilled epirits.

The present excise tax on distilled spirits is $10.50 per gallon,
whether imported or domestic produced. All imports are taxed at
this rate regardless of proof, up to 100 proof. . L

Our company and many other domestic distillers import spirits in
bulk at 100 proof and lower the proof at our plants to the widely
consumed 86 or 80 proof. Thus, we obtain a final product competitively
priced when we bottle here. . )

Foreign companies are free to do the same by opening bottling
plants in this country, and many of them have bottling plants here
with unused capacity, but they choose to bottle abroad, so they pay the
$10.50 excise tax on 86 or 80 proof imports. They want the premium
image of a bottled, import product.

By charging the excise tax on a proof basis, the proposed change
would take away the economic practicality of shipping into the United
States in bulk. As a matter of fact, it could make 1t economically, and
marketingwise, advantageous to bottle outside the United States and
ghip into this country, products that are now produced in the United

tates.

A change in the method of assessing the excise tax would cause
economic losses for the United States in several other respects. It
would imperil some companies engaged in the distilling or rectifica-
tion of distilled spirits.

It would lead to job losses in these companies and their suppliers—
particularly in the industries that furnish bottles, cartons and con-
tainers, caps and labels, for distilled spirits now imported in bulk
and bottled here. It would worsen the trade balance of the United
States, adding to the current annual trads deficit of $700 million in
distilled spirits.

It would deprive the U.S. Treasury of revenue officially estimated
at $110 million annually, and any attempt to regain this revenue
through higher domestic taxes will be passed on to consumers, adding
to the inflationary spiral.

Our own company has major production facilities in Connecticut,
California, Kentucky, and Michigan. By importing Canadian and
Scotch whiskies, rum, and tequila, in bulk, we have been able to provide
employment here in the United States and to sell at lower prices to
consumers. If this bulk importing were made impractical, we should
have to consider curtailing our U.S. production and open bottling
plants abroad, particularly in Canada and Mexico.

This would also mean manufacturing of spirits in other countries,
and a tremendous loss to U.S. farmers who supply the grain for grain
neutral spirits.

My company is the Nation’s largest purchaser of grain neutral
spirits. Of our four bottling plants, the first to feel the effect of this
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change in the excise tax would be our two coastal plants in Hartford,
Conn., and Menlo Park, Calif. .

Operations would wind down at these plants, causing a loss of more
than 100 jobs. The annual loss could amount to more than 2 million
case sales, valued at over $80 million. .

This would bring additional unemployment and financial losses
to our suppliers, aflecting the trucking and printing industries, the
suppliers o¥ other purchased materials, and the glass container plants
operating in Connecticut and California which would lose annual
production of more than 24 million bottles. ] )

Surely this was not the intent of the Congress in passing the 1974
Trade Act. .

The present, method of IevyinF the U.S. excise tax, which has been
in effect now 110 years, is hardly a trade barrier, nor is it a protec-
tionist measure,

Consider this record :

Imports of distilled spirits into the United States have grown by
233 percent over the past 20 years. Meanwhile, U.S. import duties
have been cut steadily and drastically since repeal from $5 per tax

llon of Scotch to 51 cents today; and from $5 per tax gallon of

‘anadian whisky to 62 cents. .

Foreign manufacturers enjoy another great advantage. Their ship-
ments, inade directly to U.S. wholesalers, require no taxpayment u. til
the product is shipped from the wholesaler to retailers.

In contrast, the U.S. manufacturer of distilled spirits must pay the
excise tax within an average of 23 days after he ships to the whole-
saler. Consequently, the f(’)reign manufacturer enjoys a profitable
advantage in the use of his money.

Furthermore, foreign distilleg spirits are protected here by special
appeliations of country of origin. No U.S. distillery may originate a

roduct called Canadian, Scotch, Irish, ac, or tequila. U.S.-made

urbon is fighting for the same treatment abroad. We are also fighting

high tariff barriers and a 24~_Bercent discriminatory freight charge on
shipments to Europe and the United Kingdom.

Senator Rimicorr. In other words, you do not get that treatment
when you sell your bourbon abroad ¢

Mr. Lewis. I have tl.e head of the Bourbon Institute from Kentucky.

Mr. DamLey. Bourbon is a distinctive product of the United States
and it has been recognized only in a few countries, whereas the United
States has recognized Scotch, Canadian, tequila, and rum as being
distinctive products of the country that ;produces them. ‘Therefore, we
cannot produce a product called “Scotch” and market it in this country,

The other countries—the United Kingdom, for example—do not
recognize bourbon as a distinctive ]!I)roduct as the United States, and
theislr can produce a product that they call bourbon and market it as
such.

Senator Risicorr. What I was trying to figure out, why did not our
trade negotiators try to get a tradeoff for the American distilling
industry if they were giving this break to foreign distillers?

Mr. DarLey. Senator, as far as we know, the tradeoff has not come
about because they have not gotten adequate concessions from the
foreign countries and, insofar as we know in the industry, there are
no concessions for the distilling industry. The concessions go to agri-
cultural and other collateral matters,
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Senator Ripicorr. What would be the unique American-produced
spirits in addition to bourbon that would have a market abroad?

Mr. Daney. Bourbon is our principal product and it is the one
besides the vodka that are marketed abroad. One of our large com-

anies represented here has several bottling plants around the world
wttling bourbon and selling; it abroad.

Senator RiBicorr. That 1s from beginning to end produced abroad,
not shiﬁped from Kentucky or Tennessee ?

Mr. DarLey. Yes; it is shipped from Kentucky in bulk and bottled
in the foreign country.

Senator Rieicorr. What break do you get on the taxes you an on
the bourbon that 1Zou ship in bulk? Do you get the same brealk that the
foreign distillers have in shipping to the United States?

Mr. Daey. No, sir. Their duties and taxes are much higher than
those imposed by the United States, and there is a whole list of those,
Senators, Each country, Senators, as you know is different, but in
general they are substantially higher both in taxes and in duty.

Senator RiBrcorr. I think we have your point, Mr. Watson.

I wonder if Mr. Berkowitz would like to add something that Mr.
Watson has not said?

SZATEMENT OF MAURICE L. BERKOWITZ, PRESIDENT AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER, AMERICAN DISTILLING CO.

Mr. Bereowrrz. Yes, sir. I have to go through this quickly, but we
exvort a great deal of bourbon to the Federal Republic of West Ger-
many and we have to bottle there because it is almost impossible to be
competitive in that market with bhourbon whisky, or any whisky,
without bottling it in the Federal Republic.

And therefore, we }...ve the choice to bottle here or to bottle in the
Federal Republic and we make that choice in order to be competitive,
in order to 1get our exports across to West Germany.

Senator Risicorr. To be competitive, why do you have to bottle in
Germany today, with the rate of exchange between the dollar and
the Deutsch mark and the wage rates, is it not cheaper to bottle in
the United States?

Mr. Berxowrrz. Yes, sir. It is cheaper to bottle in the United States,
but with a tax systein somewhat akin to what we have, it is necessary
for us to bottle there to be competitive. We can bottle here if we want
to, but to be competitive, we have to do that.

Senator RiBrcorr. In other words, this concession could have been
a traded-off on the tax of West Germany

Mr. Berrowrrz. Certainly, sir.

For instance, not allowing us to advertise grain products in the
country, any kind of alcoholic beverage made from grain,

Senator Rmrcorr. They do not allow you to advertise #

Mr. Berkowrrz. No, sir.

Senator Risrcorr. This is a trade barrier.

Mr. Berrowrrz. Another trade barrier, yes, sir. In Canade, they
have a monopoly (t)geratlon in each Province which, in effect, excludes
us from entering the marketplace in an independent way as the farm
exporters are alltfbwed l::o do in many om;h States.

e agencies for the companies u ere are unable to get
products into these controlledlzreas. P gt o
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Senator, one problem that we do have, sir, on page 4 of my state-
ment, I say, for example, bourbon must be aged in new, c amse(k
white oak garrels that cost upwards of $60 apiece. They can be u
once. Scotch and Canadian whiskies, however, can be aged in used
cooperage, very often bourbon barrels purchased from us for about
$6 apiece f.0.b., U.S.A. Their life expectancy is 30 years, .

Then, too, every gallon of blended whisky that domestic distillers
make, they pay a rectification tax of 30 cents. Scotch, Canadian and
Irish are alrb{ends, but are not required to pay that tax. .

Undoubtedly, one of the biggest advantages at the point that is
very important to us, foreign distillers enjoy over our domestic indus-
try is the privilege of bringing their bottled abroad merchandise into
this country “in bond” and thus defer tax payments for 150 days or
more. The importer can keep it “in bond” for as long as he wants and
then ship to a wholesaler who, in turn, can keep it “in bond” until he
is ready to sell it. It is only when the goods are finally shipped to the
retailer that taxes are paid.

So the im.porter does not have to finance the Federal Government’s
excise tax, but the American distiller must. . .

Senator Rimicorr. Could you not keep yours in bond if the law
was adjusted accordingly, if you kept it in a bonded warehouse before
you shipped it to your distributors?

Mr. ﬁmowrrz. 'We can only keep a period of grace about 21 to 23
days, sir. If we were given the privilege to ship in bond, it would
alleviate a great deal of our burden of financing the Federal excise tax.

Senator Rmicorr. Let me ask you gentlemen, did you ever discuss
your problem with our trade negotiatorsf

Mr. Lewis. Yes, sir.

Senator Rmicorr. You have discussed it with them? .

Mr. Lewis. We have. There have been discussions by our associa-
tion; yes.

Senator Ribicorr. Were these discussions iz depth?

Mr, WatsoN. I cannot answer that.

Mr. Daney. I understand they were, Senator, but no concessions
were made to us that would give us any hope that the trade-off would
not occur.

Mr. Bergowrrz. Senator, we wrote to Ambassador Strauss in depth
and at tgreat length on our problem and of the situation that would
occur if this went through, and we got a note of acknowledgment.

Mr. Warson. If I may add one thing, we never expected such a
negotiation would take place. I believe if it becomes a fact, it requires
8c an%e in the revenue code. It is beyond my comprehension why
our trade negotiators would consider giving a handful of importers,
Canadian and U.K. companies, an ogportunit for $110 million or
more a year. That sort of a windfall, changing tie tax system that has
been in effect for 110 years and which has been legally supported in
the courts on many different occasione.

Senator RinrccFr. Is the.e anything comparable when it comes to
beer? None of you are in the beer business.

"~ Mr. Watson. No, sir.
- Senator Risrcorr. What happens from a tax standpoint on imported
beer coming into the United States?

Mr. Watson. I cannot answer your question, but this general situa-
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tion of discrimination between the American product and the Eu-
ropean product generally exists throughout the world in wines,

n otl?er word%? the Uy'nited States is generally more receptive to,
and understanding of, the importing of products, alcoholic beverage
products, in our couniry than the reciprocal nations are. ]

Senator Rmicorr. That is curious. Your company has a large invest-
ment in domestic wines in California,

Mr. WaTsoN. Yes, sir. . L.

Senator Rieicorr. What impact does this have on domestic wines
that are produced? Some of those California wines are very, very
good. Many of them are better than imported wine,

What impact does this have on the domestic wine industry

Mr. WaTson. It does not, other than using the illustration that, the
same kind of favorable reception is giving to imported products, wine-
products, into our country vis-a-vis the countries which we attempt
to export into- That would include our neighboring country of Canada,
or Japan or elsewhere. _

Senator Rieicorr. In other words, you have difficulty exporting:
your wines to France or England or Germany or Canada{

Mr. WaTson. Yes, sir.

Under a different tax basis, of course. We are dealing with different
taxes on different products.

Senator Risrcc.v. I understand that,

Mr. BergowrTz. One peoint I do want to make, when you said what
would happen to the consumer, the premium products that are now
presently bottled in foreign countries, if they came in under the:
elimination of the wine gallon, proof gallon situation, from what we:
know, they would not change the premium pric: ~f the product to-
the consumer. That price would remain the same.

Therefore, the difference in taxation would go to either promote-

the products, imported products, coming into this United States by
heavier advertising and marketing or be an extra profit to the foreign
suppliers. They would not change prices. They would not before—
as Mr. Watson has said in his statement and I have said in mine that
the elimination of duties ovir the years has not lowered the price to-
the consumer.
. Finally, people who have lowcred the price to the consumer for
Imported products have been those distillers, bottlers, and rectifiers.
that have bottled that foreign product in this country. I happen to
epresent not only the American Distillery Co., but an ad hoc com-
mittee of distillers and 40 small bottlers and rectifiers throughout the-
ccuntry that are deperdent upon this, who in my personal opinion,.
sir, would be wiped out if wine gallon, proof gallon, came in.

Senator Rmcorr. Let e ask Mr. Cassidy, do you know whether this-
entire issue has been resolved ?

Mr. Cassoy. My understanding is that they have reached agreement
with the Europeans. They are still negotiating, and they are still
talking to the Japanese, but by no means has the issue been finished.

Senator Rsicorr. My feeling is that I am trying to get this to be-
an equitable agreement and it is very obvious what has happened here,.

that you are being used as the tradeoff for something else.
Mr. Berrowrrz. Yes, sir.

Mr. Watson. Yes, sir.
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Senator Risicors. ¥ hether they have taken into account the impaet
on your indust1y aud the consumer in this tradeoff, I do not know, but
1 would be willing to suggest that you be given another opportunity
to talk to our STR people 1n the next few days on this whole problem
ard certainly for then to ¢-nsider whether there is a potential trade-
off that can be made to th. + dvantage of the American distiller and
producer and seller. )

If this is something that you would be willing to undertake after
this hearing, if you will talk to Mr. Cassidy, he will make an appoint-
ment for you to see one of Mr. Strauss’ representatives for a full dis-
cussion ofy this problem. If this is something you will care for.

Mr. DarLEY. Yes, sir.

Mr. WarsoN. Thank you.

Senator RiBicorr. Senator Danforth ¢

Senator DanNrorTH. Do you have a specific legislative proposal you
would like Congress to consider ¢

Mr. WatsoN. We propose no change. We think it has worked well
and advantageously for the entire industry, import and domestic, for
a lem. period of time. We see no reason .or any change. Our whole
industry has been built on this principle. ) .

S-nator Risicorr. Thank you, gentlemen, and Mr. Cassidy will
arrange a meeting.

[The preparecf statements of the preceding panel follow:]

STATEMENT OF STUART D, WaATs0N, CHAIRMAN oF THE BOARD, HEUBLEIN, INC.

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee on International Trade, ¥
am Stuart Watson, Chairman of Heublein, Inc., of Farmington, Conn. Seated
beside me is Frank Dailey, president of the Kentucky Distiliers Association.

We are members of the Distilled Spirits Council of the United States and
represents the majority opinion of the members of that organization and of the
U.8. Aistilling industry in opposing the proposed change in the historic system
of taxing distilled spirits.

Without enumerating the 285 or more domestic distillers which take this same
position, I would point out that we provide employment and contribute to
economic development in states from coast to coast.

An opposite view on this proposal i8 held by the Seagram Distillers Company
and Hiram Walker, Inc, both Canadian companies, and by the Scotch Whisky
Association.

I am sori'y to say that in the international trade negotiations just coneluded,
not one gingle foreign trade barrier to vur U.8. industry was broken down and
not cne single competitive advantage was gained for our industry abroad—
yet the proposed chang. In figuring excise taxes will subject us to severe new
foreign competition on onr home ground. This is exactly opposite of the stated
objective of the 1974 Trade Act, and I yuote—"to foster the economic growth
of and full employment in the United States.”

The proposal presently being considered for excise tax modification is presented
on pages 18471948 of the Federal Register last January 8th. It would eliminate
the wine-gallon method of tax and duty assessments on impor ‘ed distilled spirits
and substitute the proof-gallon method. This would provide a windfall in excess
of $110 million & year to a handful of foreign companies, increasiug their com-
petitive advantage in this country, reduriug taxes paid “o the U.S. Treasury,
worsen the U.8, baloace of trade and pro' e extremely harmful to domestic manu-
tngrtgrers of dgs'dllcled gpirits. s

e present excise tax on distilled spirits {8 $10.50 per gallon, whether im-
ported or domestic-produced. Aii imorts are taxed at this mte'regardless of
proof, up to 100 proof. Gur compar.y and many other domestic distillers import
spu:ts eig gglk ast0 100 pfro'oi‘th ar? low:a)xt'a Il:he pﬂrgo{ at our plants to the widely
consum or proof. us, we obtain a final produ y-
wliren v:e bottiod l:ﬁm ‘. p ct competitively-priced

oreign companies are free to do the same by opening bottling plants
country, and many of them have bottling plants here wfth unusgdpcapaciit!yl, tll:tlx:
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they choose to bottle abroad, so they pay the $10.50 excis2 tax on 88 or 80 proof
{mports. They want the premium image of a bottled, import product.

By charging the excise tax on a proof basis, the proposed change would take
away the economic practicality of shipping into the United States in bulk
As a matter of fact, it could make it economically, and marketing-wise, advan-
tageous to bottle outside of the U.S. and ship into this country, products that are
now produced in the U.8,

A change in the method of assessing the excise tax would cause economic
losses for the United States in several other respects. It would imperil some
companies engaged in the distilling or rectification of distilled spirits. It would
lead to job losses in these companies and their suppliers—particularly in the
industries that furnish bottles, cartons and containers, caps and labels, for
distilled spirits now imported in bulk and bottled here. It would worsen the
trade balance of the United States, adding to the current annual trade deficit ot
$700 milllon in distilled spirits. It would deprive the U.8. Treasury of revenue
officially estimated at $110 million annually, and any attempt to regain this
revenue through higher domestic taxes will be passed on to consumers, adding
to the inflationary spiral.

Our own company has major production facilities {n Connecticut, California,
Kentucky and Michigan. By importing Canadian and Scotch whiskies, rum and
tequila. in bulk, we have been able to provide employmen: here in the U.S.
and to sell st lower prices to consumers. If this bulk importing were made im-
practical, we should have to consider curtailing our U.8. production and open
bottling plants abroad, particularly in Canada and Mexico. This would also
mean manufaciuring of spirits in other countries, and a tremendous loss to
U.8. farmers who supply the grain for grain neutral spirits.

My company is the nation’s largest purchaser of grain neutral spirits. of
our four bottling plants, the first to feel the effect of this change in the excise
tax would be our two coastal plants in Hartford, Connecticut, and Menlo Park,
California. Operations would wind down at these plants, causing a loss of more
than 100 jobs. The annual loss could amount to more than 2,000,000 case-sales,
valued at over $80 million.

This would bring additional unemployment and financial lcsses to our sup-
pliers, affecting the trucking and printing industries, the suppliers of other
purchased inaterials, and the glass container plants operating in Connecticut
g:du California, which would lose annual production of more than 24 million

ttles.

Surely this was not the intent of the Congress in passing the 1874 Trade Act!

The present method of levying the U.8. excise tax, which has been in effect
now 110 years, is hardly a trade barrier, nor is it a protectionist measure.

Consider this record:

Imports of distilled spirits Into the U.S. have grown by 500 per cent over the
past 20 years. Meanwhile, U.S. import duties have been cut steadily and dras-
tically since Repeal from $5.00 per tax gallon of Scotch to 51 cents today; and
from $5.00 per tax gallon of Canadian whisky to 62 cents.

Forelgn manufacturers enjoy another great advantage. Their shipments, made
directly to U.S. wholesalers, require no tax payment until the product is shipped
from the wholesaler to ratailers. In contrast, the U.8.. manufacturer of distilled
spirits must pay the excise tax within an average of 28 days after he ships to
the wholesaler. Consequently, the forelgn manufacturer enjoys & profitable
advantage in the use of his money.

Furthermore, foreign distilled spirits are protected here by cpecial appela-
tions of country of origin. No. U.8. distillery may originate a product called
Canadian, Scotch, Irish, cognace or tequila. U.S.-made bourbon is fighting for
the same treatment abroad. We are also fighting high tariff barriers and a
24 percent discriminatory freight charge on shipments to Fuorope and the
United Kingdom.

The proposed excise tax change would remove the bulk import advantage with-
out gaining a single concession in breaking down foreign barriers. This is com-
pletely unfair.

The Congress expressed an objective for negotiations in Bection 104 of the
1974 Trade Act:—*To obtain . . . competitive opportunities for U.8. exports
to the developed countries of the world equivalent to the competitive opportuni-
ties afforded in U.8. markets to the importation of \ike or similar products . . .”

Yet the foreign barriers have not been broken down. In fact, your Commiitee
ghould be aware that several major nations, including many which would benafit
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from thia proposed agreement, impose & higher tariff on bottled imports of
alcoholic beverages from the U.S, and other countries than they do cu imports
in bulk. Unfortunately, U.8. negotiators have not secured any change in this
practice, either.

The foreign proponents for change in the wine gallon method of excise tax
assessment have gone to court twice claiming discrimination, but the courts have
ruled there is no discrimination because they choose to bottle abroad at less than
100 proof.

Fgr all these reasons, we respectfully ask this Committee to urge the elimina-
tion of the excise tax chdange from the international trade agreements.

Surely, without compensatory concessions, our negotistors should not give
away what the courts have twice denled.

STATEMENT OF MARSHALL L. BERKCWITS, PRESIDENT, THE AMERICAN Di1sTILLING CoO.

Mr. Chafrman and Members of the Subcommittee to iuternational Trade.

I am Marshall Berkowits, president and chief operating officer of the Ameri-
<an Distilling Company, and I want to thank you for the opportunity to par-
ticipate in this hearing. I am here to present the views of an ad hoc committee
of U.8. distillers. It is our intention to flle a more detailed report on our position
within the time assigned by your committee. A listing of the members of our
group, which includes 40 of the nation’s smaller distillers and rectifiers, is
attached to vy statement.

Mr. Chairman, !n his message to the Congress published in the Federal
Register on January 8, 1979, President Carter advised that the administration
intends to sign an agreement as part of the multilateral trade negotiations that
would favor foreign distillers by changing this government's 111-year-old method
of assessing imported distilled spirits.

As U.8. distillers, we are unalterably opposed to such a change for these
Teasons.

(1) It would create further hardship for domestic whiskey makers already
copying with a declining market,

(2) It would force domestic distillers who import Scotch and Canadian
whiskies in bulk and bottle them in the U.S8. to discontinue these opernticns
andkrelocate their bottling plants abroad, forcing thousands of Americans out of
work.

(8) It would deprive the U.8. Treasury of $120,000,000 annually in revenue
on Scotch and Canadian whiskies alone, worsen this country’s balance of pay-
miexat: lalmd. concurrently, provide foreign liquor interests with a huge proft
windfall,

(4) It would create a tax haven for domestic distillers with facilities in
Canada by encouraging them to bottle many of their U.S.-made goods there,
depriving that many more American workers of their jobs and Awerican business
«©f our patronage.

(5) It would ultimately result in higher liquid taxes and higber liquor prices
to American consumers.

(8) And for what? To our knowledge, not one major concession has been made
by any of the U.8. trading partners that would enable U.S. distillers to expand
th;lr tmlesl;btx;md‘.J g ise :

resently, the U.8. excise tax on liquor, imported or domestic is the sgme:
$10.50 per 100 proof gallon. Distillers who bottle their products aboard are taxed
on a wine-gallon or liquid-gallon basis; that is, they pay the $10.50 per gallcn
rate whether the product is bottled at 88 proof, 80 proof or lower,

But when spirits are fmported in containers or barrels, the bulk shipments
enter at higher than 100 proof and are reduced in proof here., The importer
benefits from both a tax saving and lower freight rates which he passed on to
the consumer through lower retail costs. Bottled-in-U.8. Scotches and Canadians
grr:s \‘x;::tl'ly ;3(:% a llil‘th (ia more be:ow tl:he price of bottled-abroad spirits, The

8 propossl would eilminate the wine-
Mg‘; on:t theger;ce dltl.;(lsrenthl.l gallon assessment n;ethod and
& lasue before this committee is hardly new. Forelgn shi rticular
major Scotch and Canadian distillers, have been arguing fgge;a,enpr: tlmtla tl?;
taxiag of imported spirita on a wine-gallon basis is discriminatory.
th:V; r:::%r?:'x 80 have on: coutlgao&l:i t&ur different cases they have ruled that
4X assessment me olates no treaty o
iz it discriminatory, directly or indirectly. y or trade '“mment nor

42-978—1079—R
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Yore distillers who bottle abroad do so by choice. They, too, have the
prlvileglgn of shipping their spirits in bulk and bottling them at lower than 100
proof and thus benefit from the tax saving they are now pursulng through MTN

However, through countless millions in advertising they have promoted the
idea that premium Scotches and premium Canadians are bottled in their country
ofgrlgln. t of th blic seems to belleve them.

segmen e pu

Frantily. what the proxx))onents of change are seeking is the best of both
worlds. They went to bottle their products in the home country to perpetuate
that status symbol image but pay less for the privilege.

It crrtainly cannot be said that our tax laws have inhibited the growth of
imported distilled spirits in this country. Today they represant almost one third
of the total‘narket while lmp:lrted whiskies now account for almost one-half of
the whiskey consumed by Americans.

In compgrlson. imported wines account for 19 per cent of the U.8. total wine
consumption and imported beers represent only 114 per cent of the malt beverage

de.
mChanging taste patterns are the primary reason behind the domestic whiskey
distillers plight. We survive by diversifying our product mix. For example, many
of us have built up a fine business in bottled-in-U.8. Scotch and Canadian whiskies.
Because of their lower retail costs these products appeal to consumers who want
to puy imports but at prices they can better afford.

Now, it the Congress elects to eliminate the wine-gallon assessment method
and foreign distillers who bottle abroad pass on the savings to con mers, they
could effectively eliminate the U.S.-bottled import business because, ag I noted
earlier, the favorable pricing factor would no longer exist.

On the other hand, if foreign shippers were to retain their current pricing
levels, based on today’s impory figures, they would pick up $120,000,000 in extra
profits that cculd be invested in additional advertising to capture an even larger
share of the U.8. marke*

It should be noted th:  ur present laws and regulations already put the U.S.
distiller at a considerabl. .isadvantage.

For example, bourbon must be aged in new, charred, white oak barrels that
cost upwards of $80 apiece, and are in short. supply. They can be used only once.
Scotch and Caunadian whiskies, however, can be aged in used cooperage, very
often bourbon barrels purchased from us for about $6.00 aplece f.0.b., U.8.A.
Their life expectancy 1s 30 years.

Then, too, for every gallon of blended whiskey that domemstic distillers
make, they pay & rectification tax of 30 cents. Scotch, Canadian and Irish are
all blends but are not required to pay such a tax.

Undoubtedly, one of the biggest advantages foreign distillers enjoy over our
domestic industry is the privilege of bringing their hottled-abroad merchandise
into this country “in bond,” and thus defer tax payments for 90 to 150 days—
or more! The importer can keep it “in bond” for as long as he wants and then
ship to a wholesaler who, in turn, can keep it “in bond” until he 18 ready to sell
it. It is only when the goods are finally shipped to the retailer that taxes are paid.

But the U.S8. distiller Qoesn't enjoy such a breather. His grace period is no
more than 20 days from the time the good: leave the plant, Which means he
has to horrow the money to pay the taxes dus and at today’s high interest rates.

This i3 a form of discrimination in reverse |

Ergo, if the Congress, despite the objections of the domestic industry, decides
to eiminate what foreign distillers cal! a “discriminatory” tax, why not elimi-
nate the other form of discrimination and require foreign shippers to pay the
federal excise within the same time frame we do? It would put us all on an
equal footing and step up payments by 80 days, giving the Government earlier
aiccess to some $700,000,000 a year,

Or, why not extend the same privilege to U.S. distillers? That is, permit the
excise tax payments on their goods to be made within the time frame of foreign
ﬁ?nm!;p&t‘iégrs by allowing domestic producers to ship U.8.-bottled merchandise

Another consideration: If the Congress accedes to the uest of the U.
trading partners, domestic distillers who now market bnl;e(ilmports woul(§7 l?e
forced to relocate thelr bottling plapis abroad.

Furthermore, a change in the tav assessment method would, in effect, create
& tax haven for domestic disti'ers fortunate enough to have plant facilities
in Canada. Thelr U.8.-made gins, vodkas, cordials and brandies could be bottled
there and shipped back to the U.8. “in bond,” displaying the “imported” label.
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Better ret, it would relieve the U.8. distiller of responsibility of financing the
federal excise tax on these goods. The effect on the treasury would be a delay
{n the puyment of thr taxes due by 90 days oz more to the tune of $1.1 billion
annuslly.

Bar%zst hi: of course, would be our union labor and the people with whem
we do business in this country (printers, truckers, glass, carton and paperboard
manufacturers).

Mr. Chairman, the U.S. distilling industry has long hoped that it would one
day achieve in other countries the generous considerations accorded foreign
gpirits here. We gather that day 1is still far off. From what we have learned, our
negotiators have struck out, even though we understand that they have used this

roposed change as a bargalning point to win concessions for other industries.

That doesn't sound like a fair deal to us.

As it stands now, we have nothing to gain—and much to lose—if the proposal
1s adopted. We hope that your committee ugrees with us and that you will oppose
any change in the U.S. tax assessment method on distilled spirita.

Thank you.

STATEMENT OF ABRAHAM BUCHMAN, COUNSEL, INDEPENDENT AMFRICAN WHIBKEY
ABBOCIATION

Resolved, That the Independent American Whiskey Association hereby goes on
record and authorizes ita oficers, to take all necessary steps to oppose any
change in the present method of Internal Revenue tax and duty assessment for
distilied spirits, also known us the wine gallon/proof gallon. This position shall
be brought to the attention of Congress and the Administration ; explaining that
any change will do violence to the long term mathod of tax collection, on both
domestic and imported distilled spirits, and will most. seriously affect American
labor and American business, epecially the small besiness segment thereof,

LIST OF CORPORATE MEMBERSHIP

Alpha InAustries, 740 Front Street, Helena, Mont.

American Distiiling Co., 245 Park Avenue, New York, N.X.

The Black Prince Distillery, Inc., POB 846-691 Clifton Ave,, Clifton, N.J.

Bohemian Distributing Co., 11428 Sherman Way, North Hollywood, Calif.

The R. L. Buse Company, 2600 Carew Tower, Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

Distillerie Stock U.S.A. Ltd., 58-58 Laurel Hill Blvd.,, Woodside, N.Y.

Federal Distillers, Inc., 15 Monsignor O'Brien Highway, Cambridge, Mass.

Florida Distillers Co., P.O. Box 1447, Lake Alfred, Fla.

Glenmore Distilleries Co., 1700 Citizens Plasa. Louisville, Ky,

Ambur Distilled Produc!s, Inc., 2101 West Camden, Glendale, Wis.

Austin Nichols & Co. Inc., 788 Third Avenue, New York, N.Y.

Blanchard Importing & Distributing Co., Inc., 21 Fellows Street, Boston, Mass.

J. T. 8. Brown's 8on Co., Carew Tower—82nd Floor, Cinciunati, Ohio :

Consolidated Distilled Products, Inc., 8201 8. Kedzie Ave., ‘Chicago, Il

Duggan’s Distillers Products Co., 20 South Broadway, Yor.kers, N.Y.

Felton & Sons, Inc., 516 E. Second 8t,, Bouth Boston, Mass:, )
Calli‘irfank-mn Distillers Products, Ltd.,, POB 424-8256 North King Rd., San Jose,
N }Viluam Grant & Sons, Inc., 130 Fieldcrest Ave—Raritan Center, Edison,

David Sherman Corp., 5060 A Kemper Aveaue, 8t. Louis, Mo.

Trojan Distributing Co., Inc., 5455 South Boyle Avenue, Los Angeles, Culif.

L. & B. Wertheimer, Inc, First National Bank Building, Cincinnati, Ohi5

Standard Distillers Products, Inc., 806 East Lomba 4, Baltimore, Md.

M. B, Walker, 85-87 Wareham Street, Boston, Mass.

Senator Rmarcorr. Mr. Lundquist, representing the Distill .o
Trade Expansion Committee, AEH TP ng the st ed Spirits

STATEMENT OF JAMES H. LUNDQUIST, ESQ., BARNES, RICHARDSOI*;
& COLBURN, ON BEHALF OF THE DISTILLED SPIRITS TRADE
- EXPANSION COMMITTEE

Mr. LuNnquisr. Ggod.momin(f, Mr. Chairman and members of th"é
committee. My name is Jim Lundquist and with me today is Mr. Jamee
D. Ford, vice president of Hiram Walker in Detroit.
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Mr. Chairman, I appear here today to support con ional ap-

roval of the eliminat‘x)on of the h.istonyé QJscnI:nmatxon rought about

y assessment of imported bottled spirits through the wine gallon
and proof gallon method previousy discussed. )

I appear as counsel for the Distilled Spirits Committee for Inter-
national Trade—DISCIT—which group includes nine major produc-
ers and importers. It is estimated that members of DISCIT account
for well over one-half of imported bottles of Scotch, Canadian, cognac,
brandies, and gin from various principal supplying countries.

Mr., Cixairman, I have been with this issue for 25 years and have

articipated in the litigation, and throughout the litigation the courts
Kave held that it is in Congress province to discriminate if it sees
fit. So in my book, we are in exactly the right place today. We are
reviewing this discriminatory tax before Congress, which the adminis-
trative agencies, of course, have declined to overrule. L.

Senator Risrcorr. What res; ~use would you make to the discrimi-
nation against American-produced spirits? L.

Mr. Lunpquist. Mr. Chairman, the complaint about advertising in
France is really a complaint after the fact.

Senator Rmrcorr. I do not understand that. .

Mr. Lonpquist. The legislature in France has under review for the
sYring session of this year two categories of advertising appl?ng to
all spirits, whether they are grape spirits or grain spirits, and I think
the end will be that acfvgrtismg in the press and at the point of sale
wiil be a'lowed for all spirits, and there will be a total nondiscrimina-
toxX ban on spirits advertising on radio and TV.

1so, they talked about the discriminatory excise tax in France. If
the committee please, I would like to point out—and Mr. Strauss
knows this—on January 1, 1979, that discrimination was withdrawn
by the French Legislature. Advertising of grain spirits in German
has always been appropriate, and I think you can see the sales of Jac
Daniels and Southern Comfort on a steady rise in Europe where they
compete regularly.

In short, it i8 our position that Mr. Strauss and Mr. McDonald

.and the staff and other negotiators are indeed working on these prior
discriminations. I have no hard evidence they have concluded,
however. I must stress that,

Senator Rmicorr. This would be important if you are negotiating
on a certain category. Should you not take into account the relative
advantages and dvantages of one country over another!

. Mr. Lunoquist. Mr. Chairman, I believe that that has been taken
into account by the STR. I am not, of course, privy to the precise
negotiations. :
“limination of the so-called wine gallon, proof gallon of assessment
of imported bottles of distilled spirits through the current multileteral
rade negotiations is Justified and in accordance with the longstanding
ipartisan ﬁohqy of six administrations. Now, with adequate compen-
sation, Is the time for approval of this admitted nontariff form of
dlfjcnmmatlon. doa. of what th
ust to give you an idea of what this means, an importer of 86-proof
bottles of Scotch whisky is unable to present his prg?uot for taxll)xtion
at the overproof rate, therefore, must pay $10.50 per llon, including
the water, and just to quantify this, on & U.S. quart basis, this works
out to an additional tax now paid by U.S, distillers of $1.47 per gallon,
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or 3684 cents per bottle. If the bottled product is imported into the
United‘ States at only 80 proof, then the discrimination is 52.5 cents
r quart. . .
P en Congress considered customs simplification in 1951, Mr.
Chairman, the Department of Treasury analiysis of H.R. 1535, 82d
Congress, 1st session, commented on a section of that bill, which would
have climinated the wine gallon anomaly. The wine gallon assessment:

Operates inequitably as between domestic and fmported distilled splrits, since
the domestic spirits are always or nearly always above proof at the time of
tax nayment while imported beverage distilled spirits are generally under proof
at the time of importation.

Thereafter, in 1954, in response to an inquiry, the then Assistant
Secretary of State for Economic Affairs wrote:

Tk- ~epartment shares your views that the effect of tbis tax is to discriminate
ag ...~ .myported distilled spirits,

Juis Y Lsition was affirmed during a GATT working party meeting
"+ Ap 11970, when foreign representations were made that the U.S.
vine . llon tax was discriminatory under GATT. The U.S. represent-
i at this meeting acknowledged that the tax had a nontariff barrier
etiect that discriminated against imports of bottled distilled spirits.

Bringing it down to our current law, sir, there was recognition
of the wine gallon isste in the 1974 work on H.R. 107 10, by the House
Committee on Ways and Means staff, and certainly it was approved
by the Trade Subcommittee, at last. It listed wine gallon as one of the
susceptible nontariif measures. . .

Aside from the inherent unfairness as it applies to imported dis-
tilled spirits, the wine gallon method should be abolished. The dis-
criminatory method of assessment is unnecessary because it has ob-
vious competitive effect, disadvantaging importers. Sales of imported
gpirits relates not to the cost factors alone but is based in substantial
measure on individnal preference for one type of beverage or another.

As stated for several decades, the unfair wine gallon method of
tavation has been challenged by the executive department and indeed
by members of our group, as inequitable and therefore in need of
elimination, This dates back to 1948, Mr. Chairman, and notably the
U.S. distilling industry has previously urged all foreign nations te
adopt the proof gallon, or alcohol content, method of taxation and this
reference is a statement by DISCIT to the trade policy staff committee
on December 8, 1975.

As early as 1962, the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, and firearms and,
in 1977, the Com(f)troller General of the United States, reported that
the methods used for the determination and payment of excise tax
had generally remained unchanged since 1868 and in this regard, on
wine gallon required manpower for BATF and the distilled spirits
industry. Both agencies made sweeping recommendations for improve-
ment, but recognized that none of these improvements could take place
:s I(ﬁng as the wine gallon method remained as a domestic impediment

o change, A :

Currently, there is little or no foreign bottling capacity available
to take up any _&ossible shift to increased exportation in bottles rather
than in bulk. The total investment needed to accomplish such chan
18 80 enormous that it is safe to say thut no prudent investo. would
be prepared to put up the resources necessary to create offshore bot-
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tling capacity. Higher overall costs accompanied by lower productivity
and frequent labor disruptions in principal supplying countries really
makes such investments absurd. mportqntly, consumer preferences
tend to be directed by taste and brand image rather than cost and
place of bottling,

Finally, the abolition of taxation of the water content on 20 or 14
perceni water tends to be inflationary in anybedy’s book. .

In conclusion, Mr. Chairman, it is DISCI'T’s position that the wine
gallon proof gallon tax anomaly should be eliminated as it hus been
negotiated on & non-most-favored-nation basis where full compensa-
tion has been paid as a part of the MTM package. It is understood that
our very excellent negotiating teams headed by Ambassador Strauss
have obtained offsetting commitments on this wine gallon issue which
are of real benefit to U.S. exports.

This means, of course, that the Senate and the House can, for the
first time in my o./n experience, act on removal of the shadow over
sur old trade policy in the knowledge that beneficiaries have come
forward with payments in full. . .

It is understood that changes in 1 - ntariff measures appying to U.S.
dis%@lled spirits exports have, or are, taking place, I averted to those
earlier.

Senator Risicorr. I am curious. What are the offsetting benefits?

Mr. LunpQuist. The advertising requirements in France and the
discriminatory taxation that has applied until January 1.

Of perhaps more importance is the willingness of the major supply-
ing countries to recognize priority items on the U.S. shopping list for
agricultural exports, and I notice, Mr. Chairman, that Witness Lewis
-from the Farm Bureau mentioned tobacco. We understand that there
is a meaningful concession offered in vounterpoint to tobacco, and also
poultry is under active discussion.

In other words, it seems to us that for the first time our Ambas-
sadors, or designated hitters, as thegI might be called, who are on the
firing line have in hand substantial changes.

Mr. Chairman, to retain a discriminatory tax which has been
acknowledge by six administrations and indeed a number of times by
the courts, although they can do nothing about it, is unfair. It is like
saying that because the gny has been able to fight back for 20 years
with 023 arm tied behind his back it is not discriminatory to keep that
arm tied.

In terms of the dollars that were thrown around, $2 a bottle dif-
ference is really more like it, $2 a gallon difference, not $1, and the
customer preference for your premium brand Scotch whiskeys are not
unlike customer preferences for some of our American-made elec-
tronics and machine tools. There is a customer preference for a bottled
8pirit, and as such, with all the costs of shipping and the increased
c rﬁs, handling, and cost of glass with power shortages surely should
not added to by discriminatory tax, provided that on a most
favored nation, the supplying countries will pay for that, whether
jt is in the alcoholic beverage sector or in the farms sector.

That concludes my statement.

Senator RiBicorr. Senator Danforth

Senator DanrorTr. No questions.

Senator Risicorr. Thank you verimuch.

- [The prepared statement of Mr. Lundquist follows:]
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STATEMENT or JAMrs H. LUNoQuisT on BraaLr oF THE DIsTILLED SPIRITS
COMMITTEE YOR INTERNATIONAL TrAnE

The Distilled Spirita Committee for International Trade (DIS(‘}I"I‘) submits
this testimony in support of Congressional approval of the President's teptative
negotiation of international codes and other non-tariff measures, specifically
approval of proposed elimination of the historic discrimination against imported
bottled spirits resulting for assessment of U.S. excise tax on the wine gallonm,
rather than proof gallon, basis. ]

The Distilled Spirits Committee for International Trade (DISCIT) consists
of nine major producers and importers including, Kobrand Corporation, Schenley
Industries, Inc.,, The Buckingham Corporation, The Paddington Corporation,
Hiram Walker & Sons, Inc., Somerset Importers, Ltd., Joseph B. Seagram &
Sons, Inc., Renflield Importers, Ltd., and Schieffelin & Co. Each of these firms
imports bottled distilled spirits including scotch whisky, gin, Canadian whisky,
cognac, liqueurs, and other distilled bottled spirits. It is estimated that members
of DISCIT account for well over one-haif of all imported bottled scotch, Cana-
dlan, cognac, brandies, and gin from various principal supplying countries,
They also account for well over 40% of the U.8. domestic production of distilled
spirita.

Certain members of DISCIT bave actively opposed the wine gallon assessment
anomaly for over 2§ years. Submissions were made on this issue as far back
a8 the Dillon Round of trade talks in the 1850’s, the Kennndy Round of the
60's, and now the so-called Tokyo Round. Throughout this period, we have
exbausted all possible administrative remedies and bave challenged the legality
of this discriminatory basis of taxation before the U.S. Customs Court and the
U.8. Court of Customs and Patent Appeals. It is fitting that the matter presently
under negotiation is before the Senate.

Aside from the inherent unfairness of the wine gallon method of taxation as
applied to imported distilled spirits, the wine gallon method should be abolished
as not needed. When originally devised in 1888, this tax law served the principal
parpose of prevention or discouragement of fraudulent practices by certain
domestic producers. This reason for the wine gallon method as a preventative
for fraud is no longer required under present day business and tax assessment
practices. Moreover, as such a preventative, it was directed at domestic distil-
lers, not importers; in point of fact, there has never been a valid purpose attached
to the applicatfon of this tax to imported bottled spirits. The discriminatory
method of assessment §8 unnecessary because while it has obvious competitive
effects disadvantaging fmporters, the sale of imported spirits is the result not
80 much of cost factors, but in substantial measure due to the individual prefer-
ence of the consumer for one type of beverage or another,

As stated, for several decades the unfair wine gallon method has been chal-
lenged b the Executive Department as well as our country’s trading partners.
The coL 1sfon reached {s that the law is inequitable and, therefore, in need
of elimii .tion. The {ssue has been raised in every round of multilateral trade
negotiations since 1948, particularly by the European Rconomfc Community and
Canada. Notably, the U.S. distilling industry has previously urged that all
foreign nations adopt "he proof gallon (or alcohol content) method of tax assess-
ment (Ref: statement by Distilled Spirits Council of the United States, Inc., to
the Trade Policy Staff Committee, September 8, 1975).

As early as 1062, the Bureau of Alcohol, ‘Tobacco and Firearms (BATF),
and later in 1977 the Comptroller General of the United States, reported that
the methods used for the determination and payment of excise tax had generally
remained unchanged since 1968, and required exceasive form-filling and man-
power, both by the BATF and the Distilled Spirits industry. BATF and the
Comptroller General both made sweeping recommendations for improvement of
the excise tax system, but recognised that none of these suggested changes could
be satisfactorily implemented as long as the wine gallon method of assessment
conotinued ltio l;e used, - :

ur preliminary economic studies of the industry relating to this issue will
be submitted to SBtaft in due course. However, it 18 clear from a preliminary
review of the facts, and based on reports from members of DISOIT, that little
or no change in hisoric patterns of international distilled spirits production
and trade will result from the removal of the wine gallon basis of taxation.
Currently, there i{s little or no foreign bottling capacity available to take up
any possible shift to {ncreased exportation in bottles rather tuan bulk. The
total investment needed to accomplish such a change would be s0 enormous
that it is safe to predict that no prudent inveator would be prepared to put
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up the resources necessary to create such new capacity. Higher overall cosis
accompanied by lower productivity and frequent labor disruptions in the prin-
cipal supplying countries, would make such investments absurd for a distiller
to eveun seriously consider, let alone implement. Clearly, products already bottled
in the United States will continue. Importantly, consumer preferences tend
to be dictated by taste and brand image rather than by cost and the place of
bottling. Abolition of taxation of the water content would, we believe, tend to
moderate inflationary prices in the industry.

As the Senate considers approval of this negotiated removal of the wine
gallon non-tariff barrier, DISCIT believes that it is important to remember
that opposition to this NTB has been bipartisan and consistent. When Congress
considered Customs simplification in 1961, the Department of Treasury Analysis
of HR 15385, 82d Congr., 1st Session, commented on a section of that bill which
would have eliminated the wine gallon anomaly, in part as follows: The Wine
Gallon assessment—

“. . . operates inequitably as between domestic and imported distilled
spirits, since the domestic spirits are always or nearly always above proof
at the time of tax payment while imported beverage d'stilled spirits are
generally under proof at the time of importation.”*

1Hearings on H.R. 1535, Simplification of Customa Administration, before the House
Comm. on Ways and Means, 82d Cong., 1st Sess., pages 29, 30 (1931),

Thereafter, in 1954, in response to an inquiry, the then Assistant Secretary
of State for Economic Affairs wrote:

““The Department shares your views that the effect of this tax is to dis-
criminate age.inst imported distilled spirits.”

This position vsas afirmed during a GATT Working Party meeting in April
1970, when foreign representations were made that the United States’ wine gallon
tax was discriminatory under GATT. The United States representative at this
meeting acknovledged that the tax had a “non-tariff barrier” effect that dis-
criminated agsmst imports of bottled distilled spirits.?

$ GATT Wo.king Party on border tax adjustments, draft report spec. (70) 81/Rev. 1,
28 April 1970 at page 80.

There *was recognition of the wine gallon method as a non-tariff barrier
aleo in *he Congress. In the course of its work and report on H.R. 10710, the
House Committee on Ways and Means specifically listed the wine gallon method

as an example of non-tar.ff barriers which may be subject to elimination by
negotiation: *

8 Staff of House Comm. on (] N e oy

Prageal 4 Tarlﬂue(c?)mmm. Pﬂnxga)?nd Means, 93d Cong., 1st sess., Report on Foreign

“Although the President did have the authority to negotiate agreements on
import restrictions other than duties under section 201 of the Trade Ex-
pansion Act, it was never utilized, nor intended to be utilized, to the extent
contemplated under section 102 of the proposed bill. Under this section, the
President could negotiate agreements with reapect to any and all nonduty
measures affecting trade. Such measures could include, for example: (1)
ASP; (2) marking provisions; (3) standards codes; (4) wine gallon/proof
gallon; (5) final list; (6) health and sanitary requirements; and (7) Cus-
toms classification, ete.”

It has been alleged by certain interests that U.S8. bourbon producers cannot
compete in Europe. Indeed, over the past years there have been many impedi-
ments to grain-based spirit sales in advertising, particularly in the Common
Market. Now, however, thanks in major part to the multilateral trade dis-
cussions and overall pressures brought to bear thereby, matters have changed
considerably. U.8. made spirits can be freely sold and advertised in major
European markets including Great Britain, Germany, Holland, and Belgium.
Further, it is understood that France Is preparing to act on legislation eliminat-
ing the prior advertising ban on grein-based epirits (allowing advertisement in
the press and at point of sale). Yurther, the Freach discriminatory rate of
excise taxation waeg formally withdrawn on January 1, 1979,

In conelusion, it is DISCITs position that the wine gallon tax anomaly should
be eliminated, as it has been negotiated : on a non most-favored-nation basis, with

part of the MTN package. It is understood that our very excellent negotiati
teams headed by Ambuudor Strauss, have obtained offsetting coz:glohnenntf

&
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which are of real and long-term benefit to United States exporters. ‘This means,
of course, that the Senate and the House of Representatives can, for the first
time in more than 20 years, consider removal of this shadow over our entire
trade policy in the knowledge that beneficiary countries will have come forward
with payment-in-full. It is understood that changes in don-tariff measures still
applying to certain U.8. distilled spirits exports have also taken place. But of,
perhaps, more importance is the wililngness of major supplying countries to
recognise priority items requested by the U.8, for agricultural exports including
tobacco.

Respectfully submitt
nd o Jauzs H, Lunoquist, Of Counsel.

DISCIT MEMBERS

Kobrand Corporation, 184 East 40th Street, New York, N.Y. 10016.

Schenley Industries, Inc., 888 Seventh Avenue, New York, N.Y. 10019,

The Buckingham Corporation, 620 Fifth Avenue, New York, N.Y, 1{Vz0.

The Paddington Corporation, 680 Fifth Avenue, New York, N.Y. 10020.

Hiram Walker & Sons, Inc., P.O. Box 14100, Detroit, Mich. 48214,

Somerset Importers, Ltd., 1114 Avenue of the Americas, New York, N.Y. 10086,

Joseph B, Seagram & Sons, Inc,, 874 Park A.eénue, Now York, N.Y. 10022,

Renfield Importers, Ltd., 019 Third Avenue, New York, N.¥. 10022,

Schiaoffelin & Co., 80 Cooper Square, New York, N.Y. 10008.

James H. YL.undquist, 475 Park Avenue South, New York, N.¥,. 10016, Counsel.
Com. ?t.a J;enke. J. Waters, 1783 Eye Btreet, NW., Washington, D.C. 20008,

nsultants.

Senator Rmicorr. Mr. O’Bricnt

STATEMERT OF LEE A. GREENBAUM, JR., PRESIDENT, KEMP &
BEATLEY, INC., ACCOMPANIED BY GERALD ('RRIEN, EXECUTIVE
VICE PRESIDENT, AMERICAN IMPORTERS ASSOCIATION AND
DAVID PALMETER, COUNSEL

Mr. GReeNBAUM. My name is Lee A. Greenbuum, Jr. I am éoing to
be testifying instead of Mr. O’Brien. I am president of Kemp &
Beatley, Inc., of New York City. My company is an importer and
exporter and domestic manufacturer of table linens. I appear here
in my capacity as vice president of the American Importers Associa-
tion and specifically as chairman of its trade policy committee.

I am accompanied by Gerald O’Brien, executive vice president of
ATA and David Palmeter of the law firm of Daniels, Hounlihan &
Palmeter, Washington counsel.

The American Importers Association is a non-profit organization
formed in 1921 to foster and protect the importing business in the
United States. As the only association of national scope representing
American companies engaged in the important trade, AIA is the
recognized spo an for importers throughout the Nation. At pres-
ent, AIA is com of nearly 1,300 American firms directly or in-
directly involved with the importation and distribution of goods
produced outside the United States. Its membership ircludes import-
ers, explorers, import agents, broker retailers, domestic msnufacturers,
customs brokers, attorneys, ixmks, steamship lines, airlines, insurance
companies, &and others connected with foreign trade,

e welcome this opportunity to present our views on issues relating
to implementation of the multilateral trade negotiations.

The committee will appreciate, however, that the unusual manner in
which these matters must be considered presents certain difficulties for
AIA and, we presume, for other organizations concerned with interna-
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tional trade. Aithough descriptions of possible trade agreements that
are still being ne gi».ted have been made public, it is difficult to
comment thoroughly on agreements that are not yet in final form, and
upon legislation which has not been drafted.

This committee has asked for comment on existing law that may be
affected by the trade ngreements. The American Importers Association
strongly urges that the Congress and the administration include in
the implementing legislation package only, we repeat, only such
changes in existing law as are nccessary to give effect to the new trade
agreements. Any other changes in the existing law should be required
to go through t.Ze normasl legislative process, not the yes or no system
set forth in the Trade Act of 1974.

While the President’s spokesman assured us that the act’s goal of
an open, nondiscriminatory and fair world economic system is bein
achieved, we are concened that this is not the case. We are concern
that the apparent appeasement of some industries might be at too high
a price for the modest trade liberalization that the negotiations, at this
'uncture; seemed to offer. I would like to remind you of Peter

rucker’s warning on trade policy in his book, “The Age of Discon-
tinuity,” that we must put productive resources into tomorrow’s work :
the high knowledge, high technology industries. )

He points ont that when Britain made trade concessions, they sought

rotection for their old industries and gave up support for their new
industries. Japan, on the contrary, was willing to phase out some of the
old industries and pushed for and advanced their new industries. The
trade results are very apparent.

Time limits. The American importers oppose reduction in the time
permitted for investigations under the Antidumping Act and the es-
cape clause, The time permitting for a countervailing duty act investi-
gatisn might be reduced, as recommended. The Antidumping Act, at
the present time limit, should not be changed. On the countervailing
duty act, the law should require three or perhaps four determinations.

One, the preliminary in 4 months, or in a complicated case, 7T months.
Two, the final 3 months after the preliminary; and three, material
mj%l_-hy—3 months after final if appropriate requests are made.

ere there is little likelihood of injury, we suggest that a 30-day

ITC determination, as in the antidumping procedures, would be

tz?..pproprmm to save unnecessary cost, time an unwarranted uncertain-
ies,

On specific issues of interest to the committee, on the question of the
administering agency for countervailing and antidumping duties, pro-
Posa]s to change the agencies responsible for the enforcement of trade

aws require separate consideration by Congress. Is this legislation the
time or place for a thorough consideration of the restructuring of
Government agencies dealing with trade? We think not.

. On the question of definition of injury, we believe that material
injury should be the standard.

Definition of like product. We suggest the utilization of the phrase
“like or directly crmpetitive.”

On duties smaller than the amount of subsidy, we believe that duties
smaller than net subsidy should be s;;‘ex'mi '

Termination of investigations should be permitted.

. On the question of judicial review, we would like to stress that
Importers, as & matter of equity, really should have access to the courts
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and should be in the judicial process no later than domestic industries.
They should not ha,]ve to wait for long periods. Uncertainty 1s an
enemy of trade. ) .

Onythe countervailing duty act, we understand that serious cunsider-
ation is being given to proposals that would reduce the time allowed
for countervaiﬁlng duty investigations. Generally these proposals call
for a preliminary determination within 8 to 4 months rather than the
present 6 months and an identical reduction in the time permitted to
reach a final determination. .

If a preliminary determination were affirmative, thmroposals
call for a suspension of liquidation on imports on the products con-
cerned and re?erral of the case to the International Trade Commission
for an injury determination. )

The issues presented to the Secretary of the Treasury in most
countervailing duty cases are less complicated than those presented in
most antidumping cases. For this reason, in our view there is justifica-
tion for shortening the present 1-year ’flmmry investigation period.

The new countervailing duty act, in addition to containing the
material injury r~ uirement, should call for three determinations in
parallel to the prezont Antidumping Act. The preliminary determina-
tion as to the existence and possible amount of a subsidy; a final deter-
mination on these questions; and a determination on the question of
injury. . .

J’I‘llg code provides, as it should, that before countervailing duties:
may be imposed, it is necessary to establish not only the existence of &
subsidy and injury, but a causal connection between the two. It would'
be difficult, if not impossible, to determine whether injury in fact 1s:
caused by a subsidy if the amount of that subsidy is not known at the-
time that the question of injury is being considered.

The amount of the subsidy must be known before it can be deter-
mined that the subsidy is causing material injury. .

We realize that the countervailing duty subsidies code specifically
seems to call, however, for just such a simultaneous consideration at
the same time that it appears to call for adequate exploration of the

uestion of causation. As we have noted, the antidumping code does
the same.

We propose, therefore, that the new countervailing duty act gmvide
for the same solution to this problem as has been made in the U.S.
antidumping law, that is, withholding of appraisement or suspension
of liquidation for an additional 8 months at the request of interested

arties or perhaps in the case of the countervailing duty act of the
oreign government.

A request for a 6-month rather than 3-month suspension of liquida-
tion could afford an interested exporter, importer or foreign govern-
ment review of the question of causation based on the final subsidy
determination, but would provide, as the Antidumping Act now pro-
vides, for simultaneous determinations for those parties who do not
wish complete consideration on the question of causation.

We emphasize that even counterveiling duties technically would
not be imposed for an additional 8 months under our proposed pro-
cedure. The real penalty against the exporter and the importer, sus-
pension of liquidation, would be in effect even longer than otherwise
wovld be the case, The importer and exporter and foreign govein-
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ment who would request extended suspension of liquidation would
operate under a continuing penalty. .

In conclusion, AIA wishes to reiterate its concern over the price
consumers and importers apparently are being asked to pay in the
form of one protectionist concession after another to secure imple-
mentation of the reportedly liberalizing MTN package. We urge the
committee and Congress to reject attempts to buy this package with
quotas or other protectionist devices. To this end, we urge the com-
mittee to enact only legislation necessary to implement the package.

Along that line, we do not think that the Congress fully appre-
ciates the strength of our textile industry. Fiber exports are strong.
We are able to export fibers at low cost in this world today. Those
weaving mills that are strong in technology and in marketing are
doing a good job, holding their own domestically and are expozting.
It is hard to get a neutral opinion; 5.9 percent of Dan River was
bought by a Hong Kong company, Dan River Mills. They must think
that the American textile industry is not. a bunch of hopeless cripples.

We alse ask that our entire statement be accepted for the record.

Senator Rieicorr. Without objection, your entire statement will go
into the record as if read.

Thank you very much, gentlemen,

Senator DANFORTH. No questions,

Senator Risicorr. Thank you, gentlemen.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Greenbaum foilows:]

STATEMENT OF Lre GreEexBauMm, Jr., Presment, KemP & BEATLEY, INC., VicE
PRESIDENT, AMERICAN IMPORTERS ASS8OCIATION

BUMMARY

1. Introduction.—The resrults of the negotiations mandated by the Trade Act
of 1974 are becoming known, While the President’s spokesmen assure us that
the Act’s goal of an “open, nondiscriminatory, and fair world economie system”
is being achieved, we are concerned that this i{s not the case. We are concerned
that the apparent appeasement of some industries might be at too high a price
ﬂt)fr the modest trade lilberalization the negotiations at this juncture seem to
offer.

11. Time Limits—AIA opposes reduction in the time permitted for investiga-
tions under the Antidumping Act and the Escape Clause. The time permitted
for a Countervailing Duty Act investigation might be reduced, as recommended,

A. The Antidumping Act. The present time limits should not be changed.

B. The Countervalling Duty Act. The law should require three determinations:

(1) Preliminary—in four months, or, in & complicated case, seven months;

(2) Final—three months after preliminary;

((:]” Material Injury—three months after final if appropriate requests
made.

C. The Escape Clause. The present time limits shruld not be changed.
hIIII). gpeolﬂo Issues of Commitiee Intorest.—A. Countervailing and Antidump-

g Duties:

(1) Administering Agency—Proposala to change the agencles responsible
éor enforcement of the trade laws regquire separate consideration by the
ongress. .
(2) Definition of “Injury”—*Material” injury should be the standard.
(8) Depnition of ILike Prodwct—Utilize the phrase “lke or directly
competitive”,
(4) Duties Smaller than the Amount of the Sudsidy—should be permitted.
(5) Termination of Investigations—should be permitted.
(6) Judioial Review—Importers shonld have access to the courts at a
point in the process no later than domestic industries,
B. Bafeguards. Most-favored-nation principle should be retained.
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C. Valuation. Transaction value should be the preferred method of valuation,
except in clearly specifier ~ircumstances,

Mr. Chairman and me¢ .abers of the Committee : My name is Lee A. Greenbaum,
Jr. I am President of Kemp & Beatley, Inc.,, of New York City. My company is
an importer, exporter, and domestic manufacturer of table linens. I appear here
in my capacity as Vice President of the American Importers Association (AIA),
420 Lexington Avenue, New York City, and specifically as Chairman of its Trade
Policy Committee. I am accompanied by Gerald O'Biien, Executive Vice Presi-
dent of AIA, and David Palmeter of the law firm of Daniels, Houliban & Palmeter,
Waeashington counsel.

The American Importers Assocliation is a nonprofit organization formed in
1921 to foster and protect the importing business in the United States. As the
only association of national scope representing American companies engaged in
the import trade, AIA is the recognized spokesman for importers throughout the
nation. At present, AIA is composed of nearly 1,300 American firms directly or
indirectly involved with the importation and distribution of goods produced out-
side the United States, Its membership includes importers, exporters, import
agents, brokers, retallers, domestic manufacturers, custoras brokers, attorneys,
banky, steamship lines, airlines, insurance companies and others connected with
foreign trade.

We welcome this opportunity to ,.resent our views on i1ssues relating to imple-
mentation of the Multilateral Trade Negotiations (MTYN),

The committee will appreciate, however, that the unusual manner in which
these matters must be considered presents certain difficulties for AIA, and we
presume, other organizations concerned with international trade. Although de-
scriptions of possihle trade agreements that are still being negotiated have been
made public, it is diffirult to comment thoroughly on agreements that are not yet
in final form, and upon legislation which has not heen drafted.

Nonetheless, we are grateful for this opportunity to offer our suggestions as te
what the legislation should include, This is particulary true because, as we un-
derstand the mandate of the Trade Act of 1974, any amendments to the legislation
are prohibited. -

It isx good, therefore, for organizations such as ATA to have an opportunity to
contribute, in however small a way, to the actual creation of the legislation,
rather than simply to comment on what already has been drafted, However, we
would not want our remarks here to be misconstruer as necessarily endorsing
or opposing the overall package that we understand eventually will be prerented
to the Congress hy the President. ATA’s position on that simple yes or no vote
will be determined by its BRoard of Directors after we have examined the final
result of this ongoing process in which we are pleased to be able to pa:ticipate.

I. INTRODUCTION

In the Trade Act of 1974, the Conzress gave the Presldent an unprecedented
mandate to go forward and negotiate with our trading partners for the ‘“develop-
ment of an open, nondiseriminatory, and fair world economic system.” Congress
expressed its concern that barriers to international trade were “preventing the
development of open and nondiseriminatory trade ameng nations.” Accordingly,
Congress authorized the President to enter into trade agreements providing for
the harmonization. reduction, or elimination of these barriers and d:.stortions.

The results of thexe negotintions are now beginning to come before ug, and we
are told that the President has achleved, or is achieving, the goals extablished
by Congress.

We are not sure.

Press reports daily suggest that the price that appears is being paid for this
reportedly trade liberalizing package is excalating. There are reports that prod-
ucts ranging from steel to textiles, from dinnerware to dairy products, actually
would be subject to even more restrictive import regimes than apply now. We
wonder whether the overall results of the Multilateral Trade Negotiatiorns
(MTN) will in fact be trade liberalising. We wonder further, what other prices
will be paid in order +7 obtain the support—or the absence of opposition—of
protectionist elements in the United States, We suggest to this Committee and
to the Congress that the price importers and consumers will be asked to pay te
obtain approval of the MTN package conld well be tao high.

This committee has invited interested parties to comment on “* * * changes
to existing law which may be affected by the trade agreements * * *' The
American Importers Association strongly urges tbat the Cemgress :and the
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Administration include in the implementing legislation package only, repeat only,
such changes in existing law as are necessary to give effect to the new trade
agreements. Any other changes in existing law should be required to go through
the normal legislative process, not the yes or no system set forth in tbe Trade
Act of 1074,

II. TIME LIMKITS

One of the most controversial toples today is how long Federal agencies should
be given to enforce the statutes and regulations governing imports. Proposals are
being widely discusscd that would greatly shorten the time permitted for in-
vestigations under the Antidumping Act, the Countervailing Duty Act, and the
Escape Clause. With the exception of the Countervailing Duty Act, we believe
the shortening of time liiaits for these investigations not only is unnecessary,
but could be grossly unfair to importers and their exporter-suppliers.

A. The Antidumping Act

Under the Antidumpi.g Act, withholding of appraisement begins at the time
of a tentative determ . ation of sales at less than fair valuc. Thia is not later
than seven months (or in rare cases ten months) from the date a complaint is
flled with the Treasury: the 80-day summary investigation at Treasury plus the
six month Customs investigation (or the rare nine month Customs Investigation
in a “complicated” case).

From the point of view of the exporter to the United States, this schedule
is anything but excessive. Usually the exporter does not know of the filing of a
<complaint before notice is published in the Federal Register. Questionnaires
usually are sent to the known exporters contemporaneously with the institution
-of an investigation. (In some cases, neither the complainant nor the Customs
Service at the time of initiation of an investigation even knows the identity of
all of the exporters concerned ; these exporters, when located and notified, ara
under severe time constraints.) Exporters who receive questionnaires are given
80 days, with perbaps a 15-day extension, to respond.

These quesiionnaires from Customs ask for extensive financial and technical
information. The typical response to an antidumping questionnaire i{s of neces-
sity a massive document. Frequently, the data requested are of a type or In a
form that is not even kept by most businesses, a factor whick adds to the
exporter’s burden. In addition, tbe amendments to the Trade Act of 1974, bring-
tng Seles Below Cost of Production within the ambit of the Act in certain cir-
cumstances, has added enormously to the burden of responding to a questionnaire.
All of this takes time.

It is dificult to concelve how this can be otherwise. In earlier years, perhaps,
when products in international trade were simpler, responses also were simpler.
It is one thing to compare vrices in two markets for a basic commodity such as a
grain or a chemical. It is quite another to compare prices for sophisticated
consumer and high-technology industrial products. Comparisons of such mer-
chandise are extremely complicated and time consuming.

It is interesting to contrast the exporter’s administrative burden in responding
to a questicanaire to that of the American taxpayer. The taxpayer is given until
April 15 to submit a tax return for the close of the previous calendar year—75
days. Moreover, the taxpayer knows in advance that the return will be due, and
knows further the type of information that will be required. Finally, the instruc-
tions recelved will be in the taxpayer’s native language.

An exporter, on the other hand, has only 45 days—as contrasted with the
taxpayer's 75—+to respond to a guestionnaire that he usually does not know is
coming, which asks for information that he frequently, normally, will Lot keep,
and which is in English rather than his native language.

An American complainant in an antidumping case receives effective relief—
withholding of appraisement—in seven months in most cases, and {n ten months
in an occasional “complicated” case. He receives this relief, and consequent
detriment to the exporter and the importer, even If there {8 no injury in the
case, This time period i8 not unreasonable, particularly if the Committee con-
siders the delays that occur throughout our system of justice for all kinds of
disputes. Any reduction from the preseat time limits would so compress the

hasic fair value investigation as to make the determination one of extremely
1imited credibility and accuracy.

B. Countervailing Duty Aot

We understand that serious consideration is belng given to proposals that
would reduce the time allowed for Countervailing Duty Act investigations,
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Generally, these proposals call for a preliminary determination within three to
four months, rather than the present six months, and an identical reduction in
the time permitted to reach a final determination. If a preliminary determnina-
tion were afirmative, these proposals call for suspension of liquidation on
imports of the preducts concerned, and referral of the case to the International
Trade Comiission for an injury determinationr,

The issuer presented to the Secretary of the Treasury in most Countervailing
Duty cases are less complicated than those presented in most Antidumping Act
cases. For this reason, in our view, there is justification for shortening the
present one year Treasury investigation period.

The new Countervailing Duty Act—in addition to containing a material
Injury requirement as we discuss elsewhere—should call for three determina-
tions, in parsllel with the present Antidumping Act: (1) a preliminary deter-
immination as to the existence and possible amount of a subsidy; (2) a final
determination on these questions; and (3) a determination on the questfon of
injury.

(1) Preliminary determination.—Presently the Secretary of the Treasury
Is required to make a preliminary determination in Countervailing Duty Act
cases within slx months. Proposals have been made to reduce this period to
four months, and we believe that in most cases four months wnuld be a reason-
able time. Anything less could cause difficulties for foreign gevernments and
exporters in other nations simply in terms of gathering the data and responding
to questionnaries in time for the response to receive meaningful analysis, It
should be anticipated, moreover, that in many cases the initial responses to
questionnaires themselves may generate further questions from the United
States Government, or otherwise raise matters that would have to be clarified.
It would be short-sighted to assume that most cases could be handled by the
preseniation of a simple questionnaire and a simple response. This is particu-
larly likely to be the case when so-called “domestic subsidies” are involved.

This four month investigation period would be the time in which the basie
information concerning alleged foreign subsidies and practices would be gathered
by Treasury. It would provide, in effect, the record for subsequent Treasury
review, prior to the final determination, and possible judicial review of that
final determination,

Because of the importance of this basic phase of the investigation, leadiag to
A preliminary determination, we believe that the law should permit a particular
case to be termed a “complicated” case, and the Investigation extended for a
maximum of three zuvirths,

We recommend that the Countervailing Duty Act contain a provision parallel
to that contained in the present Antidumping Act, which requires the Secretary
of the Treasury, before extending the investigation, tc make a specific finding
that a particular case s “complicated”, and to publish the reasons for this de-
termination in the Federal Register. We do not believe that it is likely that
“complicated” cases would occur any more frequently under the Countervailing
Duty Act than they do under the Antidumping Act. Nonetheless, an occasional
complicated case could occur. Given this likelihood, the sensitivity of the issues
frequently involved in Countervailing Duty Act cases and the need for fairness
throughout the procedure argue for the existence of a provision that would
permit extension of these occasionai cases.

Of course, if a preliminary determination is afirmative, we wounld expect
that the law would provide for withholding of appraisement or suspension of
liquidation at that time.

(2) Final determination.—Bffectively, under present law, the Secretary of
the Treasury has six months to reach a final determination. We belleve that
the new law could shorten this time to three months—provided that adequate
time has been allowed for thorough investigation of the underlying facts during
the period preceding the preliminary determination. A three month review
period presently fs utilizved in Antidumping cases; in our view, a comparable
period would be adequate for Countervailing Duty cases as well. A period after
& preliminary determination, leading to a final determination, should provide
interested parties an opportunity to specify with some precision the specifie
issues they wish to raise for reconsideration and possible reversal at the time
of the final determination. These issues could be argued and briefed at an
!l::oml administrative hearing as is presently the case under the Antidump-

(8) Injury determination.—The drafts of the Countervalling Duty Act/Subsi-
dies Code that have been circulated indicate a requlrementgfor ts’i'xnultfmeonl
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investigation of the question of injury and subsidies. Simflar provisions al-
ready are contained in the Antidumping Code.

We believe that there are serious problems with the simultaneous considera-
tion of the question of injury and the question of the existence of a subsidy.
These problems go far beyond the minor administrative burden that simultane-
ous consideration of these two questions would place on the parties. The cru-
cial matter is the adequate consideration of the question of “causation” in reach-
ing an injury determination.

The draft Code provides, as it should, that before Countervailing Duties may
be imposed, it is necessary to establish not only the existence of a subsidy and
injury, but a causal connection between the two. It would be difficult, if not
impossible, to determine whether injury in fact is caused by a subsidy, if the
amount of that subsidy 18 not known at the time the question of injury is being
considered.

In cases under the Antidumping Act, the magnitude of Less Than Fair Value
margins often has important bearing on the determination of injury. S8imilarly,
in cases under the new Countervailing Duty Act, the magnitude of possible
subsidies will have important bearing on the determination of injury. LTFV
margins-—or subsidies—of 100 percent are likely to have a different impact on
a U.S, fadustry than LTFV margins—or subsidies—of one percent. In short,
the amount of a subsidy must be known before it can be determined that the
subsidy is causing material injury.

We understand that some have suggested that this problem could be avoided
by providing that the injury determination be due 80 days after the final de-
termination on the question of subsidy. Whether the question of injury is
determined by the International Trade Commission or sorae other agency, we
believe it unrealistic to expect a thorough and detailed in:vestigation of the
question of causation in such a short period of time. Consideration of causation
in this context would merely be an appendix to & major investigation that pre-
sumably already would have occurred. Parties in all probability would not even
have an opportunity to appear in person at a public hearing and argue adequately
the question of causation.

I repeat that we realize that the Countervailing Duty/Subsidies Code spe-
cifically seems to call, however, for just such simultaneous consideration at
the same time that it appears to call for adequate exploration of the question
of causation. As we have noted also, the Antidumping Codes does the same. We
propose, therefore, that the new Countervailing Duty Act provide for the same
solu.lon to this problem that is contained in the U.8. Antidumping Law: that is,
that withholding of appraisement, or suspension of liquidation, be extended for
an additional three months at the request of interested parties—or perhaps in
the case of the Countervailing Duty Act, the forelgn government,

A request for a six montl, rather than a three month, suspension of liquida-
tion would afford an interested exporter, importer or foreign government re-
view of the question of causation based upou the final subsidy determination,
but would provide—as the Antidumping Act now provides—for simultaneous
determinations for those parties who do not wish complete consideration of the
question of causation.

We emphasize that even Countervailing Dutles technically would not be im-
posed for an additional three months under our proposed procedure, the real
penalty against the exporter and the fmporter—suspension of liquidation—
would be in effect even longer than otherwise would be the case. The importer
and exporter, and the foreign government, who wonld request extended sus-
pension of liquidation would operate under a continuing penalty.

C. The escape clause

We understand proposals are under consideration that would shorten the
Escape Clause fnvestigation by the International Trade Commission from the
present six months to 90 days; and reduce the period of Presidential consider-
ation from the present 60 days to 30 duys. An amendment to achieve such
changes would be unnecessary and unfair.,

It is unnecessary, in our view, because there has been no showing of need
in any prior case of which we are aware. No industry went bankrupt or was
threatened with bankruptcy, or any serious difficulty, hecause of the six month
Escape Clause fnvestigation so far as we are aware. What, then, i{s the prohlem
such proposals are inteuded to cure? Where and when did they srise?

The chortening of the Escape Clause investigation at the ITC to a mere 80
days would be particularly unfair to fmporters and exporters. It is frequently
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said that since the ITC needs only 80 days for an injury investigation under
the Antidumping Act, there is no need for anything longer under the Escape
Clause. This definitely is not the case.

In an Antidumping investigation, exporters already usually are represented
by counsel, and importers are aware sf the proceeding. Thus, they are able
to organize and prepare their cases.

An Escape Clause investigation, however, is a totally different matter. Im-
porters and exporters have no practical notice ahead of time that a case is
being contemplated—although the complainant, of course, has all the time in
the world to prepare its side of the case. Frequently, complaints are filed in
industries where importers are not organized, are not represented by counsel,
and indeed, fn many cases do not even know what the International Trade
Commission and the Escape Clause are. Considerable time in these cases there-
tore is spent simply getting organized and obtaining information.

A mere 90-day investigation with a hearing scheduled at the approximate
mid-point (six weeks after initiation of an investigation) simply would not
give importers and foreign exporters adequate notice to prepare their side of
the case.

To be sure, the interests and rights of domestic industries are involved in
these matters, but so are the rights of American importers. Importers, too,
are entitled to procedures which permit them fair opportunity to prepare their
cases properly. Telescoping the Escape Clause procedure to a mere 90 days at
the ITC would deprive importers of this fundamental right.

Finally, we believe that the 60 day period required for Presidential deter-
mination should not be shortened. The International Trade Commission should
not be able (perhaps by as few as a mere majority) to reduce by half the
amount of time the President has to consider these important matters. The 30
d~ys contemplated for Presidential review in some proposals we have heard,
would barely be time for the formation of an interagency task force on @
problem, let alone provide for adequate consideration of all of the matters the
President must consider.

In short, no one has demonstrated any need for thiz type ot change in the
Escape Clause. Consequently, the time limits should be left as thiey are.

II1. BPECIFIC ISSUES OF COMMITTEE INTEREST

The Committee has asked for comments on some specific issues which T now
wottld like to address insofar as I am able, Given the shortness of time, the
Board of Directors of the American Importers Association has not been able
to authorize me to make specific recommendations. I can, however, comment on
several of these matters.

4. Countervailing and antidumping duties

(1) Administering agency.—There have been substantial discussions, we
understand, concerning the shift of the Secretary of the Treasury’s function in
both Countervailing Duties and Anitdumping Duties to other agencies, or per-
haps to a totally new agency.

The present jurisdiction of the Treasury Department in the matter of Counter-
vailing and Antidumping Duties is purely historical, having to do with the
revenue aspects of Customs duties. Certainly there is no compelling logical
reason why this particular function should., in the last third of the Twentieth
Century, remain with the Department to which it was assigned in the last third
of the Nineteenth Century.

But 80 far &8s we can see, there is no compelling reason to shift the funetion
elsewhere. More important than who makes the decision is its quality. This in
turn is a function of the quality of the personnel making that decision, and
their number in relation to their caseload.

We are aware that there has been much criticism leveled at the Treasury
Department in recent years concerning its administration of both the Counter-
vailling Duty Act and the Antidumping Act. Indeed, we would be less than candid
were we not to admit that a substantial portion of that criticism has emanated
from the import community. Importers frequently have felt that Treasury
decisions were arbitrary, ignored reality, were unfair, or were inerdinately
delayed o= in any of a myriad of other ways were not what they should have
heen. Many times importers would have been delighted or any other agency to
have made the decision for the simple reason that it could not have been any
worse from the importer's point of view.

42-978—1979——4
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The question is, however, what agency is equipped to do a better job? We
believe that at the very least this is a major question, particularly insofar as
it relates to proposals that all of the trade functions of the United States
Government should be lodged in a single agency. We co not belleve that these
proposals should be accepted or rejected in the context of the Congress’ con-
sideration of the implementation of the Multilateral Trade Negotiation package.
We suggest that these proposals themselves are important enough to merit
separate consideration by the Congress., They are too important to risk their
being inadequately considered within the context of something of the magnitude
of the MTN package.

(2) Definition of “injury”’.—The proposed Countervailing Duty Code deflnes
injury to mean “material” injury to a domestic industry, or threat of material
injury. This language differs from the *serious” injury of the Escape Clause
contained in Section 201 of the Trade Act of 1974, and the unmodified term
“injury” in the Antidumping Act. The implementing legislation should use the
term *“material injury” since this is the term that the United States has just
approved through negotiation of the Code. The legislative history, moreover,
should make clear that the term “mateirial” injury, while something less than
the “serious” injury required for an an afirmai!ve finding under the Escape
Clause, is substantially more than the mere unmodified “injury” of tLe Anti-
dumping Act.

(3) Definition of like product.-—Thae term “like product” as used in the code
is explained as “alike in all respects to the product under consideration or in
the absence of such a prodnuct, another product which, although not alike in all
respects, has characteristis closely resembling those of the product under con-
sideration.” We suggest that this concept is very close to and is the substantial
equivalent of, the term “like or directly competitive” as it appears in the Escape
Clause. (Trade Act of 1974, Section 201). The use of the term “like or directly
competitive” would encompass notion of substitutability or competitive impact
when appropriate, and would have the advantage of utilizing a term already
familiar in American trade law.

(4) Duties smaller than the amount of the subsidy.—We see no objection to
Tnited States law permitting Countervailing Duties less than the amount of a
subsidy, if the lesser duty would “remove the injury”. After all, injury is what
import restrictions are all about. We believe that the law should provide for an
International Trade Commission determination of the amount of Countervailing
Duty, less than the amount of the subsidy, necessary to “remove the injury”.
Such a determination could be based upon factors the Commission already uses
in establishing recommended tariff levels for its recommendations under the
Escape Clause.

(5) Termination of investigation.—Administrators of the Countervailing Duty
law should have authority to terminate investigations, in appropriate circum-
stances. These might include undertakings referred to in the Code,

(8) Judicial review.-—~Judicial review of Treasury determinations under the
Countervailing Duty ard Antidumping Acts is provided for In Sections 514
through 516 of the Tariff Act of 1930, As the Committee is no doubt aware,
amendments to Section 5i8 in the Trade Act of 1974 brought to the domestic
industry judicial review ot negative Countervailing Duty determinations for
the first time.

This attempt to provide equal opportunity for judicial review as between
domestic industries and importers, however, has not succeeded. Domestic in.
dustries may obtain immedinte judicial review of negative Treasury determina-
tions, but importers may not obtain immediate judicial review of negative Treas-
ury determinations, but Impcrters may not obtain immediate judicial review of
afirmative determinations,

We must wait to protest an entry, which, in the case of the Antidumping Act,
requires the preparation of master lists and the actual assessment and collection
of a dumping duty. As this committee well knows, this can take years. The result,
therefore, is to deprive importers of the effective judicial review that waas ex-
tended to domestic interests by the Trade Act of 1974. Accordingly, the imple-
menting legislation should specifically provide that importers may seek review
in the Customs Court of affirmative determinations in Countervailing Duty and
Antidumping cases to parallel the review available to domestic industries,

B. Safeguards

As the Committee's statement indicates, the proposed Safeguard Code may per-
mit departures from most-favored-nation treatment in & number of instances.
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“Universal application of most-favored-nation treatment hag been a goal of United
States trade policy since at least the 1980's, Departures from MFN principles by
others frequently have resulted in discrimination against the United States. No
doubt these factors had great bearing on the MFN principles thac underlie
GATT, Congress should reject pruposals to depart from MFN except in special
circumstances, such as the broad, internationally recognized program of prefer-
.ences for developing countries. After all, as was said at the outaet of this state-
ment, the purpose of the Trade Act of 1974, and the negotiations it authcri~es,
is “to promote the development of an open, nondiscriminatory, and fair wocld
.economic system. . . .” [Emphasis added]

C. Valuation

AIA is able to respond in detail to the Committee’s request for recommenda-
tions on how the new Customs Valuation Code should be implemented, primarily
because AIA, in the last several years, has been directly involved in the develop-
ment of the Code in Geneva.

In late 1972 and early 1973 the then Tariff Commission held hearings on a
proposal by its staff for a possible new Valuation System which could be adopted
as a uniform international standard. This Tariff Commission staff proposed
would have put the United States on a slightly modified version of the Brussels
Definition of Value.

The Araerican Importers Association responded with a paper which in many
ways was the father of the MTN Valuation Code. Its basic premise was that both
the U.S. and the Brussels valuation system should be discarded and replaced by
2 new system based on “transaction value.”” That is just what has now emerged
from the Jeneva negotiations.

U.8, law should be amended to give full effect to the new Valuation Code
which is based on transaction value, and rigidly prescribes the manner and ex-
tent which Customs authorities may deviate from this standard.

In order to avoid unnecessary repetition, AIA will not, in this statement offer
gpecific statutory language. Rather, we endorse and adopt the testimony of Mr,
Saul Sherman, who will appear later in these hearings on behalf of the Joint
Industry Group of which AIA is a member., Mr. Sherman’s testimony will deal
extensively with this subject.

IV. CONCLUSION

In conclusion, Mr. Chairman, AIA wishes to reiterate its concern over the price
consumers and importers apparently are being asked to pay, in the form of one
protectionist concession after another, to secure implementation of the reportedly
lberalizing MTN package. We urge the Committee and the Congress to reject
attempts to buy this package with quotas or other protectionist devices. To this
end, weo urge the Committee to enact only the legislation necessary to imple-
ment the package, not the widely-rumored “appropriate sweeteners”.

We appreciate this opportunity to express our views. We look forward to
working with you and your staff in the coming weeks in what we hope will be

an effective dialogue “to promote the development of an open, nondiscriminatory,
and fair world economic system",

Senator Risrcorr. Mr. Robert Best.

STATEMENT OF ROBERT A. BEST, EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDERT,
AMERICAN LEAGUE FOR EXPORTS AND SECURITY ASSISTANCE

Mr. Best. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It is good to be back.

Mr. Chairman, members of the subcommittee, you and your able
staff deserve a lot of credit for holding this hearing and raising a
number of issues relating to the various draft MTN codes that have
been circulating in this town for the past month. To some it might
seem premature to hold this kind of hearing before the negotiations
are formally complete and the agreement formally submitted to
Congress. But I believe this is most appropriate because the codes
themselves are subject to so many interpretations it is difficult for

-anybody to make a fair judgment on vxactly what they mean or how
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they will be implemented by the various signatories. This is not in--
tended to be a criticism of the agreements or of Bob Strauss but
merely a view that negotiated agreements tend to be ambiguous and
require interpretations for appropriate implementing legislation.

efore discussing the matters raised in the subcommittee’s press.
release I might say a word about the American League for Exports.
and Security Assistance (ALESA). Founded in 1977, ALESA is a.
unique labor-management organization whose fundamental purpose
is to encourage “jobs through export” trade and tax programs. We
currently have 34 corporate members who export over $20 billion in
manufactured products and employ over 800,000 Americans in all 50
States and four international unions representing over 4 million
American workers. With a positive export policy as its primary pur-
pose in life, obviously ALESA has a great interest in the MTN
agreements. .

I will confine my comments to a few arcas raised in the press re-
lease of February 8 and then provide some related thoughts on cur-
rent Government organization and direction in administering U.S.
trade policy.

SUBSIDIES—COUNTERVAILING DUTY CODE

First, with regard to the subsidies/countervailing duty code, there
are still ambiguities as to which subsidies are legal and which are not.
Clearly indirect tax rebates, such as value added—are legal but direct
tax rebates (and deferrals) presumably are not. Yet we understand
that the DISC will remain as it is (some even say it's not illegal under
the new code). The decisions of a lot of business organizations to
slnpport, or oppose the package depends on a clear understanding of
that issue.

I strongly believe that in the face of a $40 billion trade deficit (cif

basis) it would be folly for the United States to eliminate DISC;
particularly since I can’t really see precisely what the Europeans
and Japanese are going to give up in the subsidies/cvd code—not
border tax rebates, not agricultural restitution payments, not the
direct subsidies that the GATT arbitration panel found to be illegal.
I would strongly urge this subcommittee to make it clear in the legis-
lative history of'y the agreement that Congress does not intend to elimi-
nate DISC until a better substitute is found. Perhaps the staff can
develop a better substitute for your consideration in this Congress.
Why don’t we go to school on the Europeans and Japanese and adopt
some of their own tax practices which encourage exports and discour-
age imports?
I do not want to take the committec’s time in trying to evaluate
the definitions of “injury,” “industry,” or some of the other issues
raised in the press release. Your staff knows that I am available to
go into these matters in whatever detail they desire.

ADMINISTRATION OF TRADE POLICY

Other questions in your press release relate to which agency should
administer the codes and trade laws that will result from these agree-
ments if approved by Congress. This raises the broader question of
whether we need a Department of Trade as suggested in the Ribicof]-
Roth bill (8. 377). Although it is clear that any department. or agency
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-of the executive tends to have as much influence on executive deci-
sions as the department head has with the White House or key con-
gressional committees, and therefore simply creating another de-
partment will not solve a problem, we have come to the conclusion
that if the mandate and statutory functions of the Department of
"“Trade and Investment were clearly spelled out and provided for a
positive and coherent trade policy, it would be very helpful to con-
solidate the current helter-skelter trade a%gamtus that spans 57 agen-
.cies of Government into a cohesive unit. We therefore support S. 377
with the suggestion that the department be given a clear export orien-
tation in its purpose and statutory functions. .

In doing some preparatory reading for this hearing, I came across
a report by Senator Abraham Ribicoff on “A Strategy for Interna-
tional Trade Negotiations” published on February 9, 1973. Your
findings and recommendations in that report are as valid today as they
were 6 years ago.

Among your findings were:

® ¢ ¢ that the United States institutionally is ill prepared to deal with long-
‘range trade policy.

¢ ¢ ¢ the issues still remain fragmented among a host of bureauciacies.

Foreign officials noted that there was no single source in Washington to
‘whom they could turn for an authoritative description of the American position

-on trade matters. N

At that time you gave the following recommendation for executive
reorganization :

The disparate policy strongholds in economic policy in the executive branch
must be brought together under a coherent management structure. This must

"be doune openly so that everyone knows where to go for answers. * ® * After
this is done, coordinated policies must be Implemented throughout our Gov-
ernment 8o that everyone in an official capacity gets the word. It 1s not a matter
-of making trade policy under new headings, but moving trade up to the level
©of other considerations. Anything less than such an effort will be harmful to
our most vital economic political aid security interesta.?

Mr. Chairman, we could not say it any better. If a coherent trade
policy apparatus was important 6 years ago, it is eritical today with
the dramatic changes in the world political and economic structures

-and alliances.

We cannot emphasize the importance of defining a coherent trade
and commercial policy for the United States. That policy must be
based on realistic views on the world marketplace and tﬁe current U.S.
position in that market. Amon;z the cur:ant realities are:

. The existence of cartcl-dictated energy prices for the foreseeable
uture ;

Aggressive exporting policies of other oil consuming nations with
considerable Government-industry cooperation.

An inability on the part of the United States to dictate the internal
policies of other sovereign nations, large or small, be they commercial,
political, military, envircnmental, or with regard to human rights,

The folly of trying to use export restraints unilaterally to force
-other buying nations to adopt our concepts and standards when other
-sellers (e.g. Germany, Japan) are willing to sell technologically equal
-equipment without regard to the buyer’s internal policies.

1A _Btrategy for International Trade Negotiations,” re b h
:.m}uﬁgg% ux.:&mmm,, on Finance, Feb. 9, 191? DB ] port by Senator Abraham
., . 14,
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Unless we face these realities squarely and adopt realistic policies,
the creation of a new Department will not begin to resolve our trade:

roblems.
P I don’t think we made any mistake in creating a Department of En-
ergy. Our failure was we never articulated a national energy policy
which defined clearly the problem and rallied the American people:
and the Congress around a solution.

A President should never declare war on something or somebody
unless and until he is able and willing to muster the forces and the
strategy to win the war.

NEED FOR A POSITIVE NATIONAL EXPORT POLICY

Third, while we are generally supportive of the agreements as we
understand them, and feel that Bob Strauss, Dick Rivers, and all de-
serve a lot of credit on a difficult assignment, we would be less than
candid with you if we suggested those agreements are going to resolve
the U.S. trade problem. The $39.6 billion (cif) deficit suffered by the
United States last year was no accident. We believe the deficit is long
term and structural. .

Mr. Chairman, I ask that the remainder of my statement be incor-
porated into the record as if read.!

Senator Risicorr. Without objection.

Thank you very much for your excellent testimony.

Senator Danforth ¢

Senator DanvorTH. I could not agree more. 1 think the points that
you have made are good ones. It seems to me that this is going to be-
the year of trade in the Congress and that we therefore have the
opportunity to really do some meaningful things not necessarily to-
erase the trade deficit but at least to be more competitive than we are:
now and that along with the implementing legislation we should con-
sider what else we can do in order to improve our situation with re-
spect to exports.

Basically, we have a kind of philosophical question that is before:
the country: Do we believe that the time has come, as a count y to-
crawl into our own shell? Do we believe we are no longer competitive,.
and therefore we should give up on being competitive? Or, in the al-
ternative, do we think that we have an opportunity to expand our
economy and to expand opportunities for the Ainerican people by do--
ing a couple of things. One, by protecting ourselves from unfair trade:
practices by other countries which have dumped their products in
our markets, really, without serious action, I think, on our part.

And two, can we develop an export strategy? I think there is a
tremendous audience in the Congress for doing something to develop-
an export strategy. There was a meeting a couple of months ago in
which Ambassador Strauss was present and one or two Members of
Congress and, during the dis-ussion, someone raised the question,.
how can we develop a national export strategy, what can we do to-
increase our exports?

It was electrifying. The meeting was brought to life, and we started:
talking in those terms.

.1 The full prepared statement of Mr. Best may be found on p, 50,
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Something is wrong with our ability to e':sort. When 80 percent
of our nonagricultural exports are accounted for by 1 percent of
our manufacturing companies, something is very wrong. .

When I talk to people from my State who say that there is no
interest in exporting here, or people are afraid of exporting, or when
Ambassador Strauss says most American businessmen do not know
how to sell in Japan, then something is seriously wrong and my feel-
ing is that in connection with the imglementing legislation now that
we have gotten the attention of the Congress on the matter of trade,
let us see what else we can do. Let us see what we can do to increase
our exports.

Now, you have to do it within the terms of GATT. You cannot
subsidize people for exports, so I am not sure exactly what a legis-
lative package should have in it.

Most people, when you talk to business people, they say, No. 1, do-
not repeal DISC, just as you have said DISC is not going to be
repealed. All right. Let us move on to step two.

he Department of Trade, fine, that is all right, but it just seems.
to me, not waiting for some other year, but this is the year to start
thinking in terms of what kind of legislation, what sort of legislative
package we can put together in order to encourage American business
people to do a better job selling abroad.

And if you have any ideas either this morning or, you know, in the
near future on this subject I would be most happy to hear from you.

Mr. Brsr. Yes. I fully agree with you, Senator. I think there are
perhaps three or four areas that the Congress ought to consider. The
Congress has passed a lot of laws with very noble ends, but which
unfortunately have a serious anticompetitive effect in the market-
place. Rather than trying to repeal each and every one of those laws,
be they environmental impact statements on Exim Bank loans naming -
human rights sinners, certain types of other self-imposed export bar-
riers, I think—you could have a declaration of policy and congressional
findings and a notwithstanding phrase that would, in effect, give
exports a priority over other considerations and direct each agency
of Government in its rulemaking to make that clear.

This approach would not eliminate these laws or denigrate human
rights or bribery or bovcott or whatever noble objectives we have,
but it would put them in the perspective of the need for a positive
export policy. That is one area that I think the legislation should
consider.

Second, T think you can zome up with tax incentives which do not
violate the GATT subsidy axreement which would encourage research
and development because that is what determines ultimately what .
your competitive positiin is going to be.

T do not think our tax laws at the present time tend to encourage
R. & D. sufficiently and T have made some suggestions for improve-
ment in my testimony.

Finally, I would say along with the Department of Trade. our-
credit programs through the Exim Bank must be fully competitive-
with those of Germany and Japan. At the present time. thev are not.

Senator DaxrorTH. The people that T talk to about this question, I
would sav that the one common voint that is made bv almost everv-
body is R. & D. and you have made it again." Apparently—and I think -
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it can be shown statistically—that there is a relationship between
spending for R. & D. and exports. As we have always thought, the
thing e are trying to export is our knowhow and now we find that
-other countries are catching up with us. .

As a matter of fact, the percentage of our gross national product
which we are spending on R. & D. in the last decade or more has been,
I think, very ﬂ[:t—maybe even declininﬁ. So maybe one of the things
wo should be considering—1I have not had the opportunity to read your
testimony, but some sort of strategy tax program with respect to
research and development. What can we do to encourage Americans
to invest norein R. & D.

In your view, assuming that such a program would yield results,
assuming that it was well thought-out and it was, in fact, more invest-
ment and R. & D., would that——

Mr. Best. It would pay off enormously. The areas we are highly
competitive in—and those happen to be the companies I represent—
in the aerospace and computer field and heavy equipment-—are all areas
in which there has been a lot of R. & ID. In areas where we are not
.competitive—consumer durables, for example, are industry has not
competed well against the Japanese who devote a lot of resources in
the R. & D. area. I think I will be disputed by the Zenith Chairman
when he comes up, but I have seen Japanese factories and they
appeared to me to be way ahead of us in the R. & D. effort that they
were making in relation to each sales dollar.

Senator DanrortH. Do you have any sense as to whether the problem
is not basic research or applied research or both ¢

Mr. Brsr. I really could not tell you. I think it is in both.

Senator DanrorTH. Thank you.

Senator Rmrcorr. Senator Long?

Senator Long. Thank you very much for your statement, Mr. Best.
T do not think we :-an do justice to the things I would like to develop
at this point, so I will talk to you later on abcut them. Thank you
verv much.

Senator RiBicorr. Thank you very much for your valuable
testimony.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Best follows :]

‘STATEMENT OF ROBERT A. BEST, EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT, AMFRICAN LTAGUE
FoR EXPORTS AND SECURITY ABSISTANCE, INc. (ALESA)

Mr. Chairman, members of the subcommittee, you and your able staff deserve
A lot nf credit for holding this hearing and raising a number of izsues relating
to the various draft MTN codes that have been circulating in this town for
the past month. To some 1t mght seem premature to hold thia kind of hearing
‘before the negotiatinns are formally complete and the agreement(s) formally
submitted to Congress. But I believe this 18 most appronriate because the codes
themselves are subject to so many interpretations it is difficult for anybody
to make a failr judgment on exactly what they mean or how they will be imple-
mented by the various signatories. This 18 not intended to be a criticism of the
-agreements or of Bob Strauss but merely a view that negotiated agreements
{e:ldlttt)lbe ambiguous and require interpretations for appropriate implementing
egislation.

Before discussing the matters ratsed in the sabcommittee’s press release of
February 8 I might say a word about the American League for Fixports and
‘Security Assistance (ALESA). Founded in 1977, ALBDSA {s a unique labor-
management organization whose fundamental purpose is to encourage *‘jobs
through export” trade and tax programs. We currently have 84 corporate mem-
bers who export over $20 billion {u manufactured products and employ over
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800,000 Americans in all 50 States and four international unions representing
over 4 milllon American workers, With a positive export policy as its primary
purpose in life, obviously ALESA has a great interest in the MTN agreements.

I will confine my comments to a few areas raiseC in the press release of
February 8 and then provide some related thoughts on current government
organization and direction in administering U.8. trade policy.

SUBBIDIES—COUNTERVAILING DUTY CODE

First, with regard to the subsidies/countervailing duty code, there are still
ambiguities as to which subsidies are legal and which are not. Clearly indirect
tax rebates, such as value added—are legal but direct tax rebates (and deferrals)
presumably are not. Yet we understand that the DISC will remain as it is
(some even say it's not illegal under the new code). The decisions of a lot of
business organizations to support or oppose the package depends on a clear
understanding of that issue.

I strongly believe that in the face of a $40 billion trade deficit (cif basis) it
would be folly for the United States to eliminate DISC; particularly since I
can't really see precisely what the Europeans and Japanese are going to give
up in the subsidies/cv@ code—not border tax rebates, not agricultural restitu-
tion payments, not the direct subsidies that the GATT arbitration panel found
to Le illegal. I would strongly urge this Subcommittee to make it clear in the
legislative history of the agreement that Congress does not intend to eliminate
DISC until a better substitute 1s found. Perhaps the staff can develop a better
substitute for your consideration in this Congress. Why don’t we go to school
on the Furopeans and Japanese and adopt some of their own tax practices which
encourage exports and discourage imports?

1 do not want to take the Committee’s time in trying to evaluate the definitions
of “injury”, “industry”, or some of the other issues raised in the press release.
Your ataff knows that I am available to go into these matters in whatever detail
they desire.

ADMINISTRATION OF TRADE POLICY

Other questions in your press release relate to which agency should administer
the codes and trade laws that will result from these agreements if approved by
Congress. This raises the broader question of whether we need a Department
of Trade as suggested in the Ribicoff-Roth bill (8. 377). Although it is clear
that any department or agency of the Executive tends to have as much influence
on Executive decisions as the Department head has with the White House or
key Congressional Committees, (and therefore simply creating another Depart-
ment will not solve a problem), we have come to the conclasion that if the
mandate and statutory functions of the Department of Trade and Investment
were clearly spelled out and provided for a positive and coherent trade policy,
it would be very helpful to consolidate the current helter-skelter trade apparatus
that spans 57 agencies of government into a cohesive unit. We therefore support
S. 8377 with the suggestion that the Department be given a clear export orienta-
tion in its purpose and statutory functions.

In doing some preparatery reading for t!  :earing, I came across a report by
Senator Abraham Ribicoff on “A Strategy t.. International T'rade Negotiations™
published on February 9, 19738. Your findings and recommendations in that report
are as valid today as they were six years ago.

Among your findings were:

“s » ¢ that the United States institutionally is i1l prepared to deal with long-
range trade policy,

“s ¢ ¢ the fssues still remain fragmented among a host of bureaucracies.

“Foreign officials noted that there was no single source in Washington to whom-
thefyt conldl turn for an authoritative description of the American position on trade
matters.”

" At that time you gave the following recommendation for executive reorganiza-
on:

“The disparate policy strongholds in economic policy in the Executive Branch
must be brought together under a coherent management structure. This must be:
done openly so that everyone knows where to go for answers * * * After this
is done, coordinated policies muat be implemented throughout our government

145 Strate for International Trade Nexotiations”, Report by Senator Abrabamr
Ribicoff to the Committee on Finance, Feb, 9, 1978, 0. 8. po 7 '
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-0 that evervene in an oficial capacity gets the word. It is not a marer of making
trade policy under new headings, but moving trade up to the level of other con-
siderations. Anvthing less that suck an effort will be harmful to our most vital
.economig, political, and security interests.” *

Mr. Chairmen, we could not say it any better. if a coherent trade policy ap-
paratus was important six years ago, it is critical today with the dramatic changes
in the world political and ¢conomi. structures and alliances,

We cannot emphasize the importance of defining a coherent trade and com-
mercial policy for the United States. That policy must be based on realistic
views on the world marketplace and the current U.S. position in that market.
Among the current cealities are:

The existence of cartel-dictated ene.gy prices for the foreseeable future.

Aggressive exporting policies of other oil .)nsuming naticns with considerable
government-industry cooperation. .

An inability on the part of the United States to dictate the internal policies of
other sovereign nations, large or small, be they commercial, political, military,
environmental, or with regard to human rights.

The folly of trying to use export restraints unilaterally to force other buying
nations to adopt our concepts and standards when other sellers (e.g. Germany,
Japan) are willing to sell technologically-equal equipment without regard to
the buyer’s internal policies.

Urless we face these realities squarely and adopt realistic policies, the creation
of a new Department will not begin to resolve our trade problems,

I don’t think we made any mistake in creating a Department of Energy. Our
failure was we never articulated a national energy policy which defined clearly
thle problem and rallied the American people and the Congress around a

- 8olution.

A President should never declare war on something or somebody unless and
until he is able and willing to muster the forces and the strategy to win the
war.

NEED FOR A POBITIVE NATIONAL EXPORT POLICY

Third, while we are generally supportive of the agreements as we currently
underatand them, and feel that Bob Strauss. Dick Rivers, and all deserve a lot
of credit on a difficult assignment, we would be less than candid with you if we
suggested those agreements are going to resolve the U.8. trude problem. The

. $39.6 billion (cif) deficit suffered by the U.R. last year was no accident, We
believe the deficit s long term and structural.

Its causes relate not only to the oil cartel and the enormous drain that
OPEC causes on oil importing nations but to the attitudes of our nation toward
meeting competition head on in the marketplace.

The United States is the only major industrialized country without a positive

- export pollcy. The U.8. Government (both the Legislative and Executive
Branches) has not encouraged, but rather has discouraged, often unwittingly,
U.S. companies located in the United States from exporting. As & consequence

- of the anti-export animus, unconscious though it may be, American business is
losing out in the battle for markets.

Our share of world exports iz deciinii:g steadily, while that of our major
competitors —Japan and Germany—rises. Even developing countries like Brazil
are winning contracts that previously would have gone to U.S. firms.

Every pluce of legislation Congress passes is viewed from many viewpoints:
revenue, budget, tax impact, human rights, environmental, health and safety,
consumer, discrimination. Very few times is consideration given to the effect

- of legislation on the International competitive position of America and hence
on jobs and. business activity at home,

The Executive Branch does not seem serlous about a positive export policy

- despite official pronouncements t¢ the contrary. Unilateral export restraint has
been attempted in every area fncluding: (1) requiring “environmental impact
statements” on Eximbank loans; and (2) punishing human rights violatorg by
stopping our exports (not our imports from these countries) ; incredibly com-
plicated, overlapping and time-consuming Mcensing procedurer.

The United States is suffering from a bout with “unflateralism”, We are at-

" tempting; to unilaterally enforce on others our standards and concepts of moral-
ity, which however appealing they may be to us, may not be universally and
widely acclaimed or accepted by others, We fall to recognisze that we can no

$Ibid., p. 14.
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fonger impose our views on these subjects on others, and that we often only
punish ourselves by denying our industries the abili*y to compete, while not
.denying the buyer the product or technology it seeks.

Our leaders facilely blame the ‘“cil import bill” as the ctuse of our trade
imbalance but they fail to mention that Germany, Switserland, Japan and many
.others who do not have the indigenous energy supplies that we have and must
import more oil in relation to their economies than we do, have overcome their
problem and have a. positive balance of trade. How? By being bold, aggressive
-@xporters.

Our trading partners do not engage in self-pitying wishful thinking about their
trade problems. West Germany, which has no significant oil of its own and even
must import large quantities of coal, had an overall surplus in trade of over
$20.8 bhilllon (cif) and a surplus with members of OPEC of $800 million.
Japan, which also must import virtually all of its energy, had a $18.3 billion
(cif) trade surplus. However, the United States, which still has over 50 percent
of its energy produced at home, had a trade deficit of nearly $40 billion (cif).

How long will it take the United States to wake up?

There are some who believe a deficit is a good, healthy thing, that it contrib-
utes to international economic stability and gives our friends in the developing
world some parchasing power. Others feel the depreciation of the dollar will
‘make our exports more competitive and our imports less so, resulting in an
automatic return to equilibrium. Both theorles are fallacious.

Firat, our deficits end up as surpluses of OPEC, and major industrialized
countries like Germany and Japan. We are not sharing our wealth with the poor.

Second, exchange rates have not proven to be automatic adjustment factors
because of the actual nature of trade transactions and the perverse affect of a
dollar depreciation on domestic inflation and hence exports,

ELEMENTS OF A NATIONAL EXPORT POLICY

Assistant Secretary of Commerce Frank Weil provided some of the essential
ingredients of a National Bxport Policy in a speech of the Chicago World Trade
«Conference on April 5, 1978. Among these ingredients were:

Appropriate tax incentives to encourage exports ;

A revitalized export financing program;

A computerized information system identifying potential foreign buyers
to potential suppliers, and other export development activities;

Amendment of our anti-trust laws where they impair our ability to com-
pete against industrial conglomerates abroad ;

A reexamination of government regulations and policles (including en-
vironmental and safety regulations, policies on transportation, investment,
unilateral ceilings, licensing procedures and export contrvis) that interfere
with American exports,

I would hope the people who advise the President will understand that these
-are among the broad areas where changes can and must be made 8o as to remove
the competitive disadventage of American firms and encourage U.8. exports.

In reviewing the competitive position of the United States it is clear that
within the industrial sectors of our economy, our greatest strength lies in the
high technology sector, where R&D effort is the greatest and where advances in
science and engineering give American firms an ability to compete anywhere if
‘the rule- of competition are fair,

The charts and tablea attached attempt to give some indication of the role of
technology in job creation and export performance. Our competitors tend to de-
vote more effort to civilian R&D programs than we do and consequently have
become more efficient producers in many areas (particularly consumer durables)
than we are. In areas where we spend considerable R&D effort (aircraft and
computers for example) we are fully competitive but still lose sales because of
‘the non-economic factors I have already mentioned.

TAXATION

The United States ought to be reviewing tax measures to encourage increased
R&D effort by industry. Numerous studies have documented that thoee indus.
tries with strong R&D efforts remain competitive, while those with weak efforts
‘lose out at home as well as abroad. Special depreciation rules, or tying a lower

corporate tax rate or special Investment credit to the R&D effort should be
-seriously considered.
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FINANCING

Certainly, a revitalized Eximbank is critical to any positive export policy.
Last year the Adminstration recommended and Congress approved an expansion
of the Bank’s lending authority to $40 billion (from $25 billion) as well as a
five-year extension of its Charter. But this year the Administration set an over-
ell budget celling of $4.1 billion and has even required environmental impact
statements when the law does not so require. If we are serious about exports, we
need an aggressive Eximbank unincumbered by extraneous non-economic issues.

REGULATIONS

Licenging.—The Federal government has & bureaucratic agony tree of licens-
ing procedures, First of all, there I8 a munitions list, established in 1948 and not
revised regularly. If a U.8. Corporation wishes to sell anything on the munitions
st (including construction equipment, spare parts, even services), it must go
through a veritable agony tree to gain approval. No central control system
exists; no time frames for decisions. The current system invites delay and
frustration. It also invites bureaucratic abuses since corporations are put in the
position of having to curry favors with bureaucrats to win their support.

If the project does not fall within the FFMS channel, a company often must
apply for a commercial license from the Commerce Department, Here again,
delay and frustration are evidenced because of a lack of deflnition aud time
frames for decision. Now we are getting to the point where if any export is
considered to have political implications, it must be stopped. This is incredible.
If we, a8 a natlon, are going to restrict our business only to countries whose
internal policirs we agree with, we will be dealing only with ourselves. Curiously,
we never consider embargoing imports from offending countries, only exports.®
In other words we try to change their internal policies by denying our working
people a job while buying, often at dumped prices, everything their suffering
working people sell us. I don't know who is advising the President on these
things but I would suggest they take a course in basic human psychology.

CONCLUSBION

Mr. Chairman, I have breught up these issues for a reason: we firmly believe
that the trade agreements package ought to be accompanied by complementary
and pa.allel legislation to encourage U.S. exports.

Bob Strauss and company did a magnificent job in negotiating these complex
codes and, as I indicated, we support their adoption. However to effectively:
change the disastrous and vicious cycle of :

Massive Dollar Domestic
Trade =2 Weakness —? Inflation
Deficits

Massive Tight Money
Budget ¢~——— Recession ¢—— Economic
Deficits Controls

A positive aggressive export policy is desperately needed for this nation; 1978
will be the year of trade. If the nation opts for a positive export incentives
program it will make the trade agreements more meaningful. If we do not
adopt a positive export program in conjunction with these trade agreements, we-
fear that after approval of tbe MTN, trade problems will persist and more-
drastic action will be necessary which could really tear the fabric of cooperatinn:
that has beer built up in the MTN agreement negotiations,

Thank you Mr. Chairman.

% The only exception I am aware of is Uganda,
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‘Figure 1.—U.8, share of world exports of manufactured goods, 1958-77, in
percent,
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Fioure 3.—Output per hour in manufacturing (increase in percent, 1950-76)..

TABLE 1—DISTRIBUTION OF NATIONAL R. & D. EXPENDITURES IN SELECTED |NDUSTRIALI.Y ADVANCED
COUNTRIES AS A mcsuncz OF GNP, 1961, 1967, 1972, AND 1975

1961 1967 1972 1975

2.74 2.91 2.43 2.32

..................................... 1.01 1.33 .17 11,20

1.38 2.16 1.83 11.48

.............................................. 11.45 1.55 1.8 12.00

um.d KIngBom . - e e mamaan 2.69 2.69 2.3 12.25

Wost GOIMANY ... oo ieecaeeeeaccacmaceennacanan 11.20 1.97 2.31 2.2%

1 Estimate,
Source: Natloml Science Foundation, *‘Science Indicators 1976, p. 184, except estimates, a; noted,
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TABLE 2.—ESTIMATED R, & D. EXPENDITURES FOR CiVIL PURPOSES, 1975

[1n biltions of doilars)
United West United
Canada France Japan Kingdom Germany States
1. GNP (dollars). ....ccoeerecncnunan 152 338 493 229 425 1,516
2. Percent R. a [ Y 1.2 1.48 2.0 2.25 2,25 .32
L R&D. (doliars)....cceeenunnnn.nn 1.8 5.0 9.2 5.15 10.6 35.2
4, Porcent R. & D in space and na-

; tionsi defense. . ........__...... 5.4 26.2 1.7 24.5 8.1 U4
5. Percent R. & D. in civilian programs._ 9.7 73.8 9.3 75.5 9.9 65.6
6. R 2D ln clvilian programs (doflars). 1.7 3.7 9.7 3.9 9.7 23.1

rce: Row l “"World mm.? and Social Expenditures 1973, ng 22, Row !l 2. Row 3, product of rows 1
and 2. Row 4, National Science Foundation, ** Indicators 1976,"" pp. 186-187. Row 5, 100 wcont minus row 4,
Row 6, product of rows 3 and 5.

GOVERNMENT R&D EXPENDITURES
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Senator Risrcorr. Mr, John Nevin? Is Mr. John Nevin here?
Mr. Noel Hemmendinger.

STATEMERT OF NOEL HEMMENDINGER ON BEHALF OF ARTER,
HADDEN & HEMMENDINGER

Mr. HemseNDpINGER. Mr. Chairman and members of the subcom-
mittee, I have to apologize that my full statement was not ty{md.
There, perhaps, the committee benefits, because I have only a short
summary.

Senator Rinicorr. Mr. Hemmendinger, when your full statement is
typed, it should be submitted and it will go into the record as if
presented.

Mr. HemmENDINGER. Thank you, sir.
My name is Noel Hemmendinger. I am the senior partner of the
law firm of Arter, Hadden & Hemmendinger, better known to some
42-978—1079—3
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of you over the years as Stitt, Hemmendinger & Kennedy. The
purpose of my testimony is to offer the experience of our law firm
over many years in rerresentmg U.S. importers and foreign exporters
under the countervailing duty law, the Antidumping Act, and the
escape clause, )

I am speaking only for our law firm—-that is to say, my partners.
There may be some opinions which are those of myself only. Our
clientele in the past year has included Brazilian, Colombian, Philip-
pine, Thia and Malaysian interest under the countervailing duty law.
It has included Japanese steel under the Antidumping Act and the
TPM, cement and nails from Canada under the Antidumping Act.
Under the escape clause, we have a continuing interest in the specialty

steel case for Japan and a footwear problem, and we represented
" Yugoslav ferochromium. That is, as T say, just in the last year. We are
registered under the Foreign Agents Act forra number of foreign
clients. I have ot brought a copy of our latest statement because I am
not speaking for our clients. T am speaking for ourselves.

By and large, as regards the specific issues that were raised in the
committee’s notice, we agree with the Association of American
Importers and we will have some specific conments in our own writ-
ten statement. I come, however, chieflv to offer you what may be a
somewhat unconventional view, that the Antidumping Act and the
countervailing duty law are greatly overvalued in terms of the utility
and the validity of the distinction between fair and unfair trade and
the benefits of legal remedies which are based on what I sometimes
call the slot machine approach. You put your money in at the top and
get your result at the bottom.

In other words. it is a fallacy, T suggest. that you can carry ont
trade policy, which is what is involved in these laws, through auto-
matic proceedings under law. There are large elements of discretion
w}}iclzl are inherent in these matters and they must be preserved and
valued.

I suggest that the experience in textiles. automobiles. steel and
television alone indicates that the Antidumping Act, for instance, is
not an effective instrument of U.S. trade policy. We have had to go
outside these laws governing unfair trade to deal with important and
real trade problems. The problem with them is that they do not take
into account that differential pricing is a perfectly appropriate and
normal business method and that practically all trade in the world
today is, and has been, conditioned by governmental interventions of
one kind or another.

These premises lead me to the following major conclusions. First,
that these issues should be considered as controversies between eco-
somic bloes and, in some cases, between governments and their resolu-
tmn..b]]ike other controversies, should be facilitated by every means
possible,

Also, that the decisions, when the statutorv procedures have been
tollowed, should be subject to final executive discretion in the national
Interest and not handled as private controversies. This is particularly
important in the case of the developing countries.

The second major conclusion is that the real test is the test of the
escape cleuse, namely injury. That should be the primary considera-
tion, examining whether measures ought to be taken against imports
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from any particular source, not the so-called fairness of those imports.
That means that the material injury test, which we should have had
in our laws all these years, should be effectuated and made significant,

A corollary is that there is a built-in bias in the administration of
the Antidumping Act. I regret to say that I testified to this effect in
1974 with respect to the circumstances of sale and the comparison of
average home market prices with each export transaction, but these
abuses continue with no end in sight.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Risicorr. Thank you very much, and we do look forward
to vour complete statement, Mr. Hemmendinger.

Senator Danforth ¢

Senator DANrorTH. No questions.

Senator Risicorr. Senator Long ?

Senator Long. No questions. .

Senator RIBIcoFF. q‘ha.nk you very much, sir.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Hemmendinger follows:]

STATEMENT OF NOEL HEMMENDINGER ON BEHALF OF THE LAw FIRM, ARTER
HADDEN & HEMMENOINGER

I am senior partner of the Washington, D.C. law firm, of Arter Hadden %
Hemmendinger. The Washington firm is successor to the firm of Stitt, Hem-
mendinger & Kennedy, whose members have often appeared before committees of
the Congress concerned with trade issues, It is associated with firms in Cleveland
and Columbus, Ohio.

The purpose of our testimony is to offer to the Subcommittee the views of
members of the firm, based on many years of experience in representing U.S.
importers and forelgn exporters in proceedings under the Escape (Clause, the
Antidumping Act, and the Countervailing Duty Law, During the past year, we
have represented importers and exporters in connection with countervailing
duty cases involving textiles and men’s and boys' apparel from Brazil, Colombia,
the Philippines, Thalland, and Malaysia: in connection with the TPM system
as it concerns steel from Japan; with dumping cases involving steel and wire
products and motoreycles from Japan; nails and cement from Canada; and in
connection with escape clause matters involving specialty steel from Japan,
footwear from varlous sources, and foerrochrom’'um from Yugoslavia.

iThlﬁ!testimony is given on behalf of the law firm, and not on behalf of its
clients.

GENERAL OBSERVATIONS

In general, we concur with the presentation made on behalf of the American
Importers Assoclation, (ATA). We are a membher of the AIA and participate in
the work of a number of its committees, We offer specific comments of our own
on some of the issues raised by the Subcommittee's notice, and T make some
observations from a somewhat different perspective than most of the witnesses
you will he hearing.

T submit that the distinetion batween “fair’ and “unfair” trade and the bene-
fits of remedies based on that distinction are greatly overrated,

We perceive the Countervailing Duty Law and the Antidumping Act as largely
frratioral in conception, capricious in execution, harasszing of the import trade,
nnd as cumhersome and ineffectunl instruments for conducting U.8, trade policy.
This is witnessed by the experience with textiles, automobiles, steel, and
televigions.,

These laws deal with two somewhat related practices, which are characterizel
as unfair—subsidization and selling for export at prices below the homet market
price, or at prices which do not ever full costs. We would not diseard these con-
cepts aad the international coder which have heen worked out embodying them,
They have their utllity. We would, however, urge the recognition of major

1 The law firm is registered under the Forelgn Agents’ Reglstration Act for a number
of clients. A copy of its latest registration atatement {s pot being tendeted to thin Snh.
committee because the testimony 18 not being given for or in the interest of our clients,
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gualifications : first, that “unfairness” is a complex and difficult concept in inter-
ational trade because all trade is conditioned by either current or historical
zovernment interventions of one character or another, and because, as regards
dumping, differential pricing in international markets is often pro-competitive;
and second, that a automatic remedy through legal proceedings based upon
rigorous legal standards is not appropriate to the resolution of international
economic 1ssues such as are involved in trade among nations. This is especially
true of the Countervailing Duty Law since it questions the political judgment of
foreign governments adoped out of their conviction of what is necessary in their
sovereign interests,

The attempt to resolve these issues through meticulous investigations under
legal standards is inevitably time-consuming and sometimes beyond the capa-
bility of the staffs that can be ass.gned to do the job. This implies that the
dissatisfaction which members of the Congress have frequently expressed with
the execution of these laws lies more in the inherent impossibility of the task
assigned than in the great burdens and administrative problems encountered
by the staffs who have been seeking to accomplish the tasks,

1t follows from these propositions that there should in all cases be a balancing
of the various interests involved in determining what remedies, if any, are to be
taken when unfair practices are found, rather than an automatie remedy; and,
that strong encouragement should be given to negotiated solutions. In the long
run, there should probably be a single type of proceeding for remedies against
imports, with the President making the final decision. (See in this connection
my testimony before the Senate Finance Committee in 1974, Hearings before
the Committee on Finance, United States Senate, 93rd Congress, 2nd Session,
on H.R, 10710, P. 1929.)

Comments on the specific issues raised by the Subcommittee’s Notice follow,
Numbers are keyed to the Notice,

Countervailing Duly

1. Administering agency.—The Importance of the agency should not be
exayggerated. No matter to what agency these .asks are assigned., they will
have to be done by civil servants much like those who accomplish them at
present. More logical structure can perhaps he achieved, but whether it is
worth the price of the disruption of established procedures is questionable.

2. Definition of injury.—The United States has been justly critized for not
incInding a test of {njury in the Countervailing Duty Law, as provided by the
GATT. Notwithstanding GATT's so-called Grandfather Clause, in our view the
United States has had an obligation as years have passed to include an injury
test in the law, Moreover it i3 not rational to deny U.S. purchasers the lowest
prices if there is no sgignificant injury to U.S. producers.

The United States has also heen justly criticized because the test of injrvy
under the Antidumping Act and for duty-free goods under the Countervaliling
Duty law has not been equal to the test of “material injury”, as provided in
the GATT. The U.8. representatives’ defense to this eriticism has been to claim
that in prac*ice the determinations in the ITC have been consistent with
“material injury” in the GATT. Given the multiplicity of factual situations,
and the variety of decisions by six commissoners who have not always explained
thelr reasoning, it is impossible to reach such a neat conclusion. It is necessary
to say that there are decixions and reasoning by some Commissioners that are
not consistent with the GATT standard of material injury. It is extremely
fmportant, we submit, that in implementing the International Subsidies Arrange-
ment the Congress make clear that a significant level of injury is intended. The
standard might he less, to be sure, than serious injury under Section 201 of the
Trade Act of 1974 and Section XIX of the GATT, but it should be considerably
more than de minimis.

An important mission of the U.8. Government officials concerned is to bring
as many of the developing nations as possible into the International Subsidies
Arrangement. It is of the utmost importance that the injury test be visibly
significant, if this is to be accomplished.

3. Definition of like product.—We suggest that the definition in the Counter-
vafling Duty Law should follow the Code. The expression “like or similar” is
satisfactory statutory language for footnote 3 to Article I F; l.e., “although not
alike in all respects, has characteristics closely resembling those of the produ~t
under consideration.”

4. Duties should be smaller than the amount of sudeidy, if this will be ade-
quate to remedy the {njury. The case may not often arise where this can be so
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neatly quanttfied, but where it is possible, the principle seems clearly sound.

5. Termination of investigation.—We believe that such provisions are the most
fmportant, for reasons suggested above, that can be adopted. A countervailing
duty case is essentially a controversy between the United States and a foreign
government with respect to measures which the foreign government has con-
sidered to be necessary and appropriate in the interests of its own economy.
Such a challenge to measures of a friendly foreign sovereign should not lightly
be made, and when made should be terminable upon whatever reasonable ac-
commodation is possible. ,

These are problems of international diplomacy and shot.1 be resolved
through consultation and agreement rather than the mandatory imposition ot
legal or administrative remedies. Termination of the subsidy itself would not
normally involve a question of settlement, because if the subsidy is eliminated
in whole or in part, then the countervailing duty is automatically eliminated
in similar proportion. However, where there are outstanding arrangements such
as quotas, they should be taken fuliy into account. It should be a normal prinef-
p:e that countervailing duty will not be applied where other measures ade-
quate to protect the U.S. industry are in effect, whether unilateral by the exs
porting country, bilateral, or unilateral on the part of the United States.

8. Judicial review.—There is no reason for legislation to alter the present
standard of judicial review, which i{s that the discretionary determinations of
the Ixecutive and the ITC are accorded large respect. It is an established
principle of judicial review of administrative actions that the judgment of the
agercies involved in evaluating technical evidence will not be disturbed unless
there is failure to follow the rules or an obvious disregard of the evidence.

Antidumping Duties

1. Administering agency.—The comments above with respect to the Counter-
valling Duty are applicable.

2. Rclation to countervailing duty concepts.—In the absence of any compelling
reason to the contrary, we believe that it is desirable that the tests for injury,
cavsation and the regional industry concept be the same under the two laws.

3. Addiional comments.—We wou'd apply in the Antidumping fleld the con-
cepts that we have discussed above with respect to settlement of controversies
over subsidies. Under present law, the Treasury can and should provide con-
giderably more leeway to settle dumping cases by accepting assurances. The
public interest in avoiding settlements designed to fix prices can be protected
by careful review by the competent U.S. Government agencies before approval,
We also submit that Treasury should recognize that calculations of margins
of less-than-fair value sales are imperfect, and in several imyortant respects
are seriously biased against imports. Therefore, where a margin of only a few
percentage points is found, no less-than-fair value finding should bhe made.

We agree with proposais in the Danforth bill and elsewhere to shorten the
total period for the antidumping investigation by having overlapping timeframes
for the injury and the less-than-fair value irvestigations. It is essential, how-
ever, that there be some additional time for the injury determination in order
to give due weight to the level of any margins actually found by Treasury.
Also, from our experience, we believe that Treasury should be empowered to
extend the time necessary for its investigation because the time tirat is actually
required to do jJustice to the facts of a particular case varies widely.

We think the proposal, which is embodied in a proposed Treasury regulation
at this time and in some pending bills, to collect esiimated dumping duties in
the early stage of the investigation is fundamentally unsound. Differential
pricing is not per se unfair; the purpose of the Act is not to impose a penalty,
but to encourage the adjustment of any prices which are unduly low by the
standards of the Antidumping Act. This purpose is served by the present system,
which encourages exporters who may he running foul of the Act to increase their
prices immediately to avoid the imposition of an antidumping duty. Exporters
will not be 80 encouraged to raise their prices if estimated duties will he col-
lected in any event, especially if the amount of the estimated duty is based
upon an historical period, without regard to any recent price changes. In short,
estimated duties ought not be collected. but if they are imposed, then, in fair-
ness to the importer and the exporter, it is essential that Customs take account
of the latest data avallable to it. The important point is that after a dumping
finding, the master list determination must be made promptly.

Safeguards

1. Developing countries.—We bellieve that title IT of the Trade Act of 1974
remains an appropriate framework for the implementation of the Safeguards
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€ode as it applies to the United States. While under the law the Presideat
already has the discretion to treat developing countries in accordance with
their special requirements, it would be helpful if the law specifically so
rovided.

v 2. Voluntary restraint aprecments—We are not aware that implementation
of the Code would involve any arrangements among private parties. Present
U.S. legislation would appenr to suffice for agreed arrangements limiting ship-
ments to the United States.

3. MFN.—In the absence of compelling reasons of which we are not aware,
we believe there should be no distinction between signatories and non-signatories.
This is true also for the Subsidies Code. We recognize that it has been the inten-
tion of the AGministration to afford an injury test only to those who enter into
the engagements of the Subsidies Code. Considering, however, all of the many
nations of the world, some of whom are not ready to enter into such arrange-
ments, we think that the interest of the United States can be best served by
a1 non-discriminatory application.

4. Bections 201 to 203.—We do not percelve sny improvements that need to
be made.

5. Unilateral action.—The standards should be essentially the same as the
Executive has been applying in entering into orderly marketing agreements.

Senator Risicorr. Mr. James McGinness ?

STATEMENRT OF JAMES McGINNESS, VICE PRESIDENT, BRASTEX
CORP.

Mr. McGinNEss. Members of the committee, my name is James
McGinness and I am vice president of the Brastex Corp. of New York.
1 am accompanied this morning by Beth Ring, our attorney from the
New York law firm of Freeman, Reed, Wasserman & Snyder.

Brastex is a major importer of terry towels and robes from Brazil
and is the wholly-owned subsidiary of Artex, S.A., a Brazilian manu-
facturer of terry textile products. We have previously appeared be-
fore the subcommittee as well as before the Subcommittee on Trade
of the House Ways and Means Committee to oppose the imposition
of countervailing duties on our products. I am appearing today to
sltron,glrly support several proposed revisions in the U.g. counterv ..iing
duty law,

First, we strongly squoﬂ the requirement that a determination
of “injury” be made before the imposition of countervajling duties.
The recent experience of the countervailing duty proceeding brought
in the fall of 1977 by the Amalgamated Clothing and Textile Workers
Union against hundreds of textile products, including cotton towels,
impo from Brazil presents a vivid example of the anticompetitive,
trade-restraining consequences that can result when duties are im-
posed without any consideration of the need for protection to the
comparable domestic industry.

The imposition of countervailing duties on onr products without
regard to the highly concentrated and oligopolistic structure of the
comparable domestic industry was maniéstly anticompetitive and
eﬂ'ecliively attempted to exclude fair competition in the American
market,

The Ameriocan textile industry as a whole is highly competitive,
both in terms of price and design, and there are numerous domestic
and foreign competitors in the American textile industry. However,
this is not true with respect to the towel segment of the American
industry. In fact, one major American textile producer has stated
that: “The domestic towel market is dominated by four manufac-



65

turers with only three or four other domestic manufacturers in this
market.” .

Thus, the American towel producing industry is dominated bi' four
principal producers. Importations of terry towels from Brazil have
dramatically declined, while imports of towels from all other coun-
tries have increased. In fact, the United States imported 34-percent
fewer towels from Brazil in 1978 than it did in 1974, while during
the same period of time, the ru.t of the world increased their exports
of towels to the United States by over 8 percent. In 1978, the United
States imported over 52 million towels; only 3.7 million of these
towels—or 7 percent—were imported from Brazil. ) .

Further, imports of cotton terry products from Brazil are subject
to quotas provided in the Brazilian-United States Bilateral Cotton
Textile Agreements. The quantity of all cotton terry products im-
ported from Brazil is well below the quotas set forth in these
agreements.

With respect to prices, Brazilian towels are sold either at or ebove
the prices ¢f comparable American products, and represent an almost
insignifizant share of the U.S. market.

In short, the competitive American producers of cotton terry towels
are economically healthy and prosperous, and the imposition of coun-
tervailing duties in the amount of 37.2 percent on the relatively small
amount of imports of these towels would effectively exclude them
from an American market which is already highly concentrated and
oligopolistic. Exclusion of terry towels from this market would be
overly anticompetitive and may raise serious antitrust questions.

Soon after the filing of the countervailing duty petition by the
Amalgamated Clothing & Textile Workers Union, Brastex Corp.
submitted legal memoranda to both the Antitrust Division of the De-
partment of Justice and the Treasury Department in support of the
position that the Government has an inherent right to avoid restric-
tions on competition, particularly in an already concentrated industry
despite the absence of an injury requirement in the countervailing
duty law. Both Federal agencies advised us that they were helpless
to consider the anticompetitive consequences of the Iﬁlion’s proceed-
ing because of the lack of an injury requirement.

Ve understand that this situation has changed at least with respect
to the injury investigation in the Antidumping Act. Our counsel
advises us that the Foreign Commerce Section of the Antitrust Divi-
sion of the Department of Justice has established an Office of Trade
Policy to momtor unfair trade practice actions before the Interna-
tional Trade Commission. If an injury requirement is adopted as a
condition precedent to the imposition of countervailing duties, and
the Justice Department is responsible for presenting the antitrust
implications at the injury stage of a dumping investigation, then the
Justice Department should also have the same voice in advancing the
antitrust consequences of invoking the countervailing duty law at
the injury stage of a countervailing duty proceeding.

Such intervention would have been particularly appropriate in the
case of the countervailing duty petition against textile products from
Brazil. Brazil is the world’s second largest distributor of terry cotton
products. Over 13,000 Brazilian workers are employed in this industry
which contributes importantly to Brazil’s economic growth,
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I would like to conclude, Mr. Chairman, by merely saying that we

strongly support the enactment of an injury requirement pursuant to
the negotiated subsidy code at the Multilateral Trade Negotiations
and that we believe in the event of such enactment the Justice De-
partment Foreign Cominerce Section would be an appropriate agency
to monitor the antitrust aspects of such a proceeding to avoid another
case of protectionist overkill.

Senator RiBicorr. Thank you very mwvch, Mr. McGinness. Your
entire statement will go into the record asif read.

Senator Long ¢

Senator LoNa. No quest.ions,

Senator Risicorr. Senator Baucus?

Senator Batcus. No questions,

Senator Risicorr. Thank you very much, Mr. McGinness,

[The prepared statement of Mr. McGinness follows ;]

STATEMENT OF JAMES McGINNESS, VICE PRESIDENT, BRASTEX CORP.

Members of the Commitiee, my name {8 James McGinness and I am Vice Presi-
dent of the Braztex Corporation of New York, Brastex is & major importer of
terry towels and robes from Brazil, and is the wholly-owned subsidiary of Artex,
S.A,, a Brazilian manufacturer of terry textile products. We have previously
appeared before the subcommittee as well as before the Subcommittee on Trade
of the House Ways and Means Committee to oppose the imposition of counter-
vailing duties on our products. I am appearing today to strongly support several
proposed revisions in the United Staies Countervailing Duty Law.

First, we strongly support the requirement that a determinaticn of “injury”
be made before the imposition of countervailing duties, The recent experience of
the countervailing duty proceeding brought in the Fall of 1977 by the Amalga-
mated Clothing and Textile Workers Union against hundreds of textile products,
including cotton towels, impored from Brazil presents a vivid example of the anti-
competitive, trade-restraining consequences that can resmlt when duties are im-
posed without any consideration of the need for protection to the comparable
domestic industry. The imposition of countervailing duties on our products with-
out regard to the highly concentrated and oligopolistic structure of the compara-
ble domestic industry was manifestly anticompetitive and effectively attemped
to exclude fair competition in the American market.

The American textile industry as a whole is highly competitive, both in terms
of price and design, and there are numerous domestic and foreign competitors in
the American textile industry. However, this is n~t true with respect to the towel
segment of he American industry. In fact, one major American textile producer
has stated that:

‘¢ * * the domestic towel market is dominated by four manufacturers * * *
with only three or four other domestic manufacturers in this market ® ¢ ¢ ?

Thus, the American towel producing industry is “dominated” by four principal
producers. Importations of terry towels from Brazil have dramatically declined,
while imports of towels from all other countriex have increased. In fact, the
United States imported 349, fewer towels from Brazil in 1978 than it did in
1974, while during the same period of time, the rest of the world increased their
exports of towels to the United States by over 8%, In 1978, the United States
imported over 52 million towels; only 3.7 million of these towels (or 7% ) were
imported from Bragzil.

Further, imports of cotton terry produets from Brazil are subject to quotas
provided in the Brazilian-United States Bilateral Cotton Textile Agreements.
The quantity of rll cotton terry products imported from Brazil is well below
the quotas set forth in these Agreements.

With respect to prices, Brazilian towels are sold either at or ahove the prices
0of comparable American products, and represent an almost insignificant share
o” the United States moarket.

In short, the competitive American producers of cotton terry towels are
economically healthy and prosperous, and the imposition of countervailing dutles

19; ;‘)leldcreat Mills, Inc., Securities and Exchange Commission, Form 10K (December,
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in the amount of 37.2¢, on the relatively small amount of imports of these
towels would effectively exclude them from an American market which is already
highly concentrated and oligopolistic. Exclusion of terry towels from this market
would be overly anticompetitive and may raise serious antitrust questions.

Soon after the filing of the countervailing duty petition by the Amalgamated
Clothing and Textile Workers Union, Brastex Corporation submitted legal
memoranda to both the Antitrust Division of the Department of Justice and the
Treasury Department in support of the position that the government has an
inherent right to avold restrictions on competiticn, particularly in ar already
concentrated industry despite the absence of an injury requirement in the
(‘ountervailing Duty Law. Both federal agencies advised us that they were help-
less to consider the anticompetitive consequences of the Union's proceeding
because of the lack of an “injury” requirement, _

We understand that this situation has changed at least with respect to the
injury investigation in the Antidumping Act. Our counsel advises us that the
Foreign Commerce Section of the Antitrust Division of the Department of Justice
has established an Office of Trade Policy to monitor unfair trade practice actions
before the International Trade Commission. If an injury requirement is adopted
as a condition precedent to the imposition of countervailing duties, and the
Justice Department is responsible for presenting the antitrust implications at
the injury stage of a *“dumping” investigation, then the Justice Department
should also have the same volce in advancing the antitrust consequences of
invoking the Countervailing Duty Law at the injury stage of a countervailing
dutv proceeding.

Ruch intervention would have been particularly appropriate in the case of
the countervailing duty petition against textile products from Brazil. Brazil
is the world's second largest distributor of terry cotton products. Over 13,000
Brazilinn workers are employed in this industry which contributes importantly
to Brazil's economic growth. The Brazillan Government does not own any part
of Brazil's terry product industry. However, Brazilian producers of terry products
are at a significant disadvantage in the world market since Prazil restricts the
importation of cotton as part of its overall economie, social and fiscal develop-
ment program. One of the principal reasons for this restriction is to provide
employment in the vast Northeast Reglon, which is one of the most under-
developed regions in the world.? As a result ¢f this restriction on imports of
cotton, the price of Brazilian cotton has been almost 309% higher than the price
of cotton on the world market. The disadvantage faced by Brazilian terry pro-
ducers in the price of their raw material has been demonstrably obvious in the
United States market where, as indicated above, importations of cotton terry
towels from Brazil have been dramatically declining in recent years.

In view of the prosperity and high concentration of the comparable domestic
industry, an injury requirement in the Countervailing Duty Law may have
prevented the imposition of countervailing duties against cotton terry towels
from Brazil and would have afforded Brazilian importers a better chanrce to
con.pete fairly in the American market.

We strongly support the enactment of injury requirement pursuant to the
negotinted Subsidies Code at the multilateral trade negotiations, and we belleve
that in the event of such enactment, the Justice Department’s Foreign Com-
merce Section would be an appropriate agency to monitor the antitrust aspects
of such a proceeding and to aveid anoiher case of protectionist overkill.

Thank you for this opportunity to be heard by the Subcommittee.

Senator Risrcorr. Ts Mr, Meister here?

Mr, Schwanke ¢ Is Mr, Sehwanke here?

That will conclude the hearings for this morning. This committee
will stand adjourned until tomorrow morning at 10 a.n.

[ Thereupon. at 11:50 a.m. the subcommittee recessed, to reconvene
on Thursday, February 22, 1979 at 10 a.m.]

2 The “Northeast Region' comprises the State of Maranhano, Pliani, Ceara, Rio Grande
Do Norte, Paralba, Pernambuco, Alagons, Sergipe, Bahia and the “drought area’ in the
State of Minas Gerais.



IMPLEMENTATION OF THE MULTILATERAL TRADE
NEGOTIATIONS

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 22, 1979

Ux1tep StATES SENATE,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON INTERNATIONAL TRADE
OF THE COMMITTEE ON FINANCE,
Washington,D.C.
The subcomnmittee met, pursuant to recess, at 10:15 a.m. in room
2221, Dirksen Senate Office Building, Hon. Abraham Ribicoff (chair-
man of the subcommittee) presiding. )
Present : Senators Ribicoff, Long, Nelson, Matsunaga, Moynihan,
Roth, Danforth, Heinz, Dole, and Chafee.
[The opening statement of Senator Roth follows:]

OPENING STATEMENT BY SENATOR WILLIAM V. ROTH, JR.

»

Senator Ror. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

As you have mentioned, these hearings demonstrate that we have
Government in the sunshine. They are also a manifestation of the
increased role that the private sector should play in the conduct of
the trade agreements program.

Today we are concentrating on the form and substance of imple-
menting legislation that will ge required for the MTN agreements to
become part of our domestic system of laws and regulation. The execu-
tive branch ultimately prepares the text of this legislation and will
formally submit it with tﬁe agreements for approval by Congress.
Once formally submitted, the package is unamendable.

Right now, the executive branch is consulting with Congress to
ascertain what would be desirable elements in the implementing leg-
islation. With these hearings, we are asking you, the public, for
similar advice.

This consultation period offers us an opportunity to propose revi-
sions to some outmoded or ineffective aspects of the laws by which
we regulate foreign commerce. But unless we speak with a strong,
clear, and unified voice, the executive branch may ignore our pro-
posals. We must take this opportunity to express in no uncertain
terms the major elements of reform that must be accomplished before
the MTN package can be made to realize its full potential. Withont
effective implementing legislation, the Tokvo round will be just
another ambitious trade negotiation that failed to produce lasting,
meaningful results,

Senator Hernz (presiding). The Subcommittee on Trade will come
to order. Senator Ribicoff is on his way back from the floor but, be-

(69)
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cause we have about 3 hours worth of testimony and questions at
minimum, I would like to get started right away and I would like to
call Mr. Charles Carlisle, vice president, St. Joe Minerals to be our
first witness. .

I might also observe that testimony will be limited to 10 minutes.
If. you have not completed your testimony at the end of 10 minutes
time, we will put the entire statement in the record.

STATEMENT OF CHARLES R. CARLISLE, VICE PRESIDENT, ST. JOE
MINERALS CORP., ON BEHALF OF AD HOC SUBSIDIES COALITION:
ACCOMPANIED BY STANLEY NEHMER, PRESIDENT, ECONOMIC
CONSULTING SERVICES, INC., AND DONALD DE KIEFFER, ATTOR-
NEY, COLLIER, SHANNON, RILL, EDWARDS & SCOTT

Mr. CaruisLe. Good 1morning, Mr, Chairman. For the record, my
name is Charles Carlisle, vice president of St. Joe. Today I am ap-
pearing on behalf of an ad hoc coalition of 33 industry and labor
organizations that have been working for more than a year for amend-
ments to make the countervailing duty statute more effective against
foreign subsidies.

With me, on my right, is Mr. Stanley Nehmer, president of Eco-
nomic Consulting Services, based in this city, and Mr. Donald
deKieffer on my left of the Washington law firm of Collier, Shannon,
Rill, Edwards & Scott. Both of these gentlemen have had extensive
experience with the countervailing duty statute.

Mr. Chairman, with your permission I propose that our prepared
remarks, together with the four attachments. be entered in the record,
and T would like to summmarize them in slightly different words.

We are going to make four points this morning. First, our trade
negotiators have done a good job on negotiating the subsidies code
in Geneva. as far as we know, at this time. We have not seen the final
version of it.

On the basis of waat we now know, we are hopeful that the code
will serve as an ac .eptable international framework for the control
of subsidies vnd as a basis for implementing legislation that will be
helpful to our country.

Second, the implementing legislation and how that legislation will
be administered are more important than the sulsidies code itself.
We have learned from bitter expericnce that there is often a sub-
stantial gap, I should say, between the promise of the countervailing
duty statute and the performance of the Treasury Department under
the statute.

Third. we have from the outset believed that this count.y’s counter-
vailing duty statute requires substantial amendment regardless of the
outcome of the Geneva negotintions, Why? First, we think that for-
eign subsidies practices are widespread and harmful to our economy
and second, we believe that the present statute and Treasury’s ad-
ministration of it are seriously inadequate. We strongly doubt,
frankly, that Treasury is capable of managing this program
effectively.

Fourth, we are proposing that the implementing legislation con-
tain some 16 amendments to the counterwvailing duty statute to make
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it a more effective instrument against foreign subsidies, and these
are contained in attachment 2 to our testimony. R

Among our proposals is one that would remove the administering
authority from the Treasury Department,

I also would like to stress at this time that, to the best of our knowl-
edge, our proposals are consistent with the Geneva Subsidies Code in
every important respect. Let me turn briefly to each of those points.

First, the subsidies code. Ambassador Strauss and the principal
American negotiators of the code, Mr. Rivers and Mr. Greenwald, have
done a good job under trying circumstances, but the negotiations are
not yet completed. We have not yet scen the final document. We suspect
that. like all negotiated documents, the code will not entirely satisfy
anyone, including us. But, as I said a moment ago, we hope that it will
serve as an acceptable compromise,

Speaking of compromise, there is one key compromise in the code.
The United States has agreed to an injury test in return for interna-
tional recognition of the fact that internal subsidies—by which I
mean such things as regional development grants and covering of
losses of State-owned companies and so on, can adversely affect indus-
tries in other countries and for recognition that countervailing meas-
ures may be employed against those internal subsidies.

As you know, under current law a domestic complainant does not
have to demunstrate injury except in the case of duty-free merchandise.
Many of us in our group believe that there shouid be no requirement
for an injury test because we think that subsidization constitutes a
per se violation of fair trode concepts and injury should be presumed.

Currently, the GATT does not require a U.S. industry test. How-
ever, a number of organizations in the coalition are prepared, reluc-
tantly, to go ahead with an injury test provided that that meets the
requirements of simplicity, certainty, and low threshold.

‘We do hope, Mr. Chairman, that this committee will give this mat-
ter the closest possible attention.

Why is there a need for amendments to the countervailing duty
statute, our second point? First, foreign subsidies are, in our judgment,
pervasive and probably increasing. As partial evidence, attachments
3 and 4 are two articles which, while not exhaustive, are illustrative
of the kinds of subsidies that we are concerned abnut.

Second, as I said a minute or two ago, the current law, and Treas-
ury’'s administration of it, are clearly inadequate. A few examples.
First, Treasury has frequently missed statutory deadlines, sometimes
by many months; in one or two cases, extending to a year.

Second, they have reduced countervailing duties in questionable
ways not specifically authorized by either the countervailing duty
statute or by regulation.

Third, they have conducted ex parte meetings with foreign repre-
sentatives at which allegedly confidential information has been sub-
mitted to Treasury.

The difficulties of rebutting information furnished in this manner
are obvious, or does Treasury verify the in formation.

Moreover, the fourth point, they have changed rules without ade-
quate opportunity for comment.

Now, Mr. Robert Mundheim, 1 -easury’s General Counsel whom I
personally know and respect and who is currently in charge of this
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program, has indicated that he may be prepared to make some changes
adninistratively, but we believe that to have a thorough revitaliza-
tion of the statute’s administration it is necessary to move the admin-
istering authority out of Treasury.

Where would we put that administering authority? Probably in a
restructured, and perhaps renamed, Commerce Department. We under-
stand that the administration is now considering placing the various
foreign trade functions in a revamped Commerce Department and
apparently this could be done, Mr. Chairman, by using the President’s
existing authority. It would require little or no new legislation.

We would have to see the details but, in principle, we think this
1s a good idea.

Now, if in the opinion of this committee and the Congress, legisla-
tion is required, then the Trade Department bill, S. 877, which was
proposed by Senators Roth and Ribicoff and was cosponsored by,
among others, you, Senator Heinz, we think would merit serious
consideration.

Attachment IT, as I said, contains our other proposals. Time does
not permit going over these in detail, but let me summarize briefly
what they would do.

First, they would revitalize and tighten the administration of the
statute. Second, they would reduce considerably the administering
authority’s discretion. Third, they would strip away a lot of the secrecy
surrounding countervailing duty proceedings and make the entire
process somewhat more formal. Fourth. they would provide a more
certain instrument against the countless internal subsidies which gov-
ernments employ. Now Congress is obviouslv becoming aware of the
problems which concern many of us in our coalition.

Senator Danforth’s bill. S. 223, cosponsored by a number of Senators
on this committee, again including you, Senator Heinz, is certainly a
big step in the right direction, and we do anticipate that otlier legisla-
tion will be introduced soon so that additional attention can be given
to this matter.

In my concluding minute, let me make four points quickly.

First, the way to build support for the trade package is to address
this subsidies question effectively.

Second, to advocate and carrv out effective countermeasures against
subsidies is to support, not hinder, free trade. Subsiaies distort market
functions.

Third, our proposals are not contrary in any important respect
to the subsidies code negotiated at Geneva,

Finally, we are entering an unusual legislative situation in which
we are going to have legislation that can only be voted up or down,
without amendment. That places a preminm on close scrutiny of the
pronosals before they are formally received.

We have no doubt that vou and other members of this committee
will give this matter the closest possible atteniion. Thank vou very
much for hearing our vinws this morning. We are prepared to try
to answer anv questions vou might have.

Senator Heinz. Mr. Carlisle, thank vou very much. There is one
thing that you said, rather quickly, but I think it is quite significant,
if T heard you right, and that is that you do not believe that the
amendments that you have provided to the committee as an additional
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submission would seriously conflict with the code being negotiated. Is
that correct ? .

Mr. CaruisiLE, That is correct, Senator Heinz. We have been in close
touch, as have others, with our negotiatorsand, to the very best of our
knowledge, there is not any serious conflict at all. )

Senator Heinz. Have you discussed the amendments specifically
with Ambassador Strauss? .

Mr. CaruisLE. Yes; we have, and also with Mr. Richard Rivers,
the chief American negotiator.

Senator Heinz. How have Mr. Rivers and Mr. Strauss reacted to
your proposed amendments ¢

Mr. Caruisie. I am glad to say quite favorably. It is my understand-
ing that they believe Slat the amendments which we propose are con-
structive, and I think they are prepared to help work for our amend-
nments along these lines.

Senator Heinz. I bring these points out on the record for several
purposes, one of which is, as you know, Mr. Carlisle, that this is an
area 1 have been involved in for some time. I do not know what the
final result of consultations between the committee and the administra-
tion will be, but I think it is important for all of us to recognize that
what we want, as you pointed out, is an agreement that is going to
work. And the purpose of your amendments, and the purpose oi the
amendments I am working on, are to improve the code, not to subvert
it, and that all of us—and I commend you and your associates in par-
ticular—have been in close consultation with the STR and his staff.

Let me ask, assuming that the subsidies code is adopted, should there
be any provision in the implementing legislation that would give guid-
ﬂnceg for the currently outstanding, countervailing duty determina-
tion

Mr. CarLISLE. Senator, I would like to suggest that Mr. Nehmer
might address that question.

Mr. NEnMER. Senutor, if I understand your question correctly, what
happens to existing countervailing duty actions once the code is
adopted and implementing legislation is enacted.

You have two actions, one that has been waived in the past and the
action when it is waived through the Congress, the waiver of authority
exists and it will continue to be waived and those which have not been
waived and are on the pooks. It would be a very serious mistake if the
legislation would require that those existing cases, then, be subjected
to an injury test which is what is being put into the code and presum-
ably in the implementing legislation.

enator HEinz. I think that there are two questions here. One is
whether a waiver authority should be continued in the law and the
second is the one that you just mentioned, the question of the injury
test. I think those are two distinct issues.

Mr. NeamEeR. Certainly in the first one, I think all of us feel that
there should not be any waiver authority in the law beyond whatever
the extension is that is provided for. The code presumably to be pre-
scribed to by many foreign governments, most foreign governments
that have been involved in the negotiation, certainly does set a frame-
work for future actions There should be no basis for any waiver of

thel action of the countervailing duty once they have subscribed to the
coda,
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On the question of the injury test, as Mr. Carlisle pvinted out, many
of the 33 organizaticns thot are a f)art of this coalition do not feel that
there should be an injury test. If there should be one, it certainly
should be one that is expeditious and at a low threshold of injury.

Senator Heinz. One other issue that arises is the extent to which
we should expect reciprocity from other nations, Do you have any
thoughts as to how we could provide in our implementing legislation
that we will not fully implement a trade agreement for a particular
code signatory unless that signatory implements the code on a fully
reciprocal basis? Is that something you could comment on#

Lﬁ'. Neumer. Certainly if a foreign government commits itself as a
signatory of the code not to engage in subsidy practices and then it
violates that obligation, it does reimpose or continue subsidies. Cer-
tainly at the very least, there should be no injury test required before
the United States imposes a countervailing duty.

That, it seems to me, to he the minimum the United States should
require.

?\Ir. CaruisLE. Tet me just add a word or two. The code, of course,
does contain a disputes settlement process, but if that did not work,
as Mr. Nehmer suggests, with another country in violation of the
code in some significant fashion, then I think we would be relieved,
or should be relieved, of extending obligations to them under the code.

Senator Hrinz, Very well.

Mr. deKieffer?

Mr. pEK1ErFER. I would like to echo Mr. Nehmer’s remarks, par-
ticularly i one aspect, the nonsignatory to the code. Certainly the
procedure would not apply to then. Perhaps we would have no option
under what 1s called the track I system. I see no reason to give the
nonsignatories to the code the same breaks that the signatories to the
code would have. '

I think one way of implementing that would be to continue the
existing countervailing duty law to the countries who refuse to sign the
code. No injury test.

Mr. Caruiste. If I could add one thing to that, Senator Heinz. On
this very point, certainly it would seem to us that any legislation which
was introduced should require an injury test only when the inter-
national obligations of the United States so required. If a country is
not signatory to the code, it would seem to us that no injury test
should be used.

Senator Heinz. In the same vein, section 126 of the Trade Act of
1974 contains provisions that attempt to secure reciprocal and non-
discriminatory treatment for U.S. commerce in foreign trade. Should
we take this section to its ultimate conclusion and reassert the condi-
tional principle in our trade relations with other countries?

Mr. peK1errer. Yes, Senator. I certainly believe that we should
adopt a policy that would make it possible for us to take action against
people who will not a%rree to sign a code which is designed to liberalize
trade. If a country, for reasons of its own, does not carry our com-
mitment to liberalize trade, I do not think they deserve the benefits
of negotiations that have been carried forward in the GATT.,

I see no obligation on our part, moral or legal, to do so.

Mr. NEnbter. I certainly agree with Mr., deKieffer. One of the big
problems that I would foresce is that a country will sign the code and
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will reimpose subsidies in a hidden way which will not be made pub-
lic, then it is going to be up to the agency administering this program
for the United States to be able to have enough guts to investigate
reports to keep on top of what foreign governments are doing.

It is this particular area, among others, that has led us to conclude
that the Treasury Department is not captble of really managing this
program in that kind of way.

Senator Heixz. Weuld you care to submit for the record, because
we are running a little short of time—maybe it is in your submission—
your rationale, or reasons in move detail, of why the Treasury has not
been a sufficient guardian of the countervailing duty statutes?

Mr. CarnisLE. Scnator, we will be glad to subinit soon for the record
certainly what I would call our rationale. We cannot really furnish
an exhaustive list because this information is simply not available to
us and you might want to address some form of inquiry to the Treasury
Department also, but yes; we will submit what we know about some
of these practices in more detail.

Senator IIeixz. I am sure that would be appreciated by the com-
mittee. I am advised we do expect to meet with Ambassador Strauss
on March 6.

In order for the committee to see it, we would have to have it within
4 or 5 days.

My, Caruisce. We will have it here within 4 or 5 days, sir.

Mr. NeuMer, The list of horror stories is quite long, sir.

[The following was subsequently supplied for the record:]

ADMINISTEATION OF THE COUNTERVAILING DUTY STATUTE BY THE TREASURY
DEPARTMENT

In response to the request of Senator Heinz at the International Trade Sub-
committee’s hearings on February 22, 1979, the Ad Hoc Subsidies Coalition of
83 organizativns herewith submits the details of our charges regarding the
Treasury Department's administration of the countervailing duty statute.

We find that the Treasury Department has been guilty of the following
practices:

1. Treasury has missed statutory deadlines.

2. Treasury has reduced the calculated amount of a subsidy, and hence the
contervailing duty, in questionable ways.

3. Treasury has accepted unverified information from foreign representatives
as a basls for its determinations.

4. Treasury has changed rulings without adequate opportunity for interested
parties to comment.

3. Treasury has stretched the authority of the Trade Act of 1874 with regard
to the granting of waivers,

These charges are detailed in the following sections.

1. TREASBURY HAS MISSED STATUTORY DEADLINES

One of the important changes intended to strengthen the countervailing duty
statute as incorporated in the Trade Act of 1974 was the 12 month time limit
established for the Treasury Department’s consideration of countervailing du'y
petitions. This time limit was established as part of the legislative ‘‘deal” which
gave the Secretary of the Treasury authority to waive countervailing duties
under certain circumstances, Under the amendment, the Treasury Department
has six months from the time of receipt of a valid petition to make a preliminary
determination with respect to the exisence of foreign contervailable practices
and then it has an additional six months in which to make a final determination.
Notwithstanding the statutory time limits, Treasury has missed deadlines.

I'wo cases in particular come to mind, one involving Argentine leather apparel
where the statutory deadline for a final determination was January 21, 1978 and

42-978—1079——8
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the other involving Argentine footwear, where the deadline was February 11,
1978, The decisions on both products were finally issued on January 17, 1979 ; that
for leather apparel was negative and the decision on Argentine footwear was
affirmative. Thus, Treasury took twelve months and eleven months longer, re-
spectively, than mandated in the statute to make its determinations in these
two cases.

The effect of failing to make determinations within the statutory deadline is to
deny petitioners due process, particularly where considerable time has elapsed
since the deadline, Thus, when an affirmative decision is finally made, petitioners
huve suffered from Treasury’s failure to institute countervailing duties earHer.
When a negative determination is finally made, a petitioner has been denied
the opportunity to challenge such determinations at an earlier date, in accordance
with Section 516 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended.

Even a simple publication in the Federal Register of a notice of appeal of
Treasury’s countervailing duty determinations encounters unnecessary delay.
Over two months ago the Amalgamated Clothing & Textile Workers Union filed
with Treasury notice of i{ts intent to appeal six such determinations. To date,
Treasury has failed to publish notice to this effect in the Federal Register. The
appeal process cannot move forward without such notice. Once again due
process is being denied by Treasury.

2. TREASURY HAS REDUCED THE CALCULATED AMOUNT OF A S8UBSIDY, AND HENCE THE
COUNTERVAILING DUTY, IN QUESTIONABLE WAYS

Treasury has pursued a policy which they justify as provided for in the
countervailing duty statute of reducing the gross amount of subsidy by various
offsets. Although in most cases the reductions are in the form of indirect taxes
related to the product which receives the subsidy, Treasury has found some
ruther exotic items with which to reduce the subsidy. These include, in the case
of the waiver on handbags from Colombia, the effects of the devaluation of the
foreign currency on the grounds that the Colombian Government aillows as much
as nine months to elapse before subsidies are paid. In this case Treasury even
reduced the subsidy by the cost of the interest on the money not recelved by
Colombian handbag producers and exporters during this ninemonth period.
Treasury describes this offset in the Federal Register of May 2, 1978 as “the
present value effect of the (exporter's tax certificates) resui‘*ing from the in-
flationary impact on . . . delayed payment.” Furthermore, since these exporter’s
tax certificates are sold in the Bogota Stock Exchange, Treasury also allowed a
“discount paid by holders of (exporter’s tax certificates) in the stock exchange,
thus eff: . iively not providing full value of the (exporter’s tax certificates)
once sold.” It is interesting to note that several of these offsets were disallowed
in a more recent case involving Colombian textiles and apparel, but Treasury
has not bothered to go back to its earlier decision to recompute the countervailing
duties on Colombian handbags. The Colombian handbag case is not untypical.

It is so important to recognize that the reductions which Treasury makes in
the subsidy through subtracting the indirect taxes related to the products ignore
cowmpletely the fact that In virtually all of the foreign countries concerned these
in_direct taxes would have been borae by the manufacturer even in the absence
of the subsidy program, and that the subsidy program clearly is intended to give
the foreign manufacturers an edge in selling to the U.S. This is exactly what
the countervailing duty statute is aimed at offsetting, but Treasiry nevertheless
Roes on deducting these indirect taxes to the point where many negative or

de minimis determinations result or the countervailing dut i igni tl
sialler than it should bLe. ¢ ¥ 18 significantly

8. TREABURY HAS ACCEPTED UNVERIFIED INFORMATION FROM FOREIGN
REPRESENTATIVES A8 A BASIS FOR ITS DETEERMINATIONS

Treasury makes most of its determinations with regard to the size of a counter-
vailing duty or a waiver of a countervailing duty on the basis of data submitted
b7 foreign governments and by foreign firms or associations of firms. In neither
case are the data verified by Treasury. Admittedly, it is dificult for Treasury to
verify data submitted by foreign interests, but at least an effort should be made
to assure the American petitioner that, indeed, the data on which a determina-
tion is made by Treasury are reliable. Treasury says that it must take the word
of a foreign government. Yet in a case involving Argentine footwear, the word
of a foreign government was not good enough. It reneged on a commitment which
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had been made to Treasury. In that particular case, Treasury sald “but they had
a change of governments in Asgentina.” Unfortunately the new government in
power did not bother to advise Treasury that it had reversed the commitment
made by its predecessors, and Yreasury did not reopen this case for a consider-
able period of time after the subsidies were reinstated.

4. TREASURY HAS CHANGED RULINGS WITHOUT ADEQUATE OPPORTUNITY FOR
INTERESTFL PARTIES TO COMMENT

Even when Treasury once announces a net subsidy, taking into account the
reduction for indirect taxes, it continues to amend those calculations mostly on
the downside based  upon new information which it receives from the foreign
government. For instance, in the case of Spain, Treasury announced a 4 percent
countervailing duty on unwrought zinc in April 1977. In June 1978, Treasury
reduced the existing countervailing duty on zinc and on several other Spanish
products subject to U.S. countervailing duties by revising its method for calcu-
lating indirect tax subsidy offsets. 'This action was taken after consultation with
Spanish authorities but without consultation with U.S8. industries involved.
Despite the controversy Treasury aroused over the basis for this reduction,
Treasury reduced the countervailing duty but without suspending the liquida-
tion of entries until all views could be heard.

Treasury later realized tie views of the U.S. industries had merit and that it
Lad made a istake on its revised method for calculating the countervailing
duties. Six months later Treasury reverted to the basis of calculations it used
prior to June 1978 with the effect that the countervailing duty was now raised
ugain, although not quite to the original levels.

In the interim, between June 16, 1978 and January 17, 1979, because Treasury
had not suspended the liquidation of entries on Spanish zine, nonrubber foot-
wear, and bottled olives, importers benefitted from a lower rate of countervailing
duty which gave them a windfall they certainly did not merit.

5. TREASUBRY HAS STRETCHED THE AUTHORITY OF THE TRADE ACT OF 1974 WITH
REGARD TO THE GRANTING OF WAIVERS

The Trade Act and the temporary four-year waiver authority which expired
January 3, 1979, provided the Secretary of the Treasury with authority to waive
the imposition of countervailing duties when he determines that:

1. adequate steps have been taken to reduce substantially or eliminate the
adverse effect of the bounty or grant on domestic producers ;

2. that there is a reasonable prospect that trade agreements to reduce or
eliminate non-tariff barriers will be entered into ; and

3. the imposition of countervailing duties would be likely to seriously jeopar-
dize the satisfactory completion of such negotiations.

Treasury Department officials have consistently interpreted these three cri-
teria—all of which must exist before a walver can be issued—so loosely as to
permit them to justify any action administratively decided upon.

In one case, involving the imposition on January 12, 1976 of a 14 percent
countervailing duty on Brazilian handbags, the Secretary of the Treasury under-
took subsequently to waive this duty as part of a ‘“package agreement’” on trade
ixsues which he personally negotiated during a visit to Brazil in May 1976. That
waiver on Brazilian handbags was made effective J uly 1, 1976. Can it be said that
at that time there was a “reasonable prospect” that successful trade agreements
were to be entered into? Could it have been said in May 1976 that the imposition
of the additional duty was “likely to seriously jeopardize the satisfaetory com-
pletion of such.negatiations?’’ Hardly, on both counts.

A recent glaring example of a new horror story is that related to Treasury's
finding that Urugusyan subsidies on leather wearing apparel were equivalent to
12 percent of the f.0.h, price for expcrt to the United States.

In its final determination issued January 30, 1978, Treasury noted an intent
to waive the imposition of countervailing duties on the basis that it had received
axsurances from Uruguay of a phase-down of only one subsidy—the “reintegro”
program of cash rebates which alone amounted to 20 percent or more of the value
of the goods exported. However, hecause leather wearing apparel from Uruguay
eutered the United States free of duty under the Generalized System of Prefer-
ences, the International Trade Commission was called upon (as required by
Section 303 (b} of the Trade Act) te determine whether Uruguayan subsidies on
on leather wearing apparel injured che United States industry. Following a com-
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prehensive investigation, the ITC in April 1978, announced a unanimous injury
finding. Nonetheless, even in the face of such a unanimous decision by the-
Commission with respect to the subsidized Uruguayan leather apparel, the
Treasury Department carried out its planned walver, which was duly an-
nounced in the Federel Register of June 30, 1978.

Treasury justified its waiver on the basis of Uruguayan assurances that it
would phase out its major ‘“reintegro” subsidy program by January 1, 1979. In
agreeing to waive the countervailing duty on this basis, Treasury did not require
the Government of Uruguay to reduce or eliminate other countervailable trade:
practices which the Treasury had determined to exist in Uruguay. Treasury’'s
justification for permitting a waiver while the Uruguayans would leave these
subsidies intact, was that they were very small, perhaps in the order of 2 per-
cent, whereas the major subsidy program, which provided a subsidy of at leaxt
20 percent was netted down to around 12 percent,

The dometic industry argued with Treasury officlals that they were ignoring.
an additional subsidy benefitting Uruguayan tanners equal to 8 percent of the
value of the leather content in various products exported. Treasury decided
differently. However, more recently, Treasury discovered that, indeed, it had
made a mistake and that the 8 percent subsidy on the leather content of products
exported to the United States was a countervailable duty. Thus, instead of a
residual of 2 percent after the scaling down of the major subsidy. Treasury
found that the remaining subsidy on Uruguayan leather apparel added up to-
a total of 13.3 percent. It decided to impose this subsidy effective November 13,
1978 and revoked its former walver.

Fiven after Congress failed to extend the countervailing duty waiver authority
last October, Treasury went ahezd and waived the countervailing duty of almost
38 percent on Brazilian textiles and apparel on assurance that subsidies would be
reduced by half by January 1, 1979 and by the remaining half by January 1, 1950.
In the interimn of one year, Brazil is being allowed to continue subsidies of a
substantinl amount without having countervailing duties napplied, to the detri-
ment of American firms and workers.

CONCLUSION

The foregoing documents what our group considers to have been a misman-
agement of the countervaiiing duty program - the Treasury Department, This
record does not support the assertion ot t.e Secretary of the Treasury to the
Joint Feonomic Committee on January 31, 1979 that Treasury does its “best to
sdminister the statute fairly and efficiently.” It is for these reasons that our
group of 33 organizations believes that the administration of the countervailing:
duty statute should be removed from the Treasury Department.

Senator Heinz. On belialf of the other members of the committtec,
I would like to say we appreciate your appearance, and if members of’
the committee do have additional questions, I am sure they will submit
them to you in writing. We would appreciate whatever Yxelp you can
give us on them,

Mr. Caruisre. Thank you very much, Senacor,

{ The prepared statement of Mr, Carlisle follows:]

STATEMENT OF CHARLES R. CARLISLE oN BEHALF oF THE AD Hoo SUBSIDIES
COALITION

Mr. Chairman, my name is Charles R. Carlisle. I am a Vice President of St.
Joe Minerals Corporation which has its headquarters in New York City, Today
I am appearing on behalf of an ad hoc coalition of 33 industrial and labor orga-
nizations (Attachment 1) that.are working for amendments to make the coun-
tervailing duty statute more effective against foreign subsidies, Our coalition
began its work over a year ago.

With me are Mr, Stanley Nehmer, President of Economic Consulting Services,
based in this city, and Mr. Donald dcKieffer of the Washington law firm of
Collter, Shannon, Rill, Edwards and Scott. Both Messrs, Nehmer and deKieffer-
have had extensive experience with the countervailing duty statute and both
represent a number of clients who have flled cases under the statute,
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PRINOCIPAL POINTA

Our testimony makes the following principal points:

1. Our trade negotiators, working in a difficult situation, appear to have done
-2 good job of negotiating a Subsidies Code at Geneva. We have not yet seen a
fiaal version of the Code, but, on the basis of what we know now, we are hopeful
that the Code can serve as an acceptable international framework to control the
use of subsidies and as the basis for implementing legislation that will be helpful
to American labor and industry.

2. From our standpoint, and, we believe, that of the Congress, the implementing
legislation and how that legislation will be administered are more fmportant
than the Svbsidies Code itself. Many of the organizations represented in our
coalition have learned from bitter experienece that there has been & vast gap
between the promise of the countervailing duty statute and the performance of
the Treasury Department under the statute.

3. Since its inception our coalition has believed that this country’s counter-
vailing duty statute requires substantial amendment regardless of the outcome
of the Geneva negotiations. We have taken this position because, first, we believe
that forelgn subsidy practices are widespread, growing and harmful to the
American economy ; and, second, because we believe that the present statute and
the Treasury Department’s administration of it are seriously inadequate. In-
deed, we strongly doubt that Treasury is capable of managing this program
effectively.

4. We are proposing that the implementing legislation include some 16 amend-
ments to the countervailing duty statute to make it a more effective instrument
against foreign subsidy practices. Among our proposals is one that would remove
the administration of the countervailing duty statute from the Treasury Dcpart-
ment. I want to stress that our proposals are consistent with the Geneva Subsi-
dies Code in every important respect.

I now would like to turn briefly to each of those points.

THE SUBSIDIES CODE

As I have noted, Ambassador Strauss and the principal American negotiators
of the Subsidies Code, STR General Counsel Richard Rivers and Mr. John
Greenwald have done a good job under trying circumstances. But the negotia-
tions have not been completed as yet. We suspect that, like all negotiated docu-
ments, the Code will not entirely satisfy anyone, including us. We hope, however,
that it will be an acceptable compromise, and that it will permit the introduction
of worth-while implementing legislation.

We would like to call the Committee’s attention to the key compromise : in
return for international recognition of the fact that ‘“internal” subsidies (such
as regional development grants and the underwriting of losses by state-owned
companiea), as well as export subsidies, can advergely atfect industries in other
countries, and recognition that countervailing measures may be employed against
those internal subsidfes, the United States has agred to accept an “injury test.”
Under current law, a domestic complainant does not have to demonstrate injury
except in the case of duty-free merchandise.

Many of us believe that there should be no requirement to deraonstrate injury
because subsidization constitutes a per se violation of fair-{rade concepts and
injury should be presumed. Currently, the GATT does not require a U.S. injury
test. Furthermore, an injury test involves a cost and expenditure of tiimne which
many petitioners will find to be very burdensome.

A number of the organizations in our coalition are prepared, however, to
accept—reluctantly—an injury test in the Code and in the implementing legis-
lation provided that the test meets the requirements of simplicity, certainty and
low threshold. We hope that the Finance Committee will give this matter the
closest possible attention.

THE NEED FOR AMENDMENTS TO THE C.V. DUTY STATUTE

I have noted our belléf that the implementing legislation is of paramount
fmportance and that the countervailing duty statute would require a number
ofhimportant amendments even If there were no Subsidies Code. Let me explain
why.

First, while no one really knows the extent of foreign subsidy practices
because they are constantly changing and many are hidden, there can be litile
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oubt that they are pervasive and probably increasing. As partial evidence, we
gave attached tywo doxc)flments 10 our testimony (Attachments 3 and 4): ““Europe 8
Subsidy Spree” from the August, 1978, edition of Dun’'s }Im’iew and “Competi-
tiveness in the U.S. Minerals Industry,” a statement which I submitted to the
staff conducting the President’s Non-Fuel Minerals Policy Study. Both documents
are. of course, {llustrative rather than exhaustive. .

Second, we bellove, as I sa'd earlier, that the current law and Treasury's
administration of it are clearly inadequate. Let me give you a few examples.

Treasury frequently has:

Missed statutory deadHues, not by just a few days but often by many monthe,
in one or two cases extending to a year;

Reduced the calculated amount of a subsidy, and hence the countervailing
duty, in questionable ways not specifically authorized by either the statute or by
¥ederal regulations;

Conducted ez parte meetings with foreign representatives at which allegedly
confidential information has been submitted to the Treasury Department. The
difficulties which domestic petitioners have in rebutting such information Is
obvious, nor does Treasury verify such information;

Changed rvulings without adequate opportunity for interested parties to
comment.

Mr. Robert Mundheim, Treasury’s General Counsel, who is currently in
charge of the administration of the countervailing duty statute, has indicated
that he may he prepared to make some changes administratively. We believe,
lhowever. that the only war to revitalize thoroughly the statute’s administration
is to move it out of the Treasury Department.

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS

That is one of our principal recommendations. Whers would we put the
administering authority? Probably in a restructured and re-named Commerce
Department. We understand that the Administration is now considering placing
the various foreign trade functions that are scattered throughout the Executive
Branch in a revamped Commerce Department. Apparently that could be done
by using the President’s existing authority and would require little or no new
legislation. We would have to krnow the detalls of any such change before we
could endorse it fully, but in principle we believe that the idea is a good one.

If legislation were required, the trade department bill proposed by Senators
Roth and Ribicoff, and co-sponsored by Senators Danforth and Heinz, merits
serious eonsideration.

Our other proposals are contained in Attachment 2 to this testimony. I would
like to summarize what they would do:

First, they would revitalire and tighten the administration of the counter-
vailing duty statute by, among other things, setting shorter deadlines, requiring
the detziled publication in the Federal Register of reasons for decisions, and:
requiring periodie public reports about foreign subsidy practices.

Second. they would reduce considerably the administering authority’s discre-
tion by, for example, prohibiting deductions from countervailing duties unless
those deductions are specifically authorized by law.

Third, they would strip away a lot of the secrecy surrounding countervailing
duty proceedings and make the entire process somewhat more formal. For ex-
ample, they would put strict Umits on .the submission and' use of confidential
information, and discourage ez partc meetings. Essentially, these amendments
would tend to insulate subsidy cases from political pressures and increase the
chances that decisions would be based on the merits of a case.

Fourth, they would provide a more certain instrument against the myriad
internal subsidies which governments employ. Among these are start-up grants
and low-interest loans given under regional development schLemes and the
covering, out of national treasuries, of losses incurred by state-owned firms.

I am happy to note that the Congress ir becoming aware of the problems which
concern many of us. Senator Danforth’s bill, 8. 223, co-sponsored by Senators
Bentsen, Moynilian, Packwood, Dole. Roth, Heinz and Wallop of this Committee,
is certainly a big step {n the right direction. And we anticipate that other legis-
lation will be introduced soon so that additional attention will be devoted to this
important subject.

CONCLUSION

In closing T would like to underline a few major points. First, there is wide-
spread covcern throughout & number of industries and unions about the subsidies
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problem. One important way to build support for the “package” of trade agree-
ments and implementing legislation—and to lessen opposition—is to deal with
the subsidy problem effectively.

Second, to advocate and carry out effective countermeasures against subsides
is to support, not hinder, freer trade. Subsidies distort market decisions and
lead to the mis-allocation of resources. Thus they negate the very benefits which
freer trade confers. In saying this we recognize, of course, that no Subsidies
Code and no implementing legislation will abolish all subsidy practices. We
belleve, however, that it should be possible at least to reduce some of the more
important ones.

Third, as I previously stated, our proposgls are not contrary in any important
respect . to the Subsidies Code negotiated at Geneva. We do not seek to overturn
the accomplishments of Geneva, but to implement them effectively.

Finally, as we all recognize, we are entering &n unusual legislative situation.
“Unusual”’ because the Administration’s trade package must be voted up or
down and cannot be amended. This means, of course, that all of the negotiating
and bargaining which normally takes place after a bill is introduced must, in this
case, take place before the introduction of the legislation. That, in turn, places
a preminm en the close scrutiny of proposals before they are formally received,
We have no doubt: that the Members of this Committee and the staff will give
these matters their careful attention.

Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman, for this opportunity to present our
views.

ATTACHMENT 1 —ENDORSING ORGANIZATIONS

Amalgamated Clothing & Textile Workers Union, AFL-CIO
American Apparel Manufacturers Association

American Footwear Industries Association

American Pipe Fittings Association

American Textile Manufacturers Institute

American Yarn Spinners Association

Bicycle Manufacturers Association

Cast Tron Soil Pipe Institute

Clothing Manufacturers Association

Copper and Brass Fabricators Council, Inc.

Industrial Union Department, AFL-CIO

International Ladies Garment Workers Union, AFL-CIO
International Leather Goods, Plastics & Novelty Workers Union, AFL-CIO
Lead-Zine Producers Committee

Luggage & Leather Goods Manufacturers of America, Inc.
Man-Made Fiber Producers Association

Metal Cookware Manufacturers Association

National Association of Chain Manufacturers

National Association of Bosiery Manufacturers
National Cotton Counecil

National Federation of Fishermen

National Handbag Association

National Knitted Outerwear Association

National Knitwear Association

National Outerwear & Sportswear Association

Northern Textile Association

Retail Clerks International Upion, AFL~CIO-CLC
Scale Manufacturers Association, Inc.

Synthetic Organic Chemical Manufacturers Association
Tanners Council of America, Inc.

Textlle Distributors Association

Valve Manufacturers Assoclation

Work Glove Manufacturers Association

ATTACHMENT 2.—~PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE COUNTERVAILING DUTY STATUTE

1. The term “kounty or grant” should be defined in the statute (it is not at this
time) g0 as to reinforce the broad scope of that term and reduce the administer-
ing agency’s current latitude for interpretation.

2. The administering agency should be required to prepare a report every six
months on foreign subsidy practices. The report should irclude, but not be
limited to, direct and indirect payments, remissions of charges, the furnishing of
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goods or services at less than market value, loans, credits, loan guarantees,
currency retention schemes, the remission of taxes, and the operation of govern-
ment-owned or controlled enterprises at a loss over a significant period of time.
Enactment of such an amendment would increase the ability of interested parties
to exercise their rights under the law and also would reinforce s broad definition
of the term “bounty or grant.” At this time Treasury does not initiate counter-
vailing duty actions when it has specific information, nor does it advise inter-
ested parties of such information.

3. The administering agency should be iequired to favestigate and take
appropriate action against a subsidy, even though there is no complaint, dis-
covered during the course of an inveatigation of another subsidy. American
petitioners are often unaware of foreign subsidy practices, and at present
Treasury generally does not act unless a specific complaint is received.

4. The administering agency should be prohibited from making any deductions
from any countervailing duty assessed for any items unless such deductions are
specifically authorized by law. Treasury now makes varlous deductions from
countervailing duiies for which there is no clear authority.

5. In the case of start-up or expansion grants, the administering agency should
collect the countervailing duty over a reasonably short period of time, say, a
time equal to the amortization period of the foreign plant or equipment in
question. This would prevent the collection of the duty over, say, the actual life
of the plant in which case the duty does not effectively offset the subsidy.

6. The administering agency should be required to verify information sub-
mitted by foreign governments in subsidy cases. Treasury now takes this infor-
mation, often of questionable accuracy or completeness, at face value,

7. Confidentiality : The administering agency should be required to:

(a) Make public all information provided in an investigation or consultation
with a foreign government unless there i3 a clear showing of national security
or husiness confidentiality and this showing is explained on the public record.

(b) Summarize on the public record national security or business confidential
information if it is to be considered.

(¢) Give advance notice of all consultations to affected domestic Interests and
an opportunity to those .nterests to participate. except in the most unusual cases.

(1) Discourage ex p: rte meetings between it and interested parties, domestic
and foreign.

(e) Maintain and make public on request a record of all meetings between
the administering agencv and parties to an investigation.

(f) Refuse to accept a submission by a party to an investigation unless it is
simultaneously served on the other parties affected : in the case of a confidential
submission, a summary should be simultaneously served.

R. Trade unions, trade associntions and other organizations representing
Anmerican industry and labor should be allowed to seek judicial review of deter-
minations by the administering agency. The current law allows such organiza-
tions to act as complainants, but gives only manufacturers, producers and whole-
salers the right of judicial review.

The right of judicial review should extend to, but not be limited to (a) a
negative dectsion (l.e., lack of existence of a subsidy), (b) the amount of duty
fmposed; (c¢) any mutually agreed solution between the United States and a
foreign party whereby an investigation is terminated or suspended.

9. The liquidation of import entries should he suspended as soon as the admin-
istering agency makes a preliminary determination that a subsidy is being paid.
When a final determination is made that a subsidy is being paid. countervailing
duties shonld be assessed on all merchandise¢ entered after the date of the
original complaint. The Antidumping Act contains a similar provision.

10. The administering agency, after making a determination in a subsidy case,
should be required to publish a detailed report setting forth its reasons in the
Federal Register. Treasury does not now do this.

11. There should be no amendment requiring an injury test for dutiable prod-
ucts, For more than & years the countervailing duty law has enibodied the
principle that subsidization of such prodncts constitutes a2 per se violation of
fair trade concepts and that injury is to be presumed. as in the case of per se
violations of domestic antitrust laws. That principle is as valid tuoday as it has
ever beet, '

It it proves necessary for the United States to agree to an Injury test in the
course of multilateral negotlation of a subsidles code, the agreed provision
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must permit the adoption of an injury test that would meet the requirements
of simplicity, certainty and low threshold.!

12, If an injury test is required, it iy essential that U.8. petitioners be pro-
tected from frequent review of injury determinations, Normally, there should
be no such review in less than three years. To obtain a review in a shorter perind
of time a directly interested party should be required to demonstrate positively
that no evidence of injury exists and that there is no likelihood that injury will
recur in the foreseeable future,

13. Section I A (1) of the Code states that “an investigation to determine
the existence, degree and effect of any alleged subsidy shall normally be initinted
upon a written request by or on behalf of the industry affected.” It is necessary
to clarify the meaning of the phrase “by or on behalf of” to ensure that it includes
comparnies, unions, trade associations or any other interested entity.

14. The administering ageney should be required to publish intermedinte
findings at the end of three months and a final determination at the end of six
months from the date the petition is filed. This would halve the time limits in
the existing statutory provision and would take cognizance of the fact that
Treasury rarely begins comprehensive analysis of countervailing duty com-
plaints during the first ¢ix months of the presently allowed one-year processing
period.

15. Section I B of the Code authorizes signatories to request information from
other signatories about their subsidy practices. Domestic parties at interest
should be abie to ensure that the U.S. Government requests such information, or
if the Government fails to do 8o, the administering agency should be required to
state its reasons for denying the request in the Federal Register,

16. There should be a time limit on the processing of Section 301 cases and a
requiirement to take retaliatory action ‘n those cases whe. foreign subsidies
cause trade diversion in the U.8., markev or in foreign markets or when those
subsidies cause the loss of U.S. export saies. Section 301 of the 1974 Trade Act
currently does not have a tatutory time limit, nor does it actually require the
President to use his broad uuthority to take retaliatory action against subsidy-
induced trade diversion and export loss,

[From Dun’s Review, August 1878]
ATTACHMENT 3.—EUROPE'S SUBSIDY SPREE

The startling growth of government subsidies to industry in Western Europe,
which is makiug it increasingly tough for American companies to compete, has
become a major issue between the U.S. and the European Iiconomic Community.
The Americans finally wrung some concessions on subsidies out of the EEC in
recent trade negotiations. But it remains to be seen whether or not they will be
effective,

Of course, many basic industries in Europe have been state-owned for years.
But government involvement has spread pervasively in the past two years—
through loans, grants, equity purchases and a host of other aids. In large part,
these are job-saving measures, growing out of deep European concern over high
and rising nuemployment. There are currently 5.8 million jobless (5.59% of the
work force) in the EEC alone, and most forecasts suggest that without more vig-
orous economic growth, joblessness will keep rising well into the 1080,

Compounding the unemployment problem, European industry is heavily bur-
dened with overcapacity, and plant and equipment generally is less efficient than
that in the (.8, and Japan. Left alone, many companies would collapse and con-
sign still more workers to the unemployment lines. But government leaders are
under strong political pressure to preserve jobs. And most of them take the view
that whatever the marketplace logic, permitting companies employing thousands

17he following organizations belleve that the above statement implies a willingness
to accept some form of lnjtury test. They believe that the countervailing duty statute
should have no requirement for an injury test of any kind: Amalgamated C othlnf &
Textile Workers Union, AFL~CIO; American Apparel Manufacturers Assn.; American
Yal;n Spinners Asen,; Clothing Manufacturers Asin.; Industrial Unica Dept., AFL~C1O;
Int'l Ladles Garment Workers Union, AFL—CIO; Int'l Leather Goods, Plastics & Novelty
Workers Unlon, AFL~CIO; Man-Made Flber Producers Assn.: National Cotton Council;
National Handimc Assn, ; National Knitted Outerwear Assn.; Natlonal Kitwesar Assa.;
National Outerwear & Bportswear Assn.; Northern Textile Aun.: Textile Distributors
Assn. ; Work Glove Mfgra. Assn.; American Textile Manutacturers Institute; Luggage
& Lenther Goods Mfgrs. of America ; National Federation of Fishermen.
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of workers to fld ir fimply not justifiable. Hence, while they are helping to
streamline outdated plant and slim down work forces to some extent, instances
where they are just shoring up sick industries keep multiplying.

subsidization 18 most obvious in three sectors with massive overcapacity. In
steel and shipbuilding, control of many formerly private companies is passing
into state hands, with most of the remaining irms relying heavily on subsidies
to stay in business, And scores of textile and fiber manufacturers, hit by reces-
sion and cheap competition from the Far East, are surviving only with govern-
ment help,

Rut aid is also pourf g into a growing roster of other industries, including
pulp and paper, heavy »ngineering., chemicals, plastics, machine tools, building
materials, electronics and even food. Alongside government assistance to hun-
dreds of small and mediuimn-kised firmy, major rescue operations are under way in
almost ¢ rery West European country.

BPENDING PROGRAMS

In France the government last year took a one-third share in Dassault,
maker of the Mirage jet fighter, and Dassault will probably be merged with
state-owned aireraft group Aerospatiale, This spring, the government launched a
three-year development program in four industries—drugs, mechanical engineer-
ing, farm and food products—to be jointly funded by government and private
capital ; and it has pledged nearly $1 billion in aid for the pulp and paper indus-
try, despite the refusal of the industry to cooperate in a restructuring program.
The govermnent plans to spend nearly $1 billion this year on undisgulsed job
preservation,

Despite huge losses and debts, Italy’s glant state holding company, Instituto
ver la Riconstruzione Industrinle (1RI), which has long dominated industry,
continues to absorb even more private-sector companies in distress. The govern-
ment has made new loans to IRI's huge food and confectionery subsidiary, which
is deep in the red. Also being holstered by loans is the mainly privately owned
chemicals maker Stonledison SpA, which lost money heavily last year; and the
company was digsuaded from laying off 6.000 textile workers by the government,
which simply transferred the workers to its own payrell.

In the Netherlands the Dutch government last year handed out subsidies to
38 heavy-engiveering companies, 25 textile firms, thirteen building materials and
furniture manufacturers and more. It also purchased a controlling interest in
the money-losing local subsidiary of AB Volvo, Sweden’s leading carmarker. This
yeur. as part of what it admits is the biggest rescue operation since World War
11, the government is taking a stake in VMF Stork, the troubled heavy-engineer-
ing group, and in a division of a leading shipbuilding firm.

German~ despite its ideologiral commitment to marketplace disciplines, has
always had a sizable publie sector, and it is now beefing up government involve-
ment through massive loans. It has earmarked $30 million to help revamp the
steel industry in the Saar—plus $100 million more to subsidize nonsteel firms
in the area. In the coal industry, on top of $2 billion already spent, it is plan-
ning to shell out $290 miliion a year through 1982 to guarantee investment and
Johs, And Germany has a particularly generous program of job subsidization
throughout industry.

Britain also is spending heavily or job-saving and on boosting weak but
“<strategic” industrial sectors. Hundreds of companies are receiving honuses if
they refrain from firing workers or take on new ones. Last year the government
nationalized the entire ehipbuilding and ship-repair industry. It is also keeping
nfloat the state-owned British Steel Corp., which lost $1.6 billion last year and
ix 80.7 billion in debt-—and is currently a target of U.S. dumping charges.
Meanwhile, the ill-starred, state-controlled British Leyland Corp., which lost
$85 million last year has received further state loans and equity capital. Its
stroggling competitor, Chrysler UK, is also being propped up by state funds in
a jnh-saving move.

Denmark despite high unemployment, has been alone among the Common
Market nations in refusing to bolster ailing corpanies—partly bhecause its
industry is fair.y efficient and flexible, partly because it simply cannot a/Yord
big handouts. As a result, it I8 urging the EEC Commission, and also its
Seandinavian trading partners, to crack down on subsidization.

The Idancos complain that thelr forest products industry was badly hurt last
Year by government subsidies in Sweden, which enabled the Swedish industry
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to cut the chipboard prices in Denmark by 20%. (The 8 ~redish government has
come up with another $195 million for the timber industry this year.) Similarly,
Danish textile makers have suffered from Not vay’'s job-subsidy payments to its
textiie industry. *Our shirtmaking industry has been wiped out,” charges Finn
Breitenstein, international economist at the Danish Federation of Industry.
Bowing to the competitive pressures for the first time, the Danish government
ix making a major grant to its only steel company, which is privately owned.

PERPETUATING INEFFIOCIENCY

The Danes are not the only ones complaining. Businiessmen on both sides
of the Atlantic believe that subsidization is loading the dice against private
companies. Ameriean companies in particylar, which must compgte with sub-
sidized Zuropean autos, steel, machine tools and other goods both in the U.8.
and abroad, have been crying foul. For large chunks of manufacturing industry
that would otherwise have fallen by the wayside are not only surviving, but
ure be'ng shielded from competition through low subsidized prices that private
industry is hard put to match.

Whaile European governments claim that they are primarily helping induvstries
modernize plant and equipment. the consensus among international trade offi-
cials is that “restructuring” all too often turns out to be a euphemism for
“propping up.” Secretary-General Emil van Lennep of the Organization for
I.conomic Cooperation and Development (OECD), which includes most Western
nations, says that even when governments originally pump funds into com-
punies to help them recsganize and become more competitive, suich programs
often fail and the money ends up Leing used to perpetuate ineficient companies
#0 as to save jobs. This trend, Lennep warns, will eventually make economies
less productive and more Inflation-prone.

Indeed, European governments are themselves increasingly worried about
*he huge sums they feel obliged to dole out to save johs. Says German Eco-
nomies Minister Otte von Lamsdorf: “Experience shows that measures taken
in the name of adjustment aids tend to perpetuate themselves, simply preserving
nonviable plant.”

Efforts have been made to regulate gtate ald through the EEC and OECD,
Lat they have not worked out. To start with, the full extent of the subsidies is
nunknown since governments are adept at disguising them—by calling them
regional incentives, say, or farming them out to local governments, which do not
have to notify the EEC. ‘1 here {8 no limit to thelr imagination when it comes
to ways of concealing subsidies,” sighs one EEC otficial.

Then there is the difficulty of even defining subsidies. Some are clear-cut
enough, But what about regional incentives or government insurance against
inflation risk on exports? And what of state loans at “commercial” rates or tak-
ing an eqnity interest in companiea? As one trade negotiator says: “You might
us well call fiee school meals an industrial subsidy, since they could reduce
cesgure for higher wages.”

To be sure, there are some signs of progress. For the first time, both the EEC
and the OECD are now working up inventoriex of all types of governmental
activity they consider to be subsidiex. If nember nations can agree on these lists,
all subsidies actually being paid out can be catalogued country by country.

Besides that, as noted, the Europeans have made some moves in response to
American pressure. In June. most West European governments signed an QECD
pledge to curb state support of industry. And in the current Tokyo Round nego-
tiations on global trade liberalization, the EEC Commission agreed to an Ameri-
can demand that it draw up a broad code to restrict member governments sub-
sidizing their exporters.

However, the reality behind these assurances is less encouraging, according
to one knowledgeable European trade expert. He agrees that there will likely
be a modest improvement in Europe’s behavior. “But the European nations
adhered to the OECD pledge with major private reservations,” he points out
*while the EEC Commission has little power to persuade member states to change
their ways. however ringing its assurances.”

In practice, the trade expert warns, governments will continue to respond
above all to the more copelling domestic pressures for job preservation, “So if
the U.8. accepts Eurcpean proinises to exercise discipline in subsidies,” he be-
lieves, “this would be partly a facesaver. And the U.8. team, working at Geneva
to meet a midsummer deadline on a broad Tokyo Round agreement, knows it.”

—JEAN ROS8-SKINNER
AUGUST 1978
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ATTACHMENT 4.—REMARRKS TPTRFPARED ON DEIALF OF THE AMERICAN MINING
CoNuRESS BY CHARLES R. CARLISLE VICE PRESIDENT, ST. JOE MINERALS Corp.

CoMPETITIVENESS OF THE 7.8, MINERALS INDUSTRIES

Of the 12 materials under study in the Non-Fuel Minerals Policy Review, the
United States has large or very large ore depnsits in six: copper, lead. zine,
silver, phosphate and iron. Moreover. although it has little bauxite, this country
is by far the world’s largest producer of gluminum. On behalf of the American
Mining Congress this paper addresses the U.8, competitive position in those
geven commodities,

Three conclusions emerge :

1. The United States ix losing Its competitive position in six of the seven, and
the position of the seventh, lead, is threatened by proposed, unrealistic EPPA and
OSHA regulations.

2. The United States is 13 to B0 percent dependent on imports in gix of the
seven materials, Only in the case of phosphate rock does it have an export sur-
plus, and that surplus i8 declining as U.8. production increases fail to keep pace
with thnse in the rest of the world. In only two—copper and lead—of the other
six materials has it managed to improve, marginally, its position of import
dependence; in the case of zinc metal, import dependence it has Increased
disastrously. :

3. To soine extent loss of competitive position and increasing import depend-
ence have resulted from what might be considered normal economic and com-
mercial factors, There can be no doubt, however, that intervention in the in-
vestment and trade processes by foreign governments, together with policies
followed by the U.S. Government, also have heen important causes of the in-
creasing diffirulties of the U.S, mining and metals industries.

Table 1 (page 3) shows the erosion of America’s competitive position in six
of the seven commodities from the late 1960's through the mid-1970's,

Table 2 (page 4) indicates the extent to which this conntry was able to meet
its needs for the seven materials from domestic production in the late 60's, and
the extent to which it is able to do so today.

TABLE 1.\-—~CHANGES IN PRODUCTION

[Thousands of short tons}

Produc.on: Late 1960’s  Production: Mid-1970's Percent change

. United Rest of United Rest of United Rest of

Commodity States Worid States World States World

§ABMS; Aluminum metal 3,440 5,015 4,225 10, 400 23 107

ABMS) Copper metal 1,320 5, 330 1,510 7,115 14 34

ILZSG) Lead metal . 1,070 2, 445 1,200 2,645 12 8

ILZSG) Zinc metal. . .. 1,055 3,265 520 3,940 -50 21

BOM) Phosphate rock.._... ... 3¢ 580 50, 115 47,835 72,335 21 44

(BOM) Iron ore, contsined Fe........ 56, 700 360, 300 49, 100 514, 900 -13 43
(BOM) Mine production of sitver (Troy

OUNCOS). ..o oeeeeenicaneaannann 42, 800 251, 300 35, 800 272, 300 —-16 8

! "Late 1960's"’ maans 196763, except 1968-70 for lead and zinc, and 1363-71 for silvar, **Mid 1970'¢"* maans 1975-77
except 1974-76 for phosphate. ‘‘Rest of world"' excludes Communist nations for lead and zinc.

Sources: Amarican Bureat of Metal Statistics Year Books, International Lead and Zinc Study Group Statisticat Bulietins ,
and U.S. Bureau of Mines Mineral Gommodity Profiles,
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TABLE 2..—U.S. PRODUCTION AND DEMAND

[Thousands of short tons]

Late 1960's Mid-1970's
Production Production
as parcent as percent
Con- of con- Con- of con-
Commodity Production  sumption  sumption Production  sumption sumption
(ABMS) Aluminum metal ............ 3,440 4, 460 n 4,225 5,705 2
(ABMSg Coppermetal .. ._.._........ 1,320 1,740 16 1,510 1, 905 19
§ILZSG) Lead metal . ... _...... 1,070 1,240 86 , 200 1,380 87
1LZSG) Zinc metal ... ... ....... 1,055 1,290 82 520 1, 050 59
(BOM) Phosphate rock............... 39, 580 25,255 151 47, 835 34,460 138
(BOM) Iron ore, contained Fe.__...... 56, 7 83,000 68 49,100 76, 800 64
(BOM) Retined silver (Troy ounces)... 133,200 140, 600 95 102, 400 162, 000 63

1 *“Late 1960's"’ means 1967-69, except 1968-70 for lead and zing, and 1969-71 for silver. *'Mid-1970's means 1975-77,
except 1974-76 for phosphate, *‘Rest of world'* excludes Communist nations for isad and zinz.

Sources: American Bureau of Metal Statistics Year Books, international Lead and Zinc Study Group Statistical Bulletins,
-and U.S, Bureau of Mines Mineral Commodity Profiles,

The rest of this paper attempts to address the eight questions raised by the
Policy Review staff about the competitiveness of the U.S. mining and metsals
industries, For the most part the comments ure general since lack of time has
prevented the gathering of up-to-date data, and, in any case, most of the data
probably are alreary available in Washington, especially in the Bureau of Mines
and at the Departments of State, Treasury and Commerce.

The American Mining Congress, however, urges all of those working on the
Policy Review not to issue an encyclopedic report in which facts obscure analysis
and judgment, While data, possibly some new data, are needed, they should be
used sparingly.

In the AMC'’s opinion wbat really needs to be done comes down to two tasks:
(1) careful selection and analysis of the facts already at hand; and (2) resolu-
tion of admittedly difficult policy issues centering on the desirability and means
of strengthening the American mining and metals industries.

ECONOMIC AND COMMERCIAL FACTORB

As was noted earlier, mining and metals facilities in the United States are
disadvantaged to some extent by the economic factors that must be expected
in any industry.

American iron ore production is being hampered, for example, by the cxistence
of better ore bodies in such countries as Canada, Brazil and Australia. There
are ulso transportation problems. In many cases ore can be taken from overseas
mines to overseas mills in mammoth freights traveling between large, deep-
water ports that this country lacks. In the United States there is heavy
«lependence on more expensive rail transport. It has been estimated, for example,
thut shipping iron ore fromm Minnesota to Pittsburgh may cost three times as
much as shipping it from Brazil to Japan.

Moroceo hags some advantage over the United States in 1ts possession of even
larger reserves of phosphate rock than this country has, and the Morocecan
reserves may be of modestly better quality.

U.5. aluminum producers are not helped by the fact that, with few exceptions,
America’s aluminum-bearing deposits cannot be mined as economically as those
oversens, and low-cost, assured power supplies are becoming exceedingly diffi-
citlt to find in the United States., Even so, American and Canadian aluminum
producers probably still have the lowest costs in the world, which raises some
interesting questions as to why aluminum production has expanded much mo.e

rapidly over the past decade outside of North America than in the United
States and Canada.
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America’s reserves of copper, lead, zinc and silver are vast, ranging, according
to the Ruresu of Mines, from 15 to 25 percent of the world’'s known reserves
in the case of each niiuoral, It is admittedly difficult to find high-grade ore
bodies in the United States although this still happens, witness the relatively
recent discovery of a major base metals mine in Wisconsin,

Many of the richer copper, lead, zinc and silver ore bodies around the world
are in remote areas where infra-structure must be built or where a harsh
climate makes mining difficult and expensive. American mines are close to good
transportation and in the largest national market in the world,

American copper producers believe that were it not for their heavy environ-
mental expenditures their costs would be in the range of those In Chile, today
probably the world’s Iowest cost copper producer. Zine producers are hampered
by older smelters, less efficient than plants constructed during the past decade
in Japan and Europe. Interestingly, zine producers in those countries must rely
more heavily then do American producers on imported zinc concentrates, but
they have managed to build new zinc plants while this country has not.

The United States has a strong lead industry, and the “New Lead Belt” in
southeastern Missouri has some of the most efficient mines in the world. American
lead producers are competitive with producers in foreign countries, although
the U.S. ability to compete soon may be seriously undercut by new EPA and
OSHA regulations.

Finally, the raising of wage rates around the world., especially in Western
Europe and Japan, and the devaluation of the dollar against many of the world's
currencies should encourage, other things being equal, investment in American
mines and metal plants. Thus, it seems clear that normal commercial factors do
not begin to explain fully the lagging performance of the U.S. mining and metals
industries,

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIONS

It seems equally clear that governmental actions and policies, both abroad and
in this country, are having a major influence on the relative performances of
American and foreign minirg and metals industries.

Those actions and policies can be categorized as follows: (1) direct subsidies,
such as grants, loans, loan guarantees and low-interest loans; (2) state owner-
ship or control with the state periodically injecting funds into an unprofitable
enterprise or allowing a company to earn lower profits than private investors
and managers could accept; (3) the channeling of large credits to strategic
industries under a system which permits companies to carry heavy debt loads:
(4) special tax concessions: (5) formal or informal trade restrictions; and
(6) more rigorous environmental protection laws and regulations in this coun-
try than abroad.

What follows is a fairly brief description of how governmental actions in
those various cutegories have adversely affected America’'s nmining and metals
industries. The description is intended to be illustrative rather than compre-
hensive for information on such a sweeping subject can never be complete nor,
for that matter, fully accurate for luws and regulations are changing constantly.

Sulsidics.—Central government subsidization of private enterprises is per-
vasive., Among the major countries only the U.8. Government does not have a
large-scale, continuing program.

In Europe the European Economic Commission operates a regional aid scheme
which distributes hundreds of millions of dollars in assistance annually ; Britain,
for exumple, received 1.2 billion pounds sterling in grants and loans during the
first four years of its membership in the EEC, according to an article in The
Economist. In addition, the European Coal and Steel Community grants assist-
ance to the coal and steel industries and national governments have their own
programs,

A survey undertaken flve years ago of subsidy practices found that virtually
all of the lead and zinc smelters constructed or expanded in the late ¢0’s and
early 70's in the EEC and Canada were built in development areas where govern-
mental assistance applied. For example, the Netherlands Government is believed
to have given a subsidy of over $6 million to a new zine smelter in that country.
And in the first four years, through 1972, of a Cenadian Government regionat
assistance program over $20 milion was given to several base metal facilities
and to an aluminum plant. Subseyuently, in June-1874 the Canadian Government
annoured it was investing $16.7 million in the opening of a lead-zine mine on
Baffiu Island, according to the Westers, _liner,
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Again, Italy has an extensive program to assist the southern part of the
country (the Mezzogiorno) where lead and ginc production has been expanded.
Spain also has apparently provided assistance to its base metals industry under
a policy of encouraging industralization of certain areas of Spain. Elsewhere,
construction of a $500 million aluminum plant began in Ireland in June with
over $30 million In grants and interest subsidies heing given by the Irish Govern-
ment, according to American Metal Market.

Japanese Government assistance to its mining and metals industries apparently
has been mainly in the form of encouraging and underwriting massive loans and
working with groups of companies on investment plans. The Ministry of Inter-
national Trade and Industry—MITI-—was reported this summer, however, to
be calling for over $300 million in governmental assistance to the nonferrous
industry.

Foreiiu steel producers probably have received as much subsidy assistance
as any industry, and this, of course, has both direct and indirect effects on iron
ore production. The Journal of Commerce reported last February tnat the
Spanish Government was planning to grant over $£600 million in long-term,
low-interest credits to both the private and public sectors of the Spanish steel
industry. And in November 1977 the Swedish Government announced that it
was giving about $160 million in loans and credit guarantees to Swedish special
steel companies,

Sweden was one of the countries cited by the head of the Krupp steel company,
who complained last June of heavy government subsidization of the steel industry
in Europe. He was quoted in the Journal of Commerce ax saying that there is a
“ldden risk that the covering of costs will no longer be the decisive criterion in
pricing policy. . . .” Other countries he mentioned were the U.K,, Italy, France
and Austria.

The Federal Republic ¢f Germany has its own subsidy programs, A recent
isspe of Dun’'s Review stated that the FRG was spending $30 million to help
the-Saar steel industry, and a Stanford Research Institute publication claimed
that the government had earmarked $6.5 million to help two West German firms
explore on the seabed.

State ownership.—It is increasingly recognized that governents, in effoct,
grant subsidies when they pump public funds into unprofitable state-owned
companies or when they permit those companies to earn year after year profits
tha. would not meet the needs of firms owned by private shareholders. The
reason that such phenomena occur, of course, is that governments are motivated
by other than commercial considerations. Thus, they construct facilities which
private enterprise would not construct, and frequently fail to adjust production
and prices to market conditions.

No American industry probably has been impacted more by the practices of
state ownership than, again, the steel industry. The case of British Steel, whose
current losses are around $700 million a year, is so well known that additional
comment {8 not necessary.

Unfortunately, British Steel is not the only example. Italsider, an Italian state-
controlled carmppany, lost $465, million in 1977, according to American Metal
Market. In Spain the government has embarked on a program to nationalize the
Altos Hornos steel firm, which reportedly has been losing money. When nati- nali-
zation is complete the Spanish Government will control two steel firins (the othet
also in financial difficulty ), about 75 percent of Spanish capacity.

The Swedish Government is also heavily involved in steel making. Late last
vear the Wall Street Joutrnal announced a plan to merge the nation’s largest
steel producers into a single company. The new company, according to the
article, was expected to operate at a loss for several years. And a May 1978
article in the New York Times quoted an official of a Swedish state holding
company as saying: “The largest state company controls the iron ore mines, 1t
loses tremendous sums and it might be gowd management to close it up. But the
Government could not handle it politically * * *"

One more example, The Wall street Journal on September 18, 1978 carried an
article saying that the French Government had {nitinted a ‘‘rescue plan for its
troubled steel industry” that “would make the government, in effect, the majority
steelholder of French steel industry has lost $3 billion In the last four years, and
the government since World War IT “has pumped billions of dollars into the
steel industry in futile efforts to make it solvent.”

State ownership and the distortions it brings to Investment and trade patterns
is widespread, of course, throughout the world's mining and metals industries,
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Governament-controlied copper firms in several African and ILatin American na-
tions have been reluctant to reduce copper production, despite weak market
conditions, presumably for balance-of-payments and employment reasons.

U.S. phosphate producers must compete with a state-controlled company in
Moroceco, while American aluminum producers are confronted by government-
owned companies in Norway and a number of developing countries. In Finland
a state-owned company controls all nonferrous metal production, while in Spain
and Italy a large part of the nonferrous industry is under the government.

The Bolivian Government has recently announced that it plans to construct a
lead and silver smelter, In Ireland the government is encouraging the construc-
tion of a zinc smelter in which it plans to hold a major interest,

All mining and metals production is contro'led by government, of course, in the
socinlist countries. IPolund has been rapidly expanding its copper industry, and
the Soviet Uunlon, striving for self-sufficiency, has substantially increased its
produetion of a number of minerals and metals,

Channcling of credits—No country appears to have employed this device more
sneeessfully than Japan, Three U.S8. Government documents published in the
early T0's described in some detail how the Japanese handle this matter.

Rasically. there is o “participatory partnership” between government and key
industries, including tbe natural resources industry. Japanese companies in such
industries are in close contact with each other and with their government;
goals are set by consensus,

In turn, the Japanese Government responds in a variety of ways with the
Bank of Japan giviug guidance to the nation’s leading banks. In effect, the Bank
of Japan becomes the implicit gnarantor of the ileht of major Japanese companies,

All of this has made it possible for Japencse firms to carry debt loads that are
virtnually unheard of in this country. Typically. Japanese companies often have
debt-equity ratios of around 4-1, while most American corporations hesitate to
go over 0.5-1.

Thus, debt financing that would be unavailable to American firms has been
available to Japanese companies. The high debt loads, in turn, mean that even
if margins on sales are slim, satisfactory returns on shareholders’ equity can be
maintained. Moreover, high debt service changes contribute to high fixed costs,
which encourage firms to operate at fall capacity and to export.

Tar concessions.—Studies carried out by, among others, the U.S. Treasury
have shown that foreign tax systems usually allow quicker capital recovery
than does the American tax code. The most common device is extremely rapid
depreciation, sometimes in a year or two, thereby reducing profits and taxes,
but not cash flow.

Two tax systems arce particularly worth noting because of their effects on
the world’s mining and metals industries. For a number of years Ireland has
granted for 15 consecutive years 100 percent relief from income and corporate
profits taxes on profits attributable to export trade in Irish manufactured goods,
including, apparently, Irish mine exports. This tax relief probably has given
considerable encouragement to the development of one of the largest base-metal
mines in Europe.

Canada had a system for over 30 years, ending in 1973, which allowed new
mines to be exempted from federal taxes for the first three years after produc-
tion began. The system allowed early cash flow to be devoted to debt repay-
ment and improved discounted-cash-flow roturns. It undoubtedly encouraged the
rapid growth of Canadian mining, for example, of zine

Trade restrictions.—There are three great markets in the world ;: the United
States, the EEC and Japan. The United States has lower duties on lead, zinc,
copper and aluminum than either Jupan or the EEC. (Moreover, there are indi-
cations that {f the initial tariff offers made at the Geneva trade talks were
accepted, this unfair tariff arrangement would be perpetuated.)

Apart from tariffs, there are old school relationships in Europe and even
more formidable obstacles in Japan which restrict exports inte these markets.

intry into the Japanese market is made difficult by, for example, the need to
work through the Japanese trading companies and a variety of nontariff bar-
riers, which have been much discussed by the U.S. press.

Nor do the Japanese hesitate to uct quickly to protect their metal producers
when markets are «off. According to the Mining Journal the Japanese Govern-
ment established tartff quotas for aluminum ingots last April 1. In the United
States the appeals of Ameriean zine producers for a similar system were turned
down by the International Trade Commission after lengthy hearings. Copper
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producers’ requests for quotas have begn t;u)proved by the ITC, but the Presi-
dent has yet to act on the ITC recommendation,

All of ytl:ls meane that for metals the American market is the only truly
open market of the three major markets. Thus, when world markets become
soft surplus metnl at distress prices becomes & major problem for U.8.

roducers.

P Environmental protection.—It is understood that the Policy Review staff in-
tends to give special attention to the effects of environmental and worker pro-
tection laws in another part of its work plan. Nonetheless, no discussion of the
competitiveness of th? zimerican thminlngb?:‘g& metals Industries 18 complete
unless some sattention s given to these su

I:’ appears that, by and large, no government in the world has imposed more
stringent environmental laws and regulations on its mining and metals indus-
tries than has the U.S. Government. In Japan and certain West European
countries the environmental protection requirements for new plants may be
as stringent as they are here. But it 18 not believed that those governments
have been nearly as severe as the American in requiring older plants to meet
exacting requirements. And the environmental requirements in a number of
developing countries are apparently lax by U.S. standards.

What all of this means, of course, is that American firms which are trying
to sell internationally-traded commodities have had technological requirements
and costs imposed upon them which their foreign competitors frequently do
not have to meet.

Both the American steel and copper industries have spent hundreds of mil-
lions in recent years on environmental protection and the end is not in sight.
Thus far the lead industry’s environmental expenditures have been moderate,
but EPA is now proposing an ambient air lead standard which the industry
lacks the technology to meet. Similarly, OSHA is proposing unrealistic and
extremely costly in-plant lead standards. Combined, the EPA and OSHA stand-
ards threaten to close down a large part of the American lead industry.

U.S. phosphate producers are also subject to stringent EPA standards. It
has been estimated that those standards add 20 percent to the capital costs of
a new phosphate project and that the resulting annual operating costs equal
12-15 percent of the capital costs.

Finally, American aluminum producers are confronting a new, exceedingly
stringent ambient afr standard for fluorine and very difficult water quaity
standards. Unless some relief is granted, these standards are likely to be one
more deterrent to the construction of new aluminum plants in this country.

CONCLUBION

The American Mining Congress does not contend, of course, that all of the
competitive problems of the American mining and metals industries stem from
the actions and fajlures of governments, American and foreign.

The AMOC does believe, however, that governmental policies and programs
are major determinants of competitive position and that American companies
have been serfously disadvantaged by the acts of governments. It hopes that the

U.8. Government will recognize this fact and take steps soon to redress the
competitive imbalance,

Senator Heinz. Would you piease identify yourself for the record §
Proceed.

STATEMENT OF SAUL L. SHERMAN, RIVKIN, SHERMAN & LEVY, ON
BEHALF OF THE JOINT INMUSTRY WORKING GROUP

Mr. SuermaN, My name is Sau’ L. Sherman, and I am testifying
here this morning with regard to ‘he valuation agreement which has
emerﬁed from the Geneva negotiations. I am speaking on behalf of
the ad hoc Joint Industry Working Group consisting of 16 trade ssso-
ciations including the Air Transport Association, American Electron-
ies Association, American Importers Association, American Puper
Institute, American Retail Federation, the Chamber of Commerce of
the United States, the Cigar Association o’ America, Computer &
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Business Equipment Manufacturers Association, the American Flag-
ship Operators, the Electronics Industry Association, the Foreign
Trade Association of Southern California, the Imported Hardware
Products Association, the Motor Vehicles Manufacturing Association,
the National Committee on International Trade Documnentation, the
Scientific Apparatus Makers Association, and the United States Coun-
cil of the International Chamber of Commerce,

We are filing a written statement and I will speak to that briefly
and extemporaneously, and of course, we will welcome questions from
any member of the subcommittee who cares to ask.

I would like to first express the thanks of our group for the oppor-
tunities that have been afforded us during the course of the ncgotia-
tions and even before, as far back as 1972 at hearings of the then-Tariff
Commission to participate in the evolution of what bids fair to become
the first uniform international standard sor valuation in the customs
field.

The subject is an unglamorous one. It tends to be dull and technical
and not very widely known. At the same time, there are many in the
business world who believe that it may be, as a practical matter, one
of the most important results to emerge from the Geneva negotiations
because it affects the daily grist and run of the mill as imports and
exports flow back and forth between the countries and it does not
apply only to serious problems that arise as a policy matter in particu-
lar industries and at particular times and places.

One of our members is fond of quoting a statement in a book about
the tariff law written back in 1923 by a Mr. Levitt who said, “Let me
but write the administrative act, and T care not who sets the rates of
duties.” T think that the subject of valuation is a kind of administra-
tive problem that can be lost in obscurity and have tremendous com-
mercial impact on the movement of trade.

Prior to this time and up through the present, the ULited States has
had a unique valuation system for its customs operation. Most of the
rest of the world is on the so-called Brussels Definition of Value, which
is basically & European system, but it has been adopted widely ia the
Far East, South American, and around the world gencrally.

Canada, like the United States, has remained outside of tﬂat system
and has its own system. I might state preliminarily that our group is
quite concerned about reports we have heard that the Canadians are
reluctant to join in this agreement and we feel that that would pre-
sent serious problems to American exporters and careful consideration
to that problem, if it sheuld become one, should be given by the sub-
committee.

The basic idea of this agreement is that the subject of valuation,
which has been a matter for each nation to deal with on its own in
the past, should now, for the first time, become a subject which is
regulaced by international agreement so that we all have the same
approach to valuation.

I should explain, perhaps, that we are not talking about uniform
duties for a particular product nor are we talking, necessarily, about
uniform values from country to country because the value of a par-
ticular item, if you would just stop to think about it, will often be
different from day to day and from placeto place.
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Therefore, all we can expect in the way of uniformity in this area
is that all of the countries will apply to all merchandise the same meth-
ods of valuation, the same approach to arriving at value.

Of course, value is quite fundamental in arriving at a duty that
is paid on a great many products because typically tariffs are expressed
as a percentage rate, ad valorem—i.c., a percentage of the value. and
if, for example, a trading partner of ours were to cut a tariff rate in a
multilateral negotiation such as this and then make a domestic change
in its valuation law so the value of a lot of products were to go up,
then the change in the value could balance out and negate in whole or
in part the effect of the change in duty rates,

That is why the proposal has been made and has been accepted in
Geneva to have a uniform approach from nation to nation to the ques-
tion of valuation.

The code is essentially designed to be neutral in the sense that it is
not proexport, proimport, protrade or antitrade. It is meant to smooth
the flow of trade to eliminate mechanical barriers and to provide pre-
dictability and simplicity which will mean, among other things we
hope, speedier determination of customs values and therefore of the
amount, of duty that is due on particular importations.

I think that we can very loosely and broadly divide the subject
matter the agreement deals with into the easy cases and the hard
cases. The bulk of the customs transactions are relatively easy and the
trick is to handle them as quickly and smoothly as they ought to be
handled.

On that subject, the code that has emerged from Geneva has adopted
. the concept of transaction value which is, very simply, that duty
- value, customns value, should be based upcn the ‘invoice price agreed

upon between the parties to that transaction unless there is a very
strong reason to depart from that ap&)roach.

1t may sound as obvious as anything can be, and it is so obvious
that. as a practical matter, most Customs administrations have had
to adopt that approach. But, in fact. nobody’s lnw—including our own,
but also including the Brussels Definition and various others, has ever
specifically and expressly said that that is the norni, that is the start-
ing point, and you should depart {rom it as little as possible.

The more_difficult cases derived from the question, in the ease of

related parties, so-called. There in the transaction, for example, be-
tween a parent and a subsjdin.ry. serious questions can sometimes be
raised as to whether the price is a realistic market price or one set for
the convenience of the related parties. When we have that problem, a
synthetic price has to be devised unless there is an exact parallel trm;s-
action between unrelated parties.
. In addition, there is a problem area known as assist, and also touch-
Ing the subject of royalties, which are payments or transfers of one
kind or another between the importer and the exporter which are not
included in the invoice price but do contribute to the manufacture of
the pre 'uet and these are permitted to be added to the dutiable value,
In some cases, but not in others. The subject is a very intricate one, It
was taken up oniy very late in the day in Geneva. The results. in our
view, require not only implementation but clarification. ’

_ Tllt"{ll_ng in the last few woments left to the subject of implementa-

tion, 1 i1s a premise of the approach to valuation that the agreement
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emerging froin Geneva is to replace the domestic law in this country
and in others. And particularly because we feel that the greatest bene-
fits to be derived by American businesse from this agreement is on the
export side, we feel that it is particularly important that we set a good
example by tho implementation that we give in this country, so that
we can be on strong ground in expecting others to live up to their part
of the bargain. .

In particular, that means, in our view, that a maximum degree of
precision should be included in the legislation and the minimum
shonld be left to administrative discretion, because it is administrative
discreticn, in other countiies particularly, that makes us nervous and
leaves the door open to the possibility of arbitrary in sreases in dutiable
value. and therefore in duty, in other countries,

I have not mentioned——

Senator Risicorr (presiding). Mr. Sherman, your time has expired.
We started late because of votes and there is a crowded witness list
and I would hope that you would put the rest of your statement in the
record. We do not want to terminate you, but in fairness to all the
witnesses, we do want to give them an opportunity.

Your entire statement will be put in the record.

De you have any questions, Senator Roth?

Senator Rori. No.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Sherman follows:]

STATEMENT OF THE JOINT INDUSTRY WORKING GROUP—CUBTOMS VALUATION

Mr. Chairman, Senators Good morning. My name is Saul L. Sherman and I am
appearing here on hehalf of the Joint Industry Working Group, an ad hoc coali-
tion interested in the subject of Customs valuation, both from the point of view
of exporting and importing. Our testimony will be directed to the Customs
Vaiuation Agreement which has emerged from the Geneva Multilateral Tracde
Negotiations.

The Joint Industiry Working Group is composed of 'the following associations
and the businesases they represent :

1. The Alr Transport Association of America, Which represents nearly all
scheduled airlines of the United States.

2. The American Electronics Association, which has over 900 high technology
aund electronics companies. Its members are mostly small to medinm in size, with
two-thirds of its members employing less than 200 employees.

3. The American Importers Association, representing over 1,100 companies,
mostly small to medium in size, plus 150 customs brokers, attorneys and banks.

4. The American Paper Institute, & national trade assoclation of the pulp,
paper and paperboard industry. Its members produce more than 809 of the
nation’s output of these products. The U.8. paper industry operates in all States
of the Union employing over 700,000 people.

5. The American Retail Federation, an umbrella organisation encompassing
thirty national and fifty state retail associations that represent more than one
million retail establishments with over 13,000,000 employees.

6. The Chamber of Commerce of the United States, representing 68,000 com-
panies and 4,000 state and local Chambers of Commerce,

7. The Cigar Association of America, which includes 78 percent of all U.8.
cigar sales and major cigar tobacco leaf dealers.

8. The Computer & Business Fquipment Manufacturers Assoclation, including
over forty members with 1,000,000 employees and $35 billion in worldwide
revenues., Members range from the smallest to the largest in the industry.

9. The Council of American-Flag 8hip Operators, which representa the inter-
ests of the American liner industry.

10. The Electronic Industries Assoclation; its 287 member companies, which
range in size from some of the very largest American businesses to manufac-
:ltlxreas lln the $25-50 million annual sales range, have plants in every State in

e Unlon,
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11. The Foreign Trade Association of Southern California, which represents
450 firms ip Southern California in the import-export trade.

12. The Imported Hardwood Products Association, an international associa-
tion of 230 importers, suppliers and allied industry members. Members handle
75 percent of all imported hardwood products and range in size from smail
private businesses to the largesi in the industry.

13. The Motor Vehicle Manufacturers Associntion, whose elever members
produce 999% of all U.S.-made motor vehicles,

14. The National Committee on International Trade Documentation, which
includes many of the major U.S. industrial and service companies,

15. The Sclenufic Apparatus Makers Association, manufacturers and dis-
tributors of rcientific, industrial and medical instrumentation and related
equipment.

16. The U.S. Council of the International Chamber of Commerce, a business
policy-making organization which represents and serves the interests of several
hundred multi-nationa) corporations before relevant national and international
authorities.

SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY

The Valuation Agreement does a good job on a difficult subject. Handled
badly, the valuation processs could result in abuses which would undo the
benefits of many of the tariff reductions agreed upon. The subject of valuation
is unglamorous, relatively uncontroversial, and yet of great day-to-day impor-
tance to the smooth flow of international trade.

The Agreement will benefit our exports particularly. It will require major
changes in other nations’ value systems. The relatively smaller changes required
in our domestic laws will alleviate numerous problems and simplify many
importers’ operations. It will lend added predictabiiity to duty assessments, The
Agreement will require elimination of American Selling Price valuation, but
the controversy on this subject now appears to center an the compensation to be
received in return for abandoning ASP, not on the guestion of whether to elimi-
nate ASP.

Canadian recalcitrance may present a serious problem, since the bhasic premise

of the Valuation Agreement is that at least all of the major market economy
countries will adopt the uniform international standard laid down in the
Agreement. If Canada does not adopt the Agreement, appropriate provisions
should be considered for inclusion in the impleraenting legislation.
. A key feature of the Agreement is that it seeks to deny customs officials lee-
way that would permit increases in duty value which could adversely affect our
exports, By the same token, our domestiec implementation should be legislative,
with a minimum left to administrative discretion or regulations. Likewise, the
overly broad valuation mandate of Section 500 (“all reasonable ways and
means”) must be repealed.

In dealing with the difficult and complex subjects of royalties and assists
(production aids furnished by the importer), the Agreement and its Notes re-
quire not only implementation but also clarification.

On the vital subject of dispute prevention and resolution, implementing legis-
lation is needed to assist American exporters by affording United States gov-
ernment assistance in training foreign customs officials and in invoking the
international dispute resolution machinery provided for in the Agreement.

STATEMENT

The Joint Industry Working Group supports the Valnation Agreeme .t—we
think that all in all a remarka. 'y good job was done in Geneva on this subject,
even though there are a few problems on which the Agreement has not ac-
complished all we had hoped for. Valuation is hardly a glamorous subject, but
it 18 one that—unlike dumping or subsidies or safeguards —affects the majority
of day-in-day-out import and export transactions. Many knowledgeable people
in the business community regard the Valuation Agreement as a sleeper which
will do more than any of the other MTN agreements to smooth the workaday
flow of trade. It Is perhaps indicative that, as far as we know, this is the only
MTN agreement for which there Is & specific ad hoc business group concerned
with {ts development.

Most tariffs are expressed as a percentage—10 percent or 20 percent, or what-
ever—of the value of the merchandise. If the rate of duty i{s reduced but the
duty value goes up, an importer could find himself paying the same duty as
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before despite a supposed tariff reduction. Hence, the concern of the interna-
fional com‘x:mnity aguut the subject of valuation. In addition, the complexities,
uncertainties and delays which are sometimes involved in valuation problems
cun act as @ serious non-tariff barrier to trade. If an importer does not know
what his duty assessment will be until after he resells his merchandise, he may
be forced to assume the worst, and the commercial impact in the marketplace
may be the same as if a higher rate of duty had been ‘n effect.

The prominence of the subject of valuation in the 'fokyo Round negotiations
stems partly from the fact that American Selling Price (ASP), a trade barrier
which particularly incensed some of our trading partners in previous negotia-
tions, takes the form of a valuation provision. Under ASP, duty value is based
not on prices in the import market but on the price of the competing domestic
product—in other words, the domestic manufacturer sets the duty value for
his fmport competition! The Kennedy Round side-agreewment designed to elimi-
nuate ASP was not presented to the Congress and so did not, take effect. In the
Tokyo Round the elimination of ASP has been accepted in principle by our
negotiators, and by the American chemical industry, for whose benefit it was
originally enacted in 1921; the controversy has centered around the alterna-
tives and the compensation to be received in return by way of duty rate increases
and otherwise. It is to be emphasized that the Valuation Agreement aspect of
the ASP problem is not controversial—for no one has ever proposed seriously
that ASP be made a part of a world-wide system of valuation to be used by all
countries.

The essence of the Agreement is reciprccity, at least among the developed
nations. To get the vcluation benefits we seek for our exports, we must agree
to apply the Agreement ourselves. Indeed, the basic premise of the Geneva
negotiations on valuation was that each signatory would in the process have
the same rules applied to its exports as to its imports. The awareness that each
major signatory would have this balanced interest was largely responsitle for
the success of the negotiations. In this connection, a word should be said about
the great importance of Canadian accession to the Valuation Agreement. Can-
ada has been something of a maverick in the field of customs valuation. Indeed,
Canade over a century ago adopted some of the fuv.itures o1 then current United
States law and developed them into a system that is often a serious deterrent
to our exports. We understand that Canada is in the somewhat anomalous posi-
tion of expecting to receive the benefits of the code while still hesitating to
adopt the Agreement in Canadian law. In view of the large volume of our
trade with Canada, the American business community could not view with
equanimity Canadian abstention or major reservations.

Two further observations about the course of the negotiations in Geneva on
value: The fHirst is that we went into the negotiations as virtually a minority of
one, confronting a world which had by and large adopted the Brussels Definition
of Value (BDY). We came out with a system much closer to the best of existing
United States law than to the BDV. The result may properly be considered a
major success in the negotiations for the United States delegation. Second, the
thing we objected to most in other countries’ valuation systems was the discre-
tion extended to customs authorities to raise duties arbitrarily by raising duty
valuations arbitrarily—especially the so-called uplifts. One of the key features
of the system we espoused and secured in the Geneva negotiations was to mini-
mize administrative discretion and keep valuation subject to relatively tight
control. Thus, in terms of implementation, our old law on customs valuation
must be repealed, the new law which will replace it will not be drastically differ-
ent from the mainstreain of our existing valuation law, and our new provision
must take the form of Congressional legislation, with less rather than more left
to administrative regulation or discretion,

This is not the occasion for a detailed review of the substance of the Agree-
ment, but a few essentials regarding the problemn, the objectives, and the solutions
adopted should be mentioned.

1. A moment's refic2tion will make it obvious that the same merchaundise will
very likely have different values at different times and places, or in different
circumstances. There is no one right value for en article, even at a given time
and place, nor s there one right way to arrive at a value. The valuation problem
ts thus inherently complex and difficult.

2. The Agreement does not and could not realistically seek to arrive at uniform
duties or even uniform velues for a given article in all countries or in all trans-
actions. The Agreement seeks only to establish a uniform method of arriving at
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dutiable value; and even this uniform approach lays down a series of alterna-
tives, to be applied in sequence until a proper fit is obtained, since no single
method fits every situation.

3. The Agrcement is trade neutral overall. With few exceptions, the changes
made may result in higher or lower value—the key objectives have been sim-
plicity and predictability and a factval basis in real market transactions. For
example, today our duty values are generally based on prices prevailing at the
date of exportation. The Agreement provides that where the parties to the export-
import transaction set their price at an earlier date when the order is placed
and accepted, that earlier price (whether higher or lower than the current price)
shall normally prevail for duty valuation. Another important provision is the
requirement that generally accepted accounting principles be applied in customs
valuation. While this is plainly a neutral provision, it has not always been fol-
lowed in the past and it is important in ensuring predictabilty and rationality.

4. The basic standard of value in the Agreemen’ is Transaction Value—the
price the parties themselves adopt in the marketplace. Departures from this
standard are held to & minimum and are permitted only for ~ood reason. That
approach to valuation may seem very obvlous, and most systems have as a
matter of practical necessity, normally adopted the invoice price as the duty
value in practice. But we know of no other system—including both the existing
United States law and the Brussels Definition of Value—which expressly make
invoice price the starting point. The benefits {n terms of simplicity and pre-
dictability are obvious.

5. The principal departure from Transaction Value which the Agreement
permits oceurs where the exporter and importer are related and the relation-
ship results in an artificial price. In such cases a series of alternative bases
of value are invoked in sequence—the price of identical goods, then the price
of similar goods, then the importer's resale price less a usual reseller's mark-up,
then the manufacturer’s cost plus a usual manufacturer's mark-up. The se-
quence of the last two standards can be reversed at the importer’s option. All
of tnese are defined iu the Agreement with precision and will have to be simi-
larly defined in our legislative implementation. Even the fall-backs permitted
in the rare case where none of these methods will work are narrowly confined—
to avoid leaving loopholes which would permit arbitrary increases in value and
defeat the purpose of the Agreement.

6. One of the most difficult and sensitive areas dealt with in the Agreement
is assists and royalties. Assists are contributions by the importer to the process
of manufacture abroad—for example, furnishing tools and dyes. Royalties are
payments for rights involved in the manufacture and for marketing of the
products. Typlecally, neither assists nor royalties are included in the invoice
price. Just which assists and royalties should be added to the invoice price to
arrive at a fair duty value has been a vexing problem, particularly under
United States law. The Agreement draws lines to indicate which are to be in-
cluded and which excluded. The complexities are such, and the speed with
which these subjects were dealt with in the closing days of the Geneva negotia-
tions was such, that these areas are in need of clarification as well as imple-
mentation. We would hope that the legislation to be adopted will accomplish
;»otth ends, dolng what is appropriate as well as what is necessary in this
nstance.

Turning finally to some of the mechanics of the implementing legislation:
the Agreement itself is very close to a statute in its precision and should be
closely fcllowed In legislative drafting. Some of the interpretive notes—which
are an integral and often substantive part of the Agreement—will also have to
:)e :)xéctzlx;porated. In broad outline, the key steps in implementation would appear
0 ese :

1. Section 402 (the 1956 valuation provisions) and Section 402(a) (the 1930
valuation provisions, still applicable to some merchandise) and the Minai List
(T.D. 54521, which lists the products still under the 1930 law), must be re-
pealed and replaced by a new statute parallelint the Agreement's statement
of the new bases of valuation, along with the definitions, evidentiary tests, op-
tio2n I:.;)d rliglhts lof impo;-tggs sfett 111301-th ini the Agreement.

. Repeal {8 also required o e provision in Section 500 of the Tart
(19 U.8.C. § 1500) authorizing Customs @ Act

“To appraise the merchandise . . . by &ll reasonable ways and means . , "
any statement of cost or cost of production in any invoice, afidavit, declaration,
or other document to the contrary notwithstanding . . .”
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This approach is flatly Inconsistent with the Agreement’s careful insistence
upon limited bases of appraisement and objective factual data from the market-
place us the only acceptable methods.

3. To eliminate American Selling Price valuation, it will be necessary to repeal
the relevant portions of Sevtion 836 of the Tariff Act, rescind the Presidential
Proclamations (e.g., T.D. 46158, pursuant thereto, and repeal the relevant head
notes in the Tariff Schedules. see Customs Regulations, 152.24(a).

4. Existing United States law affords importers the domestic remedies—both
administrative and judicial review—called for by the Valuation Agreement.
(These remedies are not now generally available abroad, but will become avail-
able as a result of this Agreement.) Appropriate provision will be required, how-
ever, regarding United States participation in the irternational machinery called
for in the Agreement for resolving valuation dispu‘er. Of special importance is
prcvision for assistance to Amerlcan exporters in shtaining the treatment to
which they will be entitled under the Agreement. This assistance will involve the
dispute resolution ma<uninery as a last resort, but the first resort, and one we hope
will also recelve strong support from the Congress, will be assistance to other
countries which seek help in training their customs cficials tc underctard and
apply the Code as its authors intended it to be applied.

The Agreement 18 much closer to current United States law and practice than
it is to l1aw and practices in other countries. As a result, our trading partners are
likely to follow our lead 1n implementing the Agreement. Therefore, the impact
on our imports from the way we implement the Agreement, is likely to have an
equivalent impact on our exports when they arrive in other countries.

Senator Risicorr. Mr. Foy ¢

Senator Rora. Mr. Chairman, I do have a statement that I want to
include at the beginning of the record.

Senator Rieicorr. Without objection, so ordered.!

Senator Risicorr. Our next witness will be Lewis W. Foy, chair-
man, American Iron & Steel Institute.

Mr. Foy?

STATEMENT OF LEWIS W. F0Y, CHAIRMAN, AMERICAN IRON &
STEEL INSTITUTE

Mr, For. Mr. Chairman, I am Lewis W. Foy and I am testifying
as chairman of the American Iron & Steel Institute. I am also chair-
man of Bethlehem Steel Corp. .

I have with me this morning Mr. Schubert on my left, president of
Bethlehem Steel Corp., and the chairman of the AISI Committee on
JInternatonal Trade and Mr. Dom King, assistant general counsel of
United States Steel Corp.

Mr. Chairman, I must tell you straight off that the domestic steel
industry is very seriously concerned over the possible effect on our
industry of the apparent results of the multilateral trade negotiations.
The steel industry of the United States is, in effect, competing with
foreign governments, governments which wholly or partially own or
control their domestic steel industries. Those industries are nothing
less than subsidized instruments of national, social, and economic
policy and consequently and as a result, those foreign steel industries
routinely sell in export markets at prices lower than their cost of
production and their home market prices.

We believe very firmly that unless this Nation develops an effective
statutory approach to unfair trade practices, subsidized and dumped
foreign steel will be able to expand almost at will its already exces-
sively high level of market penetration in this country.

1 Bee p. 69.
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Senator Risicorr. Do you have a list of those countries who sub-
sidize their steel industry ¢

Mr. Forx Yes; we do.

Senator Risicorr. Would you supply that to the committee ¢

Mr. Foy, Yes we will, Mr. Chairman.}

Senator Risicorr. Do you have figures that you have been able to
ascertain as to the percentage of the costs that are subsidized by the
government ¢

Mr. Fov. I think we can provide that to you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Rimsicorr. Would you piease do that ¢ .

Mr. Foy. Yes; the subsidies appear in various forms, but we will
try to break that down for you, sir.?

Senator RorH. If the chairman would yield, I would hog;,. chat you
would su{)lply as much detail as possible of the types of subsidy. That
would be helpful.

Mr. Foy. We can provide you with quite an accurate list.?

It is precisely because we are concerned with foreign subsidies that
the steel industry supports the objectives of the multilateral trade
negotiations, and I want to regeat that statement, Mr. Chairman. The
steel industry supports the objectives, but we are v%;y deeply con-
cerned over the apparent results of those negotiations. We are troubled
both by the provisions of the proposed MTN codes and the use of broad
generalizations, imprecise phrases, and undefined terms. Because the
proposed codes must be approved by the Congress and implemented
Into statutes; these problems are within the competence of the Con-
gress to resolve,

If our serious reservations concerning these codes are not resolved
satisfactorily in the implementing legislation, we submit that the re-
sult will be a giant step backward and nothing short of disaster for
American workers, our business and our Nation.

Senator Rieicorr. Do I understand that the MTN does not bother
you but the interpretation of various phrases in the MTN negotiation
are what bothers the steel industry ¢

Mr. Foy, That is precisely right, Mr, Chairman.

Senator Risicorr. Because of imprecision ?

Mr. Foy. Because of ambiguity in the langusge.

The subsidy code is of particular importance to the steel industry.
You will recall, in order for a countervailing duty to be applied under
the code, a complainant must establish three things: A subsidy, injury,
and causalty.

The remedy then becomes crucial and the procedures are critical to
obtaining any relief.

The first point that we make is that there is no Fmeml definition of
subsidy in the subsidy code. Implementing legislation must provide
8 definition that broadly includes both the export and domestic sub-
sidies of foreign countries, The definition must be in the statute and
must not be left to possible later regulations or administrative
Interpretations,

As you know, for dutiable items—and this includes all steel mill
products—no I'Ir‘llj1ury test is required under our present countervailing
duty statute. The subsidy code calls for a material injury test, but
unless this is properly defined in implementing legislation as only

1 At presstime July 9, 1079, the materlal referred to was not recelved by the committee.
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more than de minimis injury, it would render the revised countervail-
ing duty statute useless in all but the most extreme cases.

With respect to remedy, the draft code would permit a countervail-
ing duty that is less than the amount of the subsidy. In fact, it would
leave to the complete discretion of the executive branch the applica-
tion of any remedy. This and other broadly permissive provisions
must be dealt with in the implementing legislation.

The procedures specified 1n the code are full of provisions which
are vague, murky, and indefinite, Consider, if you will, a phrase such
as “when the authorities are satisfied.” Consider also a concept such as
our Government terminating a countervailing duty upon “arriving at
a mutually agreed solution” with a foreign government.

Or consider the provision for terminatic.. of proceedings upon re-
ceipt of voluntary undertakings of various kinds,

Pearing in mind that such undertakings need be satisfactory only
to the administration, irrespective of the position of the affected in-
dustry and its employee, these examples are representative of many
significant details that we believe must be clarified and made explicit
in the pending legislation.

Failure to remedy these defects in the implementing legislation or
to incorporate our other carefully considered suggestions would, we
}g%]])e, be cause for rejection of both the code and the implementing

ill,

Apparently, Mr. Chairman, in an 11th hour move to accommodate

the EEC, our negotiators seem to have agreed that the material injury
and other key provisions of the subsidy code would be transposed into
our present Antidumping Act. Given the seriousness of the problem
that we see in the subsidy code, we believe that parallel changes in our
Antidumping Act will weaken that statute beyond use.
. Senator Russell Long was author of a Law Review article comment-
ing on the Kennedy round and congressional rejection of efforts to
change our antidumping statute. In it, he pointed out that material
injury could require an industry to show that it was flat on its back
before antidumping duties could be assessed.

May I proceed, Mr. Chairman ¢

Senator Rmrcorr. Well, we have this problem,

Mr, For. We are also troubled by certain provisions in the proposed
Safeguard Code as well as the inequity that appears to be emerging
from tariff negotiations on steel. These points are covered in detail in
part 2 of my written statement. Part 3 of my statement sets forth our
lrecommendations for improvement in the administration of U.S. trade

aws.

To summarize quickly, Mr. Chairman, we support the concept of
international solutions to trade problems. The steel industry is seri-
ously concerned, however, that the proposed codes will be implemented
into U.S. law in a way that renders our trade laws even less effective
in dealing with unfair trade practices than they are now. .

We honestly and sincerely hope that you and your committee will
not allow this to happen. We urge you not to weaken but, in fact, in
this legislation, to strengthen our trads laws,

Thunk you, Mr. Chaiman.

Senator Rrercorr. Mr. Foy, you raise some of the major problems
that will be facing this committee and Congress. I think we do under-
stand the imprecision and the weakresses of many of these definitions.
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It is our hope that, in negotiating with the executive branch, we can
straighten out many of these problems in the legislation presented to
this committee, but I am satisfied that this committee does have au-
thority to track legislation, to be able to come up with definitions and
interpretations and laws that will assure us that what we consider

subsidies and countervailing duties would be in the interests of our
own country.,

Senator Roth ¢

Senator Rorx. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I am not certain, not having read the supplementary material, but I
would hope that if you have not supplied it that you might give us
the benefit of what you think would be reasonable definitions, say, in
the case of material injury. I think that would be very helpful, to have
your point of view in that regard.

Mr. Foy. Senator, that is in the statement.

Senator Rora., Thank you.

Senator Ribicorr. If the Senator would yield, I would hope that all
other groups who may have a similar interest would submit to the
committee their thinking and recommendations for our consideration.

Senator Rora. One question that I would like to propound, I share
your concern that it makes no difference what the codes provide if we
do not actively pursue our rights and remedies under those codes. I
believe that has been a problem in the past.

Do you believe that the Department of Treasury should continue,
for example, to administer the countervailing duty or antidumping
statutes, or would you prefer another enforcing agency such as a new
Department of Trade?

Mr. Fov. I personally, Senator, do not care where the responsibility
lies, providing that responsibility is accepted and acted upon and
thixgc that we all agree that it has not been aggressively acted upon
in the past.

In OIII)!‘ meeting with the President in October 1977, he told us at that
time, that it had come to his attention that the law had not been en-
forced. He also told us at that meeting that it was his intent to enforce
the law. So the law has just not been enforced. It has been on the books.

Senator Rorr. Very frankly, I think the President is correct. I
think it has been true of past administrations as well, but I think until
we have an agency with primary responsibility for trade and exports

that it is going to be difficult to get the aggressive attitude that I think
is essential.

Mr. Foy. That could be.

Senator RorH. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Riercorr. Senator Danforth ¢

Senator DaNForTH. No questions.

Senator Riarcorr. Senator Heinz?

Senator Heinz. Mr. Foy, Mr. Carlisle submitted to the committee a
few moments ago a series of amendments dealing with some of the
countervailing duties. Are you familiar with the amendments?

Mr. ScauBrrt. Senator Heinz, we have kept in contact with that
group as well as other groups that have expressed strong interest in
this area. We are familiar, in general terms, with their amendments
and in some cases the package that we have proposed is different, but
in general terms we are following the same course.
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Senator Hernz. I may have missed something, but could you point
out what the difference is between what the Ad Hoc Subsidies Coali-
tion groposes and what you proposef Are there substantive differ-
ences

Mr. Scuveert. There are differences. We will submit that for the
record so you can have access to that. . )

Segnator Heinz. Is there one particular area, a critically different
area

Mr. Scaueert. They have focused more on the countervailing duty
statute. Although we are very concerned about that area, we are
equally concerned with the antidumping area and what is projected in
the countervailing duties. .

Senator Heinz. My question only went to the suggestion they made
on countervailing duties. o

Mr. Scaueerr. I will defer that, and we will make that submission.

Senator Heinz. Thank you.

Senator Riercorr. Senator Nelson ¢

Senator NrLsoN. No questions.

Senator Rmicorr. Senator Dolef

Senator DoLe. No questions.

Senator Risicorr. Senator Chafee {

Senator CuAreE. I would just like to touch on one part of your
statement, and that is on page 3 where you talk about the international
codes. Most of the stecl import competition in the U.S. market comes
from foreign producers that I will style the new protectionists.

The r arl sts of these producers are stringently limited or closed to
}mplorts while they simultaneously sell in the United States, and so

orth.

Could you hriefly describe what some of those techniques for strin-
gently limiting or closing their markets to imports are{

Are these mainly licensing procedures or various evasionary tech-
niques that do not conform to our trade agreements{

{r. SHUBERT. They take many forms. It would be impossible for us
to sell steel in Japan. By the time it reached the consumer, the price
wonld be prohibitive.

Senator CHAFEE. That is really a price feature. You cannot sell
cheaply enough.

Are there other techniques that you use to penetrate these markets,
or are ) ou not familiar with those because of your cost problems.

Mr. ScHuserT. Yes; we are.

Senator CHAFEE. I would like to follow up on this if T might. T am

very interested in this particular point. It seems to me that there con-
stantly is the complaint that, through various subterfuges, American
industry products cannot be sold, say in Japan, due to a variety
of techniques that do not come within the purview of the trade
agreements.
. If you have any information with respect to that—I suppose your
Industry is not probably the best one to ask, because you have price
problems to start with, but if you are familiar with the techniqnes that
they use, not only in Japan, but in the European Community too, I
would appreciate having this information.

Thank ycu.
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Senator MoyNIHAN. Just one comment to you, gentlemen, and to
anyone else in this room, and this committee: under the complicated,
unique procedures which govern our consideration of the trade bxl]z we
will be meeting with Mr. Strauss on March 6 for a discussion of what
goes into this trade legislation. . L

So any of you who may have submissions for the committee’s con-
sideration really should get those proposals into the committee within
the next few days. i

I would like to tell you, Mr. Foy—and I notice that you are to be
followed by Mr. Denison representing the AFL-CIO—that one of the
great concerns to me personally, an I think to much of America, is
the declining rate of productivity in the United States. .

There is & lot of squawking in this cm_mtri about being uncompeti-
tive—that we don’t compete favorably with the Japanese and the West
Germans. The average annual rate of productivity growth of the
Japanese is about 8 percent a year and the average rate of produc-
tivity growth of the West Germans is about 6 percent a year, and we
have taken a nosedive in this country to about a zero rate of
productivity. .

Well, regardless of what laws you pass, if we have a zero rate of
productivity growth and our great competitors have an 8- and 6-
percent increase in productivity, they are going to beat the pants off
us from one end of the world to the next.

Now, what would you like to say in response, representing as you
do one of the great segments of American industry, about the decfine
Olf) prqdn;ctivity in the United States and what your industry can do
about 1t

And T am going to ask the same question, Mr. Denison, of you, be-
c;mlt.ls% Il 5hink both industry and labor bear a major responsibility in
this field. :

Mr. Foy. T am delighted, Senator, to respond to that question, be-
canse T have been working with it very diligently for many years.

In the steel business, our ability to improve productivity lies in our
ability to generate and spend capital money.

A's we modernize and enlarge and expand and get more sophisticated
facilities, we do improve our productivity. '

_ As an example, at our Sparrow’s Point plant this year, we brought
into being an 8,000 ton a day blast furnace which displaced four smaller
furnaces—one furnace displaced four. . '

That one furnace cost us over $250 million, for one furnace, but our
gtrplc‘l}lctivity increase with that one furnace is going to be very

riking, '

"It has been or lack of capital funds- to modernize and expand as
rapidly as we should that has retarded our productivity.

Contrast that with Japan which, from 1965 to 1978, doubled their
steel capacity with modern facilities on a basis of a better than 80
percent debt-equity. We cannot operate in this country on those kinds
of debt uitﬁ, ut the funds were made available to tﬁ'em through the
%%n_tral ank of Japan at very low interest ratesto do that kind of a
job. : .
Naw, Senator, it is only Japan that produces steel at a comparable
c?td to the United States. No other country in this world, that we know
of, does.
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Europe’s costs are much higher than ours and individual countries
within the Common Market are striking examples.

Take Great Britain where they lost $800 million last year in the
nationalized steel industry. There are no domestic—-no European
steel industries, we think, that can compete with ours, and the reason
they cannot compete is because they have not modernized.

We have, on the other hand, in the American steel industry in the
past 10 years spent $22 billion, far more than the cash flow that we
generated almost twice the cash flow we generated. During the past
10 years we increased our debt limit by something over $10 bilgon.
We just about reached the end of it.

Unless we can generate sufficient profits to continue to modernize,
we will stagnate, In that 10-year period, Senator, we have not in-
creased our capability of supplying an acdditional ton of steel. All we
have done is just maintained our capacity in capital expenditures, a
gre{tt percentage of which has gone to the environmental end of the

usiness.

Productivity in the steel business, I repeat, cun be obtained if we
can continue to spend money on capital equipment and modernjze our
facilities. Additionally, we can conserve a tremendous amount of
energy. New and modern facilities are much less energy intensive than
old equipment.

Senator Rieicorr. Thank you very much, Mr. Foy.

Senator Danforth

Senator Danrorta. What the the figures on how much you have
invested in recent years on capital?

Mr. Foy. The industry in the past 10 years has spent $22 billion.

Senator DanrorTH. $22 billion !

Mr. Foy. $22 billion in the last 10 years.

Senator DaNrorTH. $22 billion on new plant and equipment.

Mr. Foy. In modernization.

Senator DaNrorTH. Modernization,

Of that $22 billion, how much of that has gone to increased produc-
tivity and how much of that has gone to meet regulatory requirements?

Mr. Fox. Of the $22 billion, some 10 to 15 percent was environ-
mental.

Senator DanrorTH. Ten to 15 percent.

Mr. Forx. Now it is running at a rate of 20 to 25 percent, but of that
$22 billion, 10 to 15 percent was environmental.

Senator DanrorTH. Is that going to be sustained at 20 to 25 percent
or will that decline and will you reach a point where-you have met the
environmental standards a.ng you can put that money back into plant
and equipment?

Mr., Fox. As we look down the road, Senator, our environmental
expenditures, at Jeast for the next 5 to 8 years, will probably continue
at that level of 20 to 25 percent because one of the major areas that
we are getting into now is clean air and clean water regulations which
affect some of our basic components, such as coke ovens and blast
furnaces which are going to be very costly to bring into an environ-
mentally sound installation.

Senator, Danrorta.. What, in your opinion, can government do to
increase your capacity to invest in productive capital goodst
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Mr. Foy. One of tue very simple things that we have been ﬁ%hting
with the Treasury about for a year and & half is to reduce our depre-
ciation guideline. We are at 18 years. We are the second longest indus-
try in the country. Only cement has longer depreciation guidelines
than steel. T heﬁ' are 19 years, we are 18.

We asked the Treasury to cut our depreciation guidelines to 12.

They have told us that they are going to cut it to 15, but they still
have not done it.

We need faster depreciation.

Senator DANFORTH. What else?

Mr. Foy. There are many other things we need in the form of tax
benefits. We think that the investment tax credit is . We were
pleased to note that you did finally confirm and make that permanent.
I think in an industry as capital-intensive and labor-intensive as steel,
that investment tax credit should be greater than 10 percent.

Another thing we feel very strongly about is that environmental
expenditures take the same depreciation guidelines as productive
cquipment. We think that is a very serious mistake. Environmental
expenditures should, if you desire to, be written off in the year in which
they are made, at least not longer than 5 years, but they fall under
the same guidelines as productive equipment.

There are many things like this, Senator Danforth, that we believe
could be done to help the steel industry which is so capital intensive,
probably the most capital intensive industry in the country.

Senator DanrorTH. Do you believe we could get into the position
in the foreseeable future of being able to compete with the Japanese?

Mr. Foy. I have no doubt about it whatsoever. I think we are com-
petingoright now with them, right now, in our own market. I am talk-
Ing about the domestic market.

When you put their freight and handling charges on the steel
delivered to this country today, we are competitive.

I know, based on all the numbers we have, that we have better pro-
ductivity in this country today than the Japanese do.

Senator DanrorTH. To what extent is Japanese steel being dumped
on the American market ?

Mr. Foy. I do not think Japanese steel is being dum at the
present time in relation to the trigger price mechanism. They are, so
far as we are able to tell, abiding by 1t.

Imported steel, on the other hand, in relation to trigger price mech-
anism, is being constantly dumped by the Europeans and other foreign
countries because they are selling at the trigger prics, which is a price
that is not consistent with what they are selling in the home market
and not consistent with their cost. -

Senator DaxrorTH. Your position is that our antidumping laws now
are essentially not enforceablef

Mr. Fovy. I suppose our antidumf:ing laws would be enforceable if a
great effort was made to enforce them, but it would take a very con-
siderable effort.

S}:mgator DanrorrH. As a practical matter, they are not. Is that
right

Mr. Fovy. As a practical matter, they are not.

Senator DaxrorTH. You are familiar with the bills that I and others

have introduced on procedural matters relating to the antidumpi
snd countervailing duties? e g
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Mr. Fov. I am, Senator.

Senator DANFORTH. Are you supporiive?

Mr. Fox. Yes; weare.

Senator DaNForTH. Does your industry in general support it?

Mr. Foy. Yes; they do.

Senator DanrorTH. This is a political question, I guess, but do you
think if we could build the provisions of that bill into either the
enabling legislation or some companion legislation which was moving
on in tandem, presenting them as a package, would that make the
enabling legislation more palatable, more attractive?

Mr. Foy. May I defer to Mr. Schubert

Mr. ScaueerT. There is no question but that it would make it more
palatable, Senator. As we have described to you and to others, there
are some additional changes with regard to definitions, fur example, of
injury and casualty that we think are awfully essential.

%Ve are most apﬁreciative of the work that you have done, and Sen-
ator Heinz and others have done, to focus on the defects and we cer-
tainly support your efforts. We would like to strengthen them in some
additional areas as well, in order to make this package acceptable from
our standpoint.

Mr. Foy. Mr. Chairman, may I make one fin.al statement

Senator Rinicorr. Certainly. _

Mr. Fox. I made the statement before Senator Long’s committee last

fall and I feel very strongly about this position. It goes to the things
we are discussing here. .
- The steel industry in this country has not added a ton of additional
capacity in the last 10 years, in spite of the fact that the market in
this country has been growing at about 1.5 to 2 percent a year. All
that growth in the market has been taken up by foreign countries.

The market continues to grow at 1.5 to 2 percent a year. If this trend
continues,. that the domestic industry is not able to take care of this
domestic market, at some point down the road here, may be in the
middle 1980’s, maybe a little beyond tho middle 1980’s, you are going
to'have an OPEC situation on steel.

You will have a country that will be able to supply maybe 50 or 60
percent of its steel requirements. When that happens, the balance of
that stéel is going to be premiuni-priced steel from the countries out-
side of the United States who will supply that market, just as they
did in 1973 and 1974 when our good customers paid $100 to $200 a ton
ptemium for every ton of steel they had to get that we could not supply.

Senator Rmrcorr. I would like to make one comment on this leg-
islation. I do not think that any great country, be it the United States
or any other great industrial nation, can allow any basic industry to be
'destroyed. Every bagic industry in the nation, if you consider yourself
a great power, must be strong, e B

1 also bélieve that the key is produstivity and I think that this som-
mittee, in addition to its trade responsibilities certainly and its tax
responsibilities have an obligation to do everything we can to increase
productivity, w

I would suggest that the staff get a table for us of the comparability
of the rates of depreciation of all industrial nations and also a table
of comparability of investment tax credits, allocations of every in-
dustrial country'that is competitive with the United States.
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Are there any more questions? L

Mr. Hevz. Mr. Chairman, one suggestion. Perhaps it might be a

ood idea to get tables, if they are available, of productivity by sector.
g am struck by the differences in our own economy between farm,
manufacturing and ncnfarm manufacturing. There are quite different
rates of growth of productivity, and it might be good to get those for
dli)ﬁ'erent industrial sectors if they are available, both at home and
abroad.

Senator Risicorr. That will be done. Of course, prodnctivity in the
field of agriculture is one of the bright, shining lights of the world
but industrial—this is where the crunch comes in. But the staff will
try to get that information, as suggested, Senator Heinz.

Mr. Foy. I will be delighted if you get those tables on def)reciation,
because you will find that, as we have, that around the world, most of
the developed countries of today have depreciation guidelines run-
ning 5 years.

Senator RiBrcorr. That is why I want them. I think that is true,
but I want the figures and the staff will get that for us.

Mr. Foy. That is fine.

[f’rl‘l]me following information was subsequently supplied by the
staff ;.

INTERNATIONAL COMPARISON OF LABOUR PRODUCTIVITY

The table below shows first the share which the value of industrial production
of each of the ten countries represented of their combined total in 1970 and at
the beginning of 1978. The figures for 1970 (column 1) are derived from QEOD
data based on national income and expenditure accounts which were converted
into a common currency (U.S. dollars) at the then rates of exchange; those
for 1978 (column 2) were worked out in the light of subsequent growth of
industrial production, adjusted for both increases in industrial product prices
and changes in parities. By this reckoning, the countries which since 1970 huve
gained In relative importance are (in descending order of their 1978 ranking)
Japan, the Federal Republic of Germany, the Netherlands, Switzerland and
Austria, while the-other ive—the U.8., France, the United Kingdom, Italy and
Sweden—have lost. It 18 no conincidence, of course, that the second, unlike the
first, group of countries Lave also suffered falls in their exchange rates to
varying degrees. -

For computing, the ten countries’ industry workforces (in 1978) are also
expressed as percentages of their combined total (column 38); thus, Germany
accounts for 14.4% of their total workforce, compared with 15.99% (at the
ftart of 1976) of their total production. Dividing the latter figure in each case
by the former, one arrives at a serles of quotients which show each country's
productivity (output per head) in relation to the rest. Although minor differ-
ences here may be no more than statistical, major ones can nevertheless properly
be regarded as significant,

WIDE VARIATIONS IN PRODUCTIVITY

If those quotients are expressed as indices (based on Germany=100) (celumn
4), the productivity differences they reveal are in fact considerable, The front-
runner on this showing is still easily the United States, whose productivity
surpasses that of Germany (in third place) by about a quarter—a relative
placing which is even enforced by comparing the actual industrial sales per
employee of the one ($67,000, equivalent at $1=DM 2.10 to DM 140,000, in 1977)
with that of the other (DM 110,000 in 1976, DM 115,000 in 1977). In second
place comes the Netherlands, while the United Kingdom and Italy—at the
equivalent of little more than half the German average—bring up the rear.
The rest of the field—including Japan, where the very high productivity of
some large companies is offset by the compuratively poor performance of many
smaller ones—trail Germany by between roughly 10 and 20%.

Source. Dresden Bank of Germany “Economic Qusrterly,” No. 58—August 1978,

42-978—1979-——8
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PRODUCTIVITY AND LABOR COSTS OF 10 LEADING INDUSTRIAL COUNTRIES

Perzent share of combined indexes (Germany=100)
industrial production Psicent share
of combined Total tsbor Unit labor
Country 1970 Startof 1978  workforce? Productivity ? costs ¢ costs
Germany ... . .. 139 15.9 4.3 100 100 180
United States........... 48.0 42.1 3.4 124 ] 72
Japan ................... 12.9 16.3 19.4 76 91
1.9 1.6 8.8 78 65 83
1.0 6.4 11.3 52 43 83
“‘ 5.0 4.9 8.8 51 114
Netherlands. . 1.7 2.1 1.7 116 101 87
Switzeriand. . . 1.3 1.6 1.5 93 99 106
Sweden _........._.... 1.4 1.3 1.5 79 100 127
Austris. .o oreeneeeaee. .9 1.1 1.3 82 68 83
Total.......-.... 100.0 100.0 1000 ...eeeeeeicancnccnncrecceccanasemaacessnnn
1 At current 8«!00:. converted at current dollar exchange ratios.
2 Industry. 1
3 Output per head.
4 Allowing fOI‘ differences in annual working hours.
U.S. PRODUCTIVITY GROWTH BY :NDUSTRY, 1950-77
[Percent change pe  sar}
197. o vt
nare
Industry (percent)t 1950 65 1965-73 1973-77
Agriculture 2.9 49 3.6 30
Mining....... L5 4.3 1.9 ~6.1
Construction........ e 4.3 3.4 =21 .3
Manufacturin
NOdUADI® o o oeeecccmemmacmeeccan cemenen 9.9 3.2 3.3 2.2
Durable....o.e e cceceecceececneanamaaa- 14.4 2.5 2.2 1.2
Transportation....ccveeeeeencuccamiieceinencancnacan 3.9 3.0 2.9 1.0
Communication . . .euueceeeeeceacrrarcrrccaarasaaes 2. 5.3 4.6 6.7
2.3 6.1 35 .2
7.3 2.6 3.4 -8
10.0 23 2.1 .8
15.4 1.6 .2 23
12.0 1.2 L7 -3
12.5 .4 .5 .1
A Indumiu'
Current weights......cceeeencannann-- aeee 100.0 2.7 290 .11
Flud wdlhh (1977 output weights)......... cecasssscsanns 26 L9 i.1

1 Detail may not add to 100 percent because of rounding,

Note: Growth data relate to output per hour worked for all pe
Sources: Department of Commerce (Buresu of Economic Anslysls) ‘and Councll of Economic Advisers,
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Senator Risicorr. Senator Dole?

Senator DorLE. I just want to say before the witness has left—I do
not have a question, but I would like to distribute to the witnesses and
members of this committee some legislation that I have been consid-
ering to amend sections 301 and 302 of the Trade Act of 1974, in an
attempt to energize the vestigial parts of the law that we passed to
help regulate foreign commerce. I believe it is relevant to bring the
matter up now and maybe get some discussion on it because it addresses
izsues which I think lay at the heart of implementing the MTN agree-
ments: first, how do we make the executive branch more responsive to
private sector problems involving trade practices of other countries;
second, how can we provide greater certainty that the executive branch
will assert private sector claims in the new international fora that
the trade agreements will establish; and third, how do we guarantee
that the implementation of trade agreements will take place on a re-
ciprocal basis.

The legislation that I am proposing would provide a procedure by
which the International Trade Commission would make determina-
tions and recommendations filed urder section 301. Included in the
determination would be whether trade agreements are being violated
Ly a cosignatory or whether an agreement is being implemented on a
reciprocal basis and then, based on the ITC’s findings and recom-
mendations, the President could take whatever action that is within
his authority, although it would be subject to congressional disay;-
proval. If disapproved, the ITC’s recommendations wouid take effect.

It would seem to me to be an appropriate time, as we are listening
to a number of expert witnesses .1ere, to at least take a look at this
proposal, Iv would give the I'TC the authority to make a determina-
tion as to whether a country, first of all, maintains an unjustifiable and
unreasonable tariff or other import restrictions in paring the value
of trade commitments made to the United States that discriminate
agains , U.S. commerce. Second, whether they imposed unjustifiable
and unz. sonable restrictions on access to supplies of food, raw ma-
terials, ~.u other products which restrict U.S. commerce. Third,
whether they failed to implement on a reciprocal basis or complied
with the terms and intent of the trade agreements entered into under
authority of the Tiade Acts of 1972 and 1974.

It also gives the IT°C the authority to recommend actions to resolve
the problems noted above and it would require the President, any
President, to take remedial action or file a claim in an appropriate in-
ternational forum to resolve the problem.,

Just one example. We have not focused on agriculture, but let us
focus on agriculture, for example. If the EC is using a subsidy to pro-
mote export sales of a given agricultural product, the efect of which
is to restrict the sale of a U.S. product in a given market, a U.S. com-
pany producing that product would not be able to complain to the
Committee of Signatories of the subsidies agreement.

First, the company has to persuade the U.S. Government as a sig-
natory of the agreement to file a complaint. The current praciice in-
dicates that moving the Government in such a direction is very difficult
and it is often a question of politics.

Under the leglslation I am suggesting a predictable, nonpolitical
procedure would be established in which the President would be re-
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quired to assert a claim if the ITC found the claim to be valid and it
seems to me that the success or failure of what we are going to do, as
far as the MTN is concerned, is how we implement it and how we pro-
tect the private sector and other sectors that we deal with directly.

So I would hope that the introduction of such legislation during the
so-called consultation period, would place the administration on notice
that there may be some problems, and that we must address those
problems. I would appreciate any comments from any of my colleagues
or the witnesses in the next couple of weeks.

[The following material was submitted by Senator Dole:]

PROPOSAL BY SENATOR DOLE FOR THE AMENDMENT OF SECTIONS 301 AND 302 OF THE
TrRADE AcCT OF 1974

Section 301. Responses to certain trade practices of foreign governments.

{a) V" enever the International Trade Commission determines that a foreign
country or instrumentality—

{1) maintains unjustifiable or unreasonable tariff or other import restric-
tions which impair the value of trade commitments made to the United
States or which burden, restrict, or discriminate against United States
commerce,

(2) engages in discriminatory or other acts or policles which are unjusti-
flable or unreasonable and which burden or restrict United States commerce,

(3) imposes unjustifiable or unreasonable restrictions on access to supplies
of food, raw materials, or manufactured or semimanufactured products
which burden or restrict United States commerce, or

(4) 1s failing to implement on a reciprocal basie or comply with the terms
or intent of trade agreements entered into under the authority of the Trade
Act of 1074,

the Commission shall inform the President and Congress of its determination
and recommend to the President by a majority vote of the Commissioners voting,
action specified in paragrapbs (A) and (B) of subsection (b) that could be
taken to eliminate the conditions determined to exist.

For purposes of this subsection, the term “commerce” includes services asso-
clated with the international trade.

(b) The President shall by proclamation and within 80 days of receipt of the
Commission’s determination and recommendation, take all appropriate and
feasible steps within his power to obtain the elimination of the conditions found
by the Commission to exist, including—

(A) suspending, withdrawing or preventing the application of, or refrain-
ing from proclaiming, benefits of trade agreement corcessions to carry out &
trade agreement with such country or instrumentality ; and

(B) imposing duties or other import restrictions on the products of such
foreign country or instrumentaiity, and imposing fees or restrictions on the
services of such foreign country or instrumentality, for such time as he deems
appropriate; or

(C) when appropriate, may attempt to resolve the issue within an appro-
priate international forum in keeping with his authority specified in this
section or other provisions of law,

(¢) In determining what action to recommend under subsection (a) the Com-
missicn shall consider the Presicent’s authority as specified in this section and
shall consider the factors listed in section 208(c) of the Trade Act of 1974.

(d) In determining what action to take under subsection (b) the President
shall consider the relationship of such action to the purposes of the Trade Act of
1674, specified in section 2 of that Act. Action shall be taken under subsection (b)
against the foreign country or instrumentality involved, except that, subject to
the p;ovllsions of section 302, any such action may be taken on a nondiscrimina-
tory basis,

(e) (1) The Commission shall provide an opportunity for the presentation of
views concerning the restrictions, acts, policies, or practices referred to in pa-
ragraphs (1), (2), (3), and (4) of subsection (a).

(2) upon complaint flled by any internsted party with the Commission alleg-
ing any such restriction, act, policy, or practice, the Commission shall conduct a
review of the alleged restriction, act, policy, or practice, and, at the request of
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the complainant, shall hold public hearings thereon. The Commission shall have
a copy of each complaint flled under this paragraph published in the Federal
Register. The Commission shall issue regulations concerning the flling of com-
plaints and the conduct of reviews and hearings under this paragraph and shall
submit a report to the House of Representatives and the Senate semi-annually
summarizing the reviews and hearings conducted by it under this paragraph
during the preceding 6-month period.

(f) Before the President takes any action under subsection (b) with respect
to the import treatment of any product or the treatment of any service—

(1) he shall provide an opportunity for the presentation of views con-
cerning the taking of action with respect to such product or service,

(2) upon request by any interested person, he shall provide for appro-
priate public hearings with respect to the taking of action regarding such
product or service.

If the President determines that, because of the need for expeditious action
under subsection (b), compliance with paragraphs (1) and (2) would be con-
trary to the national interest, then such paragraphs shall not apply with respect
to such action, but he shall thercafter promptly provide an opportunity for the
presentation of views concerning the action taken and, upon request by any
interested person, shall provide for appropriate public hearings with respect
to the action taken. The President shall provide for the issuance of regulations
concernilng the fliing of requests for, and the conduct of, bearings under this
subsection. '

Section 802. Procedure for Congressional disapproval of certain actions under
section 301.

(a) When the President takes action under section 301 (b), he shall transmit
to the House of Representatives and to the Senate a document setting forth the
action he has taken together with his reasons therefor.

(b) (1) If, before the close of the 90-day period beginning on the day on which
the document referred to in subsection (a) is delivered to the House of Repre-
sentatives and to the Senate, the two Houses adopt, by an affirmative vote of a
majority of those present and voting in each House, a concurrent resolution of
disapproval under the procedures set forth in section 152 of the Trade Act of
1974, then the action recommended by the Commission pursuant to section 301
(a) shall take effect as provided in paragraph (2) of this subsaction.

(2) If the contingency set forth in paragraph (1) occurs, the President shall
(within 30 days after the adoption of such resolution) proclaim the action to be
taken as recommended by the Commission pursuant to section 301 (a).

Mr. Foy. All I can say, Senator, is amen.

Senator Risrcorr. Thank you very much.

Mr. Denison please?

Senator CHAFEE. May I ask one final quick question?

Senator RiBicorr. Certainly.

Senator Cuaree. This comes back to the chairman’s question earlier.
It seems to me from your testimony here, if you had your druthers,
instead of seeking more protection or assistance to your industry and
others, you would prefer fast depreciation and investment tax credits
so you couid get the industry more competitive with the rest of
Europe, and the Japanese.

Is that true? I know you feel competitive with the Western Euro-
peans but it seems to me that if you could have the more rapid writeoff
of environmental protection equipment, and so forth, you would be
better off.

Mr. For. Senator, what you are saying is certainly true, but you
have to reserve this judgment.

As I said, many of our foreign competitors are nationalized indus-
tries who are in business for one thing—to create employment—and
unless we have the protection of antidumping laws, they will continue
operating and sell their product at whatever they have to sell it to
continue to operate and to provide employment, which is what they
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were doing in 1975, 1976, and 1977 and continuing to do under the
trigger price.

Senator CHaFee. Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Foy follows:]

STATEMENT oF LEWIS W, For, CHAIRMAN, AMERICAN IRON & STREL INSTITUTE

Part I.—Summary of AISI position on MTN Results and Trade Reform

Mr. Chairman, my name is Lewis W. Foy, and I am appearing today in my
capacity as Chairman of the American Iron and Steel Institute. I am also Chair-
man of Bethlehem Steel Corporation. My colleagues and I are grateful for this
opportunity to present the views of the American steel industry on the results
of the multilateral trade negotiations. The subject matter of this hearing is of
singular importance to our industry.

The U.S. steel industry in effect is competing with forelgn governments—
governments which wholly or partially own or control their domestic steel in-
dustries, making them subsidized instruments of national, social and economic
policy. As a result, those industries routinely sell in export markets at prices
significantly below both cost of production and home market prices.

The results have been devastating for the Americen steel industry. Imports
have averaged about 20 million tons a year over the past two years, taking 18%
of the U.S. market. The ateel trade deficit alone last year was cbout $5.6 billion,
and it has become the second largest contributor to the U.S. trade deficit.

Unless this nation develops an effective statutory approach to the kind of unfair
trade practices which are so clearly prevalent in international steel trade, sub-
sidized foreign steel will not cnly maintain its present high level of market
penetration {n this country but wili be able to expand at will.

Any independent expert analysis of comparative costs of production and other
entry costs will clearly show that the American industry is the efic.ent producer
for the American market. Accordingly, we find {t unacceptable to be unable to
expand our caacity to supply a growing American steel market due to unfairly
priced imports, This should also be unacceptable to our Guvernment. The United
States needs a strong steel industry and a secure steel supply.

The steel industry supports the objectives underlying the U.8. Government's
approach to the multilateral trade negotiations. We concur in the need for
expansion of world trade, and we concur in its benefits to the world economy.

This view has led to strong reservations on our part concerning the distortion
of the concept of comparative advantage inhcrent in foreign government sub-
sidization of their steel fndustries, dumping by those industries, and in the
manner in which the U.S. Government enforces our countervailing duty and
antidumping laws. The distortion of comparative advantage is particularly
severe under the present U.S. steel trigger price system, which is based upon
Japanese costs and thus permits continued dumping by European and other
higher cost foreign steel producers who are entering the U.8. market at prices
based upon Japanese production costs and comparative advantage.

These conceptual issues relate directly to the matters under consideration at
this hearing, the international codes designed to cope with unfair trade practicas,
and changes in U.S. laws necessary to prevent these practices.

THE INTERNATIONAL CODES

Most of the steel import competition in the U.S. market comes from foreign
producers which I would style the new protectionists. The markets of these
producers are stringently limited or closed to imports, while they simultaneously
sell in the U.S. market at prices lower than their costs of production or their
home market jrices. When we decry such practices and urge our Government
to act agains, dumped and subsidized imports, the foreign produers or their
governments all us protectionists while they at the same time practice an out-
rageous distorilon of the concept of comparative advantage in our market.

The codes negotiated in the MTN are an attempt to improve the international
rules governing trade practices. They are a step in the right direction, concep-
tually, but it wo.uld be lers than realistic for us to sssume that either through
their formulatioa or administration the MTN Codes can change the structure of
steel industries in other countries. Government subaidies and ownership are the
root cause of these unfair commercial practices in the U.S. market,
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Notwithstanding this, we are most interested in the substance snd procedural
&spects of the codes. We have a crucial concern about the changes in existing law
necessary to implement the codes and about the changes in existing law which
are necessary to make our trade laws function adequately.

. l(l)m' views on the more ‘mportant codes under review at this hearing are as
ollows ;
SUBSIDY/COUNTERVAILING DUTY CODE

The Subsidy Code is of particular importance to the steel industry. You will
recall that in order for a countervailing duty to be applied under the Code, a
complainant must establish a subsidy, injury, and casualty. The remedy then
becomes crucial, and the procedures are critical to obtaining any relief,

The first point we make is that there is no general definition of “subsidy” in
the Subsidy Code Implementing legislation must provide a definition which
broadly includes both the export and domestic subsidies of foreign countries. The
definition must be in the statute and not left to possible later regulations or
administrative interpretatious.

As you know, for dutiable items (which include &1 steel mill products), no
injury test is required under our present countervalling duty statute. The Sub-
sidy Code calls for a material injury test, which if not properly defined in fm-
plementing legislation as meaning only more than de minimis injury, would
render the revised countervailing duty statute useless except in the most extreme
cases,

Concerning the remedy: The draft code would permit a countervalling duty
less than the amount of the subsidy and, in fact, would leave to the complete
discretion of the Executive Branch the application of any remedy. This, like
i)tger broadly permissive provisions, must be dealt with in the implementing legis-
ation.

The procedures specified in the Code are replete with generalizations. There
are many phrases such as “when the authorities are satisfied,” or concepts such
as our government terminating a proceeding upon “arriving at a mutually agreed
solution” with a forelgn government. Other similar concepts exist such as ter-
mination of a proceeding upon receipt of voluntary undertakings of various
kinds—undertakings which need only be satisfactory to the government, irre-
spective of the position of the affected industry and its employees. All these
tt)lroad phrases and concepts need to be made definite in the implementing legisla-

on.

Failure to make these changes, as well as the other essential changes we are
proposing, by incorporating them into the implementing bill, would be cause for
rejection of both the Code and the implementing bill.

U.8. ANTIDUMPING ACT

Apparently as an 11th hour move to accommodate the EEC, our negotiators
seem to have agreed that the material injury and other key provisions of the
Subsidy Code would be transposed into our Antidumping Act. Given the serious-
ness of the problems we see in the Subsidy Code, we believe that parallel changes
in our Antidumping Act will weaken that statute beyond use,

As Senator Russell Long said in a Law Review article commenting on Congres-
sional rejection of efforts in the Kennedy Round to modify our antidumping
statute, “material injury” could require an industry to show that it was “fiat on
its back” before antidumping duties could be assessed. We agree. This should
not be tolerated in either the Dumping Act or the Countervailing Duty Act.

BAYEGUARDE OODE

Important provisions of Safeguards Codes are still lacking and negotiations.
are continuing. Along with the problems of definition and criteria that beset other
codes, we have a specific concern with respect to this Code. It is our understand-
ing that the pervasive quantitative import restrictions on steel that are imposed
by the HEC would not be subject to the Code. In contrast, we understand that the-
American quotas on speclalty steels—a much more limited action than the EEC
quotas—would fall under the Code. To us, this would constitute a blatant and
unjustifiable dual standard. With respect to the proposed tariff cuts, we are

seriously concerned with the inequity which appears to be emerging from the
negotiations.
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SUMMARY

The concept of international solutions to trade problems is one we support.
However, the steel industry is concerned iihat the proposed Codes will be imple.
mented into U.8. law in a way that renders our trade 1aws even more ineffective
in dealing with unfair trade practices thun thcy are now. We earnestly hope that
you will not permit this—and that yoa will in fact strengthen our trade laws,

Twelve years ago a report on steel imports published by the Senate Finance
Committee concluded that there was an “urgent need for fairer rules in inter-
national steel trade.” That need is even more urgent today. Effective domestic
legislation will help meet that need.

Part 11 of our statement contains our detailed comments on the Codes and on
the Tariff cuts.

Part ITI sets forth our recommendations for improvements in both the sub-
stance and administration of our trade laws,

Part IT1.—AISI Recommendations on MTN Codes and Tariff Results

During the course of the multilateral trade negotiations (MTN), cur industry
has stated its position consistently and clearly on what we hoped to obtain from
these negotiations., Clearly, much of what the industry sought has not been
attempted or obtained.

‘What is emerging as the MTN result is not yet susceptible to definitive re-
spouse for several reasons: (a) the draft texts of the non-tariff codes are still
in varying degrees of completion; (b) the details of the tariff negotiation results
are unknown to us; (c) the text of the implementing legislation has not yet been
drafted; (d) the administrative organization and procedures required to carry
out domestic laws and fulfill responsibilitiers under the international codes are
as yet unspecified; and (e) in the case of steel, the OECD Steel Committee
created in late 1978 has not yet become fully opérational.

Despite these deficiencies, the industry wishes to present its views on tariffs
and on the codes which most directly concern our industry. Given the compiex
nature of each of the issues, our comments are presented in summary form; we
have more extensive analysis and materials to support our summary statements

TARIFF CUTS

Our current information is that the United States would end up with lower
tariffs on steel products than any of its major steel trading partners.

Ironically, the same countries that have engaged in bilateral quota and price
agreements protecting their home market, while flooding the U.S. market with
imported steel, are not willing to reduce their steel tariffs to the same level that
the U.S, has offered. This situation i{s incomprehensible to us. We do not under-
stand why the United States has oftered to reduce steel tariffs to a level lower
than that of our trading partners.

Accordingly, in concluding the U.8. negotiation on tariff cuts, we are urging
the Administration to take the following positions:

Proposed 1).8. reductions in stecl tariffs should not be greater than the reduc.
tions being offered by our major trading partners; and

At the conclusion of negotiations, average steel tarii!s of the U.S8. should not be
lower than those of the EEC, Japan and Canada.

SUBSIDY/COUNTERVAILING DUTY OODE

The Subsidy Code has conceded too much and obtained too little to be accept-
able as it is presently written. The only “hari” obligation in this code is a
prohibition against the use of export subsidies; these, however, are not the steel
industry’s main problem. Our much greater concern is with domestie, or so-called
internal, subsidies which have a trade distorting effect.

In our view, the code obligation against internal subsidies is weank (signatories
shall “seek to avoid” causing serious prejudice through their nse and should
take their ‘“possible adverse effect” into account in formulating policles and
practices). It remains to be seen how the domestic procedures for relie? against
foreign internal subsidies will be formulated.

INJURY—NOW AND UNDER THE CODE

Under existing counterv. .Ung duty law, there is no injury requiremen; for
dutiable goods and a simple showing that an industry is being or iikely to be
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“injured” for nondutiable items. The Subsidy Code would change this to require
a showing of “material injury” to a domestic industry before relief could be
obtained from subsidized products. And there must be proof of a “causal link”
between the subsidized imports and the materiel injury. The modifying term
“inaterial” may be defined to mean that the injury to an industry must be of
great consequence or real importance.

Under existing antidumping law, it need only be shown that an industry s
beingz or likely to be “injured” by reason of dumped goods. The Subsidy Code
mandates that the antidumping law will be amended to provide the same “ma-
terial injury” and “causal ink"” standards.

The method of injury determination is further elaborated in the code, which
requires an examination of the volume of subsidized imports and their effect on
prices in this market’ the implementing legislation may require that only if the
volume and price tests car. be met {8 inquiry to be made as to the consequent
impact on domestic producers. The test for volume of subsidized imports is a
determination of whether there has been a “significant increase in subsidized
imports”. And the test for the effect on prices is a determination of whether
there has been a “significant price undercutting” by the imports compared with
domestic prices or whether the imports have depressed ‘prices to a significant
degree” or prevented significant price increases which would otherwise have
occurred.

Thus, before getting to an examination of the impact on the industry caused
by subsidized imports, it may be necessary to satisty proof of a significant in-
crease in subsidized imports and significant price undercutting, significant price
erosion of domestic prices, or significant suppression of domestic price increases
that would otherwise have occurred. Is this to mean that if subsidized imports
are presently coming into this country at 4 high volume it will be impossible
to meet the burden of proving “material injury” atter adoption of the code so
long ‘as the alreally large volume of subsidized imports does not “significantly”
increase? Or take this example: A domestic industry where domesi.c supply
far exceeds demand so that prices are at quite a "ow level. Subsidized imports
of those products enter this country and sell at domestic prices so that they do
not “significantly undercut prices” nor do they “significantly depress prices”. The
supply-demand situation is such that the subsidized imports do not repress price
increases either. Nonetheless, subsidized imports are taking a healthy share
of an already depressed market, which forces domestic producers to operate
at even lower operating rates which adversely affects the industry’s employ-
ment, costs, and profits. But, under the criteria enunciated in the code, as they
may be elaborated in implementing legislation, you may never reach inquiry as
to the impact the subsidized imports are having on the domestic industry by
virtue of not being able to overcome the threshold standard of showing price
undercutting or price suppression by the imports. The antidumping statute is
likewise proposed to be amended to impose the same severe burden of proving
injury.

The code provisions on the economic criteria to be evaluated in determining
whether or not the subsidized imports have had an adverse impact on an in-
dustry are appropriate factors. However, other provisions of the code require
preof of a caueal connection between the subsidized imports and material injury
to the domestic industry. The code notes chat other factors at the same time may
be injuring the industry, and the injuries caused by such “other factors’ must not
be attributed to the subsidized imports. If this proviso means anything, it will
require that the injury determination sort out all of the economic factors which
may be adversely affecting an ir dustry and somehow find a means of isolating
that injury attributable to subsidized imports from that injury caused by “other
factors”. This is no easy economic feat. At any given time, any industry any-
where in the world is being affected in one way or another by any number of
economic factors, To segregate the impact of sunsidized imports from all other
economic factors requires a qualitative measurement extraordinarily dificult of
accomplishment at best and impossible of attainment at worst. But the code re-
quires that the test of “material injury” to an industry must be shown to have
been caused only by the subsidized imports.

We submit that there may, in implementing legislation, to be threefold process
of establishing “material injury’—

First, a showing of significant increace in volume of imports;
Second, a showing of significant price undercutting or significant price
depression or repression; and
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Third, a showing of the adverse impact on the industry attributable to-
suhsidized imports as distinct from all other adverse factors.
that imposes a near impossible burden of proof, in both the countervaling duty
and the antidumping statutes. Althovgh this may not have been the intent of our:
negotiators, we believe this may be the unhappy consequence of the code.

RELMEDIES—NOW AND UNDER THE CODE

If an industry is so lucky as to overcome this formidable hurdle of proving
material injury, it then looks to the remedies afforded under the Subsidy Code.
Present law requires that upon a finding of subsidies that countervafling duties
must be finposed in the amount of the subsidies. However, the code permits
the imposition of countervailing dutles that are less than the amount of the-
subsidy “if such lesser duty would be adequate to remove the injury to the
domestic industry”. Furthermore, the countervailing duties imposed under the
code “shall remain in force only as long as, and to the extent, necessary to
counteract the subsidization which is causing injury”. OQur government would
ge ?bliged to review the need for continued imposition of such countervailing

uties,

The route required to prove subsidies and material injury in order to arrive:
at limited and discretionary remedies can only leave domestic producers with.
the conviction that the relief potential doesn’t warrant the hazards and hard-
ships of the journey. The code provides that any investigation or any action may
be terminated without imposition of any countervailing duties if the offending:
signatory agreed to eliminate or limit the subsidy so that it no longer causes.
injury or upon an undertaking by the exporter to revise its prices to eliminate
injury or to cease or limit its exports of the subsidized product to the affected
area. These termination provisions in the code leave nearly unchallengeable dis-
cretion in our enforcement officials to abandon any countervailing duty investi-
gation or proceeding, even though subsidies and injury have been shown to exist,

CONSULTATION PROCEEDINGS

Under any countervailing duty proceeding, the code requires that interna.
tional consultations take place as soon as possible after any countervailing duty
complaint is accepted and ‘‘before the initiation of any investigation”. The aim of
these consultations is to arrive at mutually agreed solutions. In addition, the code
requires that during the period of a countervailing duty investigation interna-
tional consultations must take place with the view to arriving at a mutually
agreed solution. The code is quite explicit on this point when it states: “It is
particularly i{mportant . . . that no afirmative finding whether preliminary or
final be made without reasonable opportunity for consultations having been
given”. This must surely mean that before domestic authorities may investigate,
adjudicate and impose a countervailing duty our government must consult with
the signatory parties in a good faith effort to arrive at a mutually agreed solu-
tion. If our international representatives arrive at a solution satisfactory to them
(which niay be totally unacceptable to the affected domestic industry), it follows
that the code contemplates that an agrecd upon interrational solution will make
it unnecessary for domestic adjudication and imposition of countervailing dutles,
This necessarily leaves the enforcement of the countervalling duty code to the
uncertain outcome of our government officials in International consultations
arriving at a “mutually agreed solution”, which would moot the domestic pro-
ceedings. Countervailing duties would be imposed only if our international rep-
resentatives could not arrive at what they felt was a mutually agreed solution.

The code nowhere spells out what minimum standards must be met in order
to satisfy the criteria of a “mutually agreed solution”. Once again, this leaves
the remedy for subsidized imports to the unfettered discretion of government
officials to work out such a solution or remedy as they see fit. This contrasts
sharply with the existing countervailing duty law, which absolutely mandates
the imposition of countervailing duties in the amount of the subsidy once the
Secretary of the Treasury has determined that a bounty or grant has been pro-
vided or. imported goods,

In response to the Subcommittee recuest for views, following are our views on
the specific issues cited in the Subcommittee announcement.

1. Administering agency.—1n our view, the conduct of antidumping and coun-
tervailing duty investigations has too often become subject to political influence.
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Reorganization of international trade functions is long overdue, We recommend
that countervailing and antidumping responsibilities be vested in an independent
agency to insure that cases can be processed on their economic merits.

2, Definition of “énjury” —“Injury” is not defined in the code. In the implement-
ing legislation it can and should be. The best way to define “injury” is to follow
the definition which this Committee described in the Senate Finance Committee
Report on the Trade Act of 1974 concerning dumping. Specifically, we suggest
that in the portion of the implementing legislation corresponding to paragraph &
of code Section 1-F, after the words “causing injury” a phrase be inserted that
says “(which veed only be more than de minimis) ", Fallure to do this will result,
we submit, in interminable litigation and, we fear, the denial of relief from for-
eign subsidized products. We urge the Inclusion of economic factors such as
*actual and potential negative effects on cash flow™ and “ability to raise capital
or investment” in the examination of impact on an industry.

As far as non-signatories are concerned, the injury test and other code bene-
fits should not apply; there should be strong Incentive to join the code. How-
ever, internal subsidies should be actionable under the existing statute with
respect to non-signatories.

8. Deftnition of “Industry”.—No statutory guidelines are presently available
to assist on the pivotal definition of “industry”. It is therefore recommended that
Congress add to the countervaliling duty statute and the Antidumping Act a
definition of industry encompassing two key features:

First, “industry” should be defined in terms of the facilities actuully produc-
ing merchandise like or comparable to that being subsidized or dawuped. S8uck 2
provision would resolve an issue that has caused confusion for almost two de-
cades. It would reject, once &nd for all, the notion that a manufacturer who logt
counsiderable sales and profits in a given product line due to ‘mportation of dumped
merchandise was not actually injured because his sales and profits in other lines
were unimpaired.

Second, the definition of “Industry” must recognize that injury can occur in
a particular region. The Internationa: Trade Commission has gone ‘full circle”
in its approach to regional markets over the years. Absent statutory direction
from Congress, there is no assurance the Commission’s present position will
remain in effect. Indeed, as the composition of membership changes in the future,
changes in the Commission’s method of treating regional markets are almost
inevitable. The proposed amendment would codify the current interpretation
and add stabllity to the administration of this country’s trade laws.

4. Duties smaller than the amount of subsidy.—Section 1-C of the code makes
permissive a countervailing duty lesser in amount than that actually found to
be the subsidy. Since by definition the subsidy is anfair competition, we submit
that the full measure of the subsidy must be subject to countervailing action.

5. Termination of investigation.—Realistically, administrators of the counter-
vailing duty law should be permitted to terminate investigations provided there
are clear guidelines in domestic legislation for doing so. A “mutually agreed solu-
tion” Latween our government and the subsidizing government, that did not
ensure termination of the subsidization or a price adjustment to fully compen-
sate for it, could do violence to the domestic industry and its employees. A. %
minimum, we recommend that any agreement or undertaking with respect to
prices, quantities or subsidy amounts be fully transparent, be notified in advance
to the domestic complaingnt, provide for monitoring and provide for specific
sanctions in the event the agreement or undertaking is breached.

8. Judiolal review.—There should be a strengthening of the right judicial re-
view of decisions made at the administrative level under the countervailing duty
statute. Judicial review should be subject to time limits and cover a decision not
to begin an investigation, a finding of whether there were subsidies, and the
finding of the amount of countervailing duty to be imposed.

7. Dispute scitlement aopparatus.—The question of representation in the dis-
pute settlement process is tied into the broader Issue of reorganization of the
international trade functions within the U. 8. government. The existing assign-
ment of agency responsibilities is clearly deficlent. Whatever organisational
changes do result, the responsibility for representation in dispute settiement
should be lodged with experts charged with the day-to-day execution of subsidy
responsibilities.

Also, the U, 8. Government should determine as a matter of policy to submit
names of qualified non-governmental persons to serve on international panels.
The code provides for such persons; this would insure more impartiality in dis-
pute settlement than might otherwise be the case.
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Implementing legislation should provide that any affected domestic coiapany,
union or trade association has the right to request commencement of the dispute
settlement process. There should be required response times and appeal proce-
dures. Private complainants should have the right to advise and observe during
the domestic and international procedures.

INTERNATIONAL ANTIDUMPING CODE

The prefatory explanation to the Subsidy/Countervailing Duty Code states:

“The EC, and others, have argued that it would be illogical, and potentially
troublesome, to interpret GATT Article VI one way for countervalling and an-
other for antidumping. We believe that in each case the adoption of the coun-
tervailing provisions in the dumping context would, in fact, result in closer
conformity between actual U.S. practice in dumping and the provisions of the
Antidumping Code, and could well be dcsiradle from a U.S. point of view. (Em-
phasis added)

At present, we do nnt concur with this conclusion. In our view, the parallel
changes being sought in the International Antidumping Code, and presumably
in the U. 8. Antidumping Act, would significantly erode already inadequate levels
of protection against dumping. Our reasons are as follows:

We have not yet seen specific language describing the changes in defini-
tion (;gd material injury, casuality and regional industry that are being
proposed.

It appears that the terms proposed to be used in the Subsidy/Countervail-
ing Duty Code and the International Antidumping Code could result in far
more stringent criteria of injury and casuality than is currently the case
under the U.S. Antidumping Act.

Senator Long, in & law review article commenting on the Congressional rejec-
tion of efforts in the Kennedy Round to modify our antidumping statute by
adoption of the International Antidumping Code with its “material injury”
requirement, correctly observed that tbe “material injury” standard would re-
quire an industry to show that it was *“flat on its back” before dumping duties
cculd be assessed.

With respect to the specific issue raised by the Subcommittee:

1. Administering agesrcy.—Our views on the need for resrganizing the han-
dling of international economic functions within the U.8S. Government have al-
ready ..en stated above in the section dealing with the countervailing duty
statute. Administration of the antidumping statute should fall wtihin the same
administering authority as the countervailing duty act, both being as free as
possible from political influence.

2. Rclation to countervailing duty concepts.—Despite the tendency to join the
two, the countervailing duty and antidumping laws have bu2n conceptually sep-
arate. The countervailing duty law is, in practice, a remedy against governmental
subsidization, whereas the Antidumping Act deals with injurious sales at less
than fair value by private parties.

The distinction is becoming blurred, however. In the case of British Steel
Corporation (a government-owned entity), there is massive subsidization by the
British government, and the BSC can itself engage in dumping. The point is
that there can be official subsidization and official dumping.

In view of the increased governmental activity in both subsidization and
dumping and the increasing difficulty for private sector complainants to quan-
tify the margins attendant thereto, we submit that the threshold of casuality and
injury under both statutes must be no greater than that existing under the
present U.S8. Antidumping Act.

For this reason, we are opposed to any changes in the U. 8, antidnmping stu-
tute which would require a showing that dumped merchandise is a “principal”
cause of “material” injury, as is required under the present International Anti-
dumping Code. Nor do we wish to see the international code amended to drop
the qualifiers “principal” and “material” only to be replaced with language
which accomplishes the same result.

BAFEGUARDS CODE

Important provisions of this code are still under negotiation. At present, sev-
eral major points are of concern to us: ‘ e
“Principal cause” still remains in the draft code; this concept would
increase the risk that proof of causality will be more dificult than currently
exints under the U.8. escape clause; ’
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There I8 no provision for regional injury ;

The decision on selective application for safeguard measures appears not
to have been finally made;

Contrary to our original impression, it now appears that not ali quan-
titative import restrictions undertaken by signatories have to be notified
under Chapter 9 of the code;

The code does not include assessment of “actual and potential negative
effects on cash flow"” and “abillity to raise capital or investment” among the
factors to be included in examining injury, as is the case in the subsidy/coun-
tervailing duty code. :

The domestic steel industry has reason to be concerned with the degree to
which equity is being achieved under this code. The European Commission is
actively negotiating quantitative import restraints on steel with some 19 ex-
porting countries. Most of these restrictions were in effect in 1978 and are now
being extended into 1979. They are based on tonnage limitations as well as price
undertakings. In 1979 an estimated 85% of steel imports into the EEC were
covered by these price/tonnage restrictions.

We are advised by U.S. negotiation officials that this pervasive scheme of
European Community steel import restrictions would not come within the pur-
view of the Bafeguards Code, since these restrictions are not declared by the
EEC to be Article XIX-type actions. Nevertheless, it is our understanding that
the United States specialty steel quotags would have to be notified under the
Safeguards Code and would thereby be subject to the provisions of the Code.

In our view, this result under the S8afeguards Code would constitute a blatant
and unjustifiable dual standard. It is the essence of the coniinul. z frustration
encountered by our industry In trying to contain the trade diverelonary meas-
ures employed by other steel producing countries,

Following are our comments on the specific issues raised by the Subcommittee :

1. Developing countries.—Not all developing countries should be accorded spe-
cial and differential treatment insofar as steel is concerned. Steel industries of
many developing countries can be considered to be highly competitive in the world
marketplace. As in the case of generalized preferences, a “competitive need”
formula should be built into U.S. domestic implementing legislation to insure
that special and differential treatment is accorded only to countries whose indus-
tries truly deserve such treatment.

2. Yoluntary resiraint agreements.—If voluntary restraints are made subject
to voluntary export restraints coverage under the code, it is important that
(a) third countries be given adequate and fair opportunity to defend trade in-
terests which they believe may be adversely affected by such restraint arrange-
ments and (b) third countries be able to extract commitments from the partici-
pants to the inter-industry or voluntary export restraint agreements that any
sign of trade diversion will entitle the tuird country to take off-setting measures
to protect its trade interesta. These conditions should be included in U.B. imple-
menting legislation.

8. Distinguishing betiween signatories and non-gignatories—A signatory should
be assyred that a safeguard action—if taken in full regard of the code—will
not subject it to retaliation or a demand for compensation by other signatortes.
As to non-signatories, safeguard action by a signatory should not be subject to
phaseout or the other restraints that are applicable to signatories. Similarly,
rafeguard action should be permissible on a selective basis against non-signa-
tories without the strictures for such actions that may be required of signatories.

fIn auet;:ymary, the differentiation against non-signatories should rest in the area
of remedy. _

4. Sections 201 to 208 of the Trade Aot of 1974.—The most important improve-
ment that can be made in these sections is to provide for a fast track proceed-
ing under which a U.8, industry could petition for a speeded up injury determina-
tion. While care should be taken to insure that such a fast track is not abused,
the criteria should not be 80 iringent as to make the procedure unworkable.

8. Unilatoral action—If unilateral selective safeguard action {s permitted
under the code, the procedures should (a) distinguish between signatories and
non-signatories and (b) entitle signatories to the rights of notice, consuitation,
public hearings and similar procedural rights, :

6. Definition of “domestic industry.”—In our view the term "domestic indus-
try” or “industry in the United Statcs” means any subdivision or portion of the
commercial organisations in any section of the United States manufacturing,
assembling, processing, extracting, growing, selling or otherwise producing,
marketing, or handling articles or merchandise of the same class or kind as the
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merchandise or articles imported. In applying the preceding sentence, there
shall be distinguished or separated the operations of ruch organizations invelv-
ing merchandise or articles imported from the operations of such organizations
involving other articles of merchandise,

WHAT IS NEEDID

A higher degree of equity and reciprocity can and shou.d be achieved, and
this goal would be furthered if assurance or satisfaction {8 provided on the fol-
lowing points:

1. The Antidumping Act must not be amended in any way that would weaken
its enforcement or require domestic complainants to sustain a greater burden
of proof than currently exists today with respect to casualty, injury, and defini-
tion of industry. In fact, the Act should be strengthened and made more effective.

2. Under the Subsidy/Couutervailing Duty Code:

“Material injury" must be defined in domestic implementing legislation
to permit a showing of injury which need oniy be more than de minimiés;

“Causation” must be defined in domestic implementing legislation to
make clear that subsidised imports need not be a “principal” or “substan-
tial” cause of the material injury;

Internal subsidies must be reachable without quaiification under the
procedures which dezl with Injury as well as those which deal with nullifi-
cation or impairment or with serious prejudice;

The procedures must be made specific and the generalisations and broadly
stated phrasing refined so that the result is not a grant of uncontrolled
diseretion and authority to the Bxecutive Branch; and

The remedy provisions of the Code would permit a countervailing d.ity
of less than the amount of the subsidy and in fact leave to the discretion
of the Executive Branch the application of any remedy. This broadly per-
missive authority must be dealt with,

3. Under the Safeguard Code:

Criteria fo: import relief should be no more onerous than those under
present G.S. trade law, and the code should not weaken or prevent use of
domesiic laws;

“Principal cause” shounld replace the causality tast under existing U.8.

w3

Regional market disruptioc shouid be fully recognized ;

Provisional application of safeguard measures “in critical circumstances”
should be included in domestic implementing legislation;

All existing quantitative restrictions should clearly be covered or clearly
be excluded under the code, so there is certainty as to what measures the
code is designed to reach: and

The phrases ‘‘actual aud potecntial negative effects on cash flow” and
“alL'lity to raise capital or investment” should be included in the code, as
well as in domestic implementing legislation, as factors to be examined in
determining injury.

Domestic organigation and procedures for the enforcement of 7J.8. unfair
trade practice statutes, as well as for the administration of responsibilities re-
sulting from the codes, must be revamped to insure the preservation of U.8.
domestic and international economic iuterests,

In an effort to provide adequate statutory remedies, we have prepared a
package of proposed amendments to our existing trade laws which we have
titled the “Fair Trade Enforcement Act of 1978.” It is a comprehensive and
deflnitive document specifying the statutory changes we support and urge that
you adopt. With your permission, we ask that the document be made a part of
the record of these hearings.

Senator Danforth and several co-sponsors have recently introduced a bill
that contains many of the improvemeuts that we support. Moreover, other pro-
go;alge rel:etinz to trade matters have been or will be introduced in the House

n nate.

We also understand that our lagislative proposals will shortly be issued as
a Committee priat by the Trade Bubcommittee of the House Ways and Means
Committee. More than 80 industries, the AFL~CIO and several major national
unions have endorsed a Congressional review of these proposals,

Our government and the domestic steel industry face critical times ahead
88 pressures mount to weaken U.8. unfair trade statutes by bending them into
conformity with the codes. Moreover, the codes’ language and implementing
legislation could create major uncertainties of both substance and administration.
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It s zssential that American industry have clear and falr recourse against
un‘zir import practices under U.8, trade statutes. .

As ihe MTN and implementing legislation are addressed by the Congress
this session, we hope you will support our proposals and the bills in which
they will be incorporated. We are at a critical juncture in U.8. trade policy.
We need and hope for the full support of this Committee in the months abead.

Part IIl.—..7 ‘I Recommendations on Recform of U.8. Unfair Trade Practice
Statutes

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED FAIR TRADKE ENTORCEMENT ACT OF 1978

The act would amend four major statutes that regulate fair trade practices
fcr those exporting goods to the United States:
1. the antidumping act;
2. the couitervailing duty statute;
3. section 387 o1 the 1937 tariff act ; and
4. the predatory dumpipng provisiouns of the Tariff Act of 1916.

These proposals are predicaied on the proposition that world trade is desirable
and beneficial §in contributing to man’s well-Leing by most eficiently allocating
limited world resources only if trade is conducted fairly withoui nationalistic
political interventicn which would subvert otherwise appropriate economiec
trading activity.

1. The Antidumping Act

The antidumping act deals 'with the practice of imported goods being sold in
this country at prices below the hoine market prices (or below the cost of
production) in the exporting country when such sales cause injury to a domestic
industry. All industrialized countries have laws designed to control such unfair
pricing practices. Lax enforcement of the law as administered over the years has
resulted in a system that is {neffective, complex, protracted, and difficult for a
domestic industry to obtain relief from dumping practices.

(a) At the outset the amendment would provide a low threshold of proof b,
a petitioner to Insure that Treasury would initiate a dumping investigation
whenever the petition indicates likelihood that dumping is taking place. The
proposal would repeal authority of the Treasury to refer the petition to the
Interuational Trade Commission for a preliminary injury determination since
this has been abused by requiring an extraordinarily difficult burden of injury
proof contained in the petition itself. Setting forth & minimum showing of the
likelihood of dumping in the petition would eliminate the practice of Treasury
that requires an American aeeking relief to provide almost conclusive evidence
of the existence of dumping and injury.

(b) The way the law is administered, even if dumping is fonnd, the dumping
dutfes are collected only on imports that come in after the tentative finding of
dumping, which ecan be as much as 6 to 9 months after the notice of the investi-
gation. Dumped imports that come in during that 6 to 9 month grace period
escape the dumping duties, with the natural tendency that imports often increase
significantly after a notice of dumping investigation and bafore a tentative
det.ranination is made. This is an obvious lcophole,

The trade amendments would provide thaet there be a withholding of appraise-
ment on goods imported into the country on and afier the date of the notice of
an antidumping investigation being undertaken by Treasury. This would permit
dumping duties to reach back to the time the investigation wag started in the
event an antidumping violation is eventually found to have occurred. This amend-
ment would assure that dumped goods could not avoid dumping duties and
would serve as a stimulus for much prompter and fuller cooperation from the
fmporters in providing the necessary information for a final determination at
the earliest practicable date. -

(¢) As the law has beun enforved in the past, there is an exceptionally loug
time 1ag between a dumping tinding and the eventual collection of dumping
duties. It 18 not uncommon for 8 to § years to pass from the time of an importa-
tion that is subject to an antidumping finding before any dumping duties are
ever collzcted.

The proposed trade act would avoid this by the collection of estimated dumping
duties immediately on all goods entering after an afirmative determination. The
duties would be computed and collected on the basis of the initial margin of
Aumping found by Treasury and would be adjusted up or down on a periodic
Lanis (but not longer than once a year) ; and in the event of overcollection of

42-978—790-——9
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duties the excess would be returned, with interest, to the importer, or if under-
collection the additional duties, with interest, would be obtained.

(d) A serious difficulty that has existed in the administration of the anti-
dumping statute since its passage is with item-by-item ex parte dumping adjudi-
cation that occurs on every entry after a finding of Aumping by Treasury. As
the law is enforced, Treasury makes an affirmative finding of dumping, but
the amount of dumping duty to be collected on each entry is thereafter readju-
dicated item by item, port by port, forever in the future. And at such entries the
determination of the margin of dumping, if any, is adjudicated only between the
Customs officials and the importer. This has resulted in excessive delay; sig-
nificant narrowing, or indeed elimination, of dumping margins by the importers
being able to privately contend without contest that circumstances have changed
in the home market in such infinite variables as home market prices, export
brices, differences in circumstances of sales, differences in quality of the
product, ete.

To simplify the procedure, provide for prompt collection of the duty and
eliminate the secret adjudication between importer and the Customs officials, the
trade act would provide for the dumping mergin found by the Treasury in its
initial determination to apply to future entries; notice would be given by
Treasury of its intent to collect different dumping margins on entries after the
original determination, and this would afford the sffected members of the Indua-
try an opportunity to be heard. It would assure prompt collection of duties in the
amount of the original margin of dumping except as proper evidence were
introduced to reflect that the margin had truly changed.

(e) In the past there has been an uneven, uncertain, and at times almost
capricious approach towards the determination of injury to a domestie indrstry.
The trade amendment would provide definitions of the term “industry” to cor-
respond to a segment of American manufscturing thuat was reasonably co-
extensive with the dumped imjorts, and the act would set out with rather great
detail the elements to be looked at in determining inquiry. It would thereby
eliminate the oftentimes excessively restricted interpretation of injury that has
been found in ITC decisions from time to time and would assure that a more
realistic and fair approach to injury would prevail in ITC decisions. By meaus of
sfuch detailed codification, it would make the decision-making process more pre-
dictable und eliminate the wide fluctuations that have occurred over the years
based upon changes in the composition of the Commission.

(f) The practice has grown up of terminating dumping findings without ade-
quate safeguards. It is counterpraoductive to place a heavy burden on industry to
prove dumping and then after a relatively short interval allow the Treasury to
end the dumping finding. The amendments would provide a requirement that
dumping must not have taken pluce for a number of years before Treasury has
the power to entertain the dismissal of a dumping finding ; Treasury may then
dismiss a findiug only upon receiving assurances from the importers, establishing
a monitoring mechanism to assure that dumping does not recur and establishing
a procedure whereby the dumping finding may be reinstated if dumping recurs
during the period of monitoring.

(g) Effective in 1980 jurisdiction for the administration of the antidumping
act would be vested exclusively with the Interuational Trade Commission. Pres-
ent jurisdiction is bifurcated between Treasury determination of less than fair
value sales and the ITC determination of injury. Too often the antidumping act
is enforced more on the basis of political considerations than on the grounds of
legal rationale and economic facts.

To minimige the political influence, removal to a more autonomous commission,
such as ITC, is appropriate. The record of Treasury over the years and under
all administrations has reflected at best a laxity of enforcement and at worst
an outright hostility toward effective enforcement. The ITC record on injury
determinations has at times been quite inadequate. However, the detailed stand-
ards set forth in the amendments on defining injury, evidentiar; facts to be
lcoked at in determining injury, and the definition of industry should markedly
reduce the aberrational tendencies at certain periods of time for the Commission
to find injury only when an industry is mortally wounded. The ITC now has
wide jurisdiction over a vast area of trade matters, including divided responsi-
bility of enforcing the antidumping statute, exclusive Jurisdiction to administer -
§ 387 of the Trade Act, and injury determination under the countervafling duty

statute where required, as well as Juvestigations into wid it
tariff classifications, and customs dutlem.g e-ranglig teafle matters,
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2. Countervailing duty stalute

The act would provide corollary changes to the countervailing duty statute
comparable to those imposed under the antidumping statute in the following
areas:

(a) Threshold question on burden of accepting petitions for initiating an
investigation.

(b) Withholding of appraisement on all goods entering on and after the
publication of the notice of investigation.

(c) Asaessment of countervailing duties based upon the amount of boun -~ or
grant fouud to have existed hy Treasury in its original afirmative determin.. .ion.

(d) Collection of estimated countervailing duties and avoidance of ex parte
adjudication of the margin of countervailing duties.

(e) Definition of industry and injury where required.

(f) The time for countervailing duty investigations would be shortened from
12 months to 9 months.

(g) A definition of the terms “bounty or grant” would be provided under the
amendment to overcome the extremely limited and strained approach of Treasury
toward the meaning of subsidy. These definitions would set forth standards thai
would assure a liberal approach to the meaning of subsidy that would, among
other things, eliminate the artificial and economically unjustified distinction be-
tween rebates of indirect as opposed to direct taxes. The definitions would reflect
the current state of the world wherein many industries of the world are either
government owned or government supported to an extent that international trade
need not he conducted on a sound economic basis. These definitions are designed
to identify all forme of subsidy as unfair forms of competition where govern-
ment-supported imports compete with private industries in this country.

(h) Jurisdiction over the enforcement of the countervailing duty statute wounld
be transferred to the ITC in 1080 for the same reasons expressed for transferring
that authority under the antidumping statute.

(i) Strengthening of judicial review. Judicial review of the decisions made at
the administrative level under the antidumping and countervailing duty statutes
would be further bolstered. Judicial review would cover a decision not to begin
an investigation, a determination of whether there were less than fair value
sales .a finding of whether there were subsidies, and the finding of the amount of
antidumping or countervailing duty to be imposed.

3. Amendments to section 337 of the Trade Act of 1930

Section 337 is the statute dealing with predation in commerce, which has heen
singularly iueffective because of the power of the President to ignore any relief
ordered under the statute by the ITC.

(a) This statute deals with predatory marketing practices analogous to the
unfair methods of competition concept contained in Section 5 of the Federal
Trade Commission Act. It is administered by the ITC, but any decision on relief
determined by the Commission is subject to the rather unfettered discretion of
the President, who may chose not to implement the ITC finding and recom-
mended relief. The Trade Act amendments would require that any presidential
rejection of the ITC recommendations wounld have to be ratified by Congress
within a specifiei period of time, otherwise the Commissions determinations
would hecome effective.

(b) The amendment would provide private damage actions to Injured parties
against those found to have violated § 337. This would provide private remedial
compensation that had not previously been contained in this statute.

4. Amendments lo the Revenue Act of 1918

The predecessor to the 1921 antidumping statute was the criminal dumping act
contained in the Revenue Act of 1916, which has been completely ineffective and
has fallen into almost complete disuse.

The criminal aspects of the statute would be eliminated. Concurrently, the
amendment would abolish the requirement that to obtain relief under the statute
it 18 necessary to show specific intent to fnjure u domestic industry by the sub-
stantial margins of dumping. Under the amendment there would remsin private
damage .action remedies available to those injured by such significant and
pergistent dumping.

Scnator Risrcorr. Mr. Denison
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STATEMENT OF RAY DENISON, ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR, DEPART-
MENT OF LEGISLATION, AFL-CI0

Mr. DexisoN. The AFL-CIO welcomes this subcommittee’s invita-
tion for early comments on the multilateral trade negotiations. The
legislation that will be proposed to Congress to implement the agree-
ments reached in Geneva can affect every American. These agreements
can affect Federal, State, and local laws, and the regulations that carry
out those laws, These negotiations are different from any in the past,
because far more than imports and exports are involved. The everyday
life of the United Stutes can be affected by whatever the President
agrees to and whatever the Congress decides.

In order to assess the economic impact of the agreements, the whole
package should be in the hands of the Congress and the hands of any-
one advising the Con . In order to assess the impact of any part of
the agreement, the details must be known. Unfortunately, the final
package has not been assembled nor have details been made available.

Therefore, it is difficult to comment at this time. It is likewise
difficult for the Congress to make proper evaluations and decisions on
the basis of what has been made available thus far.

Unions know very well that details are important. For example,
three words—"in major part”—were used to interpret the test of in-
jury from impeorts in the Trade Expansion Act of 1962 and to prevent
any relief for most injured industries throughout most of the 1960s.
We  ‘ched the jobs go and we watched the Nation try to pay the
cost. v/e are still seeing the results of interpretations o?'“details” in
trade hearing after trade hearing about impacts of imports on U.S.
industries and jobs.

The AFL~CIO recognizes the importance of working with the

Congress and the administration to make sure that any legislation
which is proposed will effectively carry out the U.S. interest to assure
the promotion of a healthy economy at home and to a